
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Planning Committee 
 
To: Councillors R Watson (Chair), Ayre, D'Agorne, Firth, 

Funnell, Galvin, Horton, Hyman, Moore, Morley, Potter 
(Vice-Chair), Reid, Simpson-Laing, B Watson and 
Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 25 November 2010 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
The site visit will commence at 12.30pm on Wednesday 24 November 2010 
meeting at the main entrance to the Nuffield Hospital (car parking available) 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 

At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the Planning 
Committee held on 23 September 2010. 
 

3. Public Participation   
 

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who have 
registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for registering 
is by 5.00pm on Wednesday 24 November 2010. Members of the 
public can speak on specific planning applications or on other 
agenda items or matters within the remit of the committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, on 
the details at the foot of this agenda. 



 
4. Plans List   

 

This item invites Members to determine the following planning 
applications: 
 

a) Nuffield Hospital York, Haxby Road, York YO31 8TA 
(10/01677/FULM)        (Pages 13 - 34) 
 

Construction of an 83 bed residential care home including ancillary 
facilities, external works and access [Clifton Ward] [Site Visit] 
 

b) Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane and 
Low Lane A64 Trunk road and Hull Road, York (10/02140/REM)  
(Pages 35 - 44) 
 

Erection of social and catering building with access and cycle 
parking. [Heslington Ward] 
 

5. Three Conservation Area Appraisals for Strensall, Strensall 
Railway Buildings and Towthorpe Village Conservation Areas: 
Consultation Drafts        (Pages 45 - 136) 
 

This report requests that three separate draft Conservation Area 
Character Appraisals for the neighbouring conservation areas of 
Strensall, Strensall Railway Buildings and Towthorpe Village are 
approved for public consultation. 
 

6. Any other business, which the Chair considers urgent under the 
Local Government Act 1972.   
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

Contact details are set out above.  



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

SITE VISIT 

 

 WEDNESDAY 24 NOVEMBER 2010 
 
 
 
 

Meet on site at the main entrance to the Nuffield Hospital (car parking is available) 
 

 
TIME 

(Approx) 

SITE          ITEM 

12.30pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Nuffield Hospital York, Haxby Road, York (10/01677/FULM) 
 
 
 
   

           4a 
  
 

 
 
 
 

   

   

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� �������������������

����� ��������� �!��"#"�

�!������ ��$������!��!�%������&�'��!()���!�)�
�*���!��)�+�!�')�+$�����)�'����)����!�)�
�����!�&,���-�'��!()�!���)��������-�����)�
 �%�����)�%��������������,���&�$ �+�!�
���!�'$����(�

���������� ��$������!��'�!���)�'$�����������!����

�
���� �����	�
��
������

�	��
��

�
���.�	��/�	����0���1����1�
�2	�)�2���3���4���������3��������5)�2���4�	���2��
�	�4	�6�1�
�2������	������3�����53��320������3��.������������3��25��127�
�
����
����	���	�� 1�
�2	�1�2� 4�	���2������4	�6�1�
�2�� ����	���� ��� 	��2����� ���
��2���������82�&9-#:�'����!�21)���	
(�2�1�8.�&����2/	��
����	���)���	
(�
2���;�
���0�����.�	���	������	�)������	��2�1���
�2����
������7�
�
�

���� ��
�
����
�
!����,��<� �32�� �3���������� ��� �3�� �2���������5� ��� �3����2����5�

���������� 3��1� ��� ��� =���� �"#"� .�� 244	�0�1� 2�1�
��5��1�.���3���32�	�2��2�
�		�
��	�
�	17�

�
�

���� ���������	
�����
��
��
�
��� /2�� 	�4�	��1� �32�� �3�	�� 321� .���� ��� 	�5���	2������ ��� �4�2
� 2�� �3��
������5���1�	��3������
��>����.��
��2	��
�42������
3���7�
�
�

���� ���
�����
��
�
���.�	�� 
����1�	�1� 	�4�	��� ��� �3�� ������2��� ��	�
��	� &��2����5� 2�1�
����2��2.��� ��0���4����(� 	��2���5� ��� �3�� �����/��5� 4�2����5� 244��
2����)�
��������5� �3�� 4	�4��2��� 2�1� 	���02��� 4�2����5� 
����1�	2������ 2�1� ������5�
�����3��0��/������3��
����������2�1�����
�	�7�
�
�

���� ����������	��� �!�"#�$�%&%�'��&��
�(��
�
�3�� ���������� 
����1�	�1� 2� �26�	� �������� 244��
2����)� ��.�����1� .��
$����0��5���1)���	��3���	�
�����������1����2

����12�����
��4	����5�����:��
.�1��42
���/��3���?@������
�����	�����@�.��

��/��3�2���
�2��1��2�1�
24��5�
2�1�2

����2���	��3��1��������������3���;�����5�12�	��&	���.�������(7�
�

Agenda Item 2Page 5



����
�	�� 
�	
��2��1� �3�� �����/��5� ����	�2����� ��� 2�� �412��� &����� 1��2���� ���
/3�
3�2	��������������3��2���;�2��2
3�1�����3��25��12(<�

•� �/����	�3�	������	������.6�
�����321�.����	�
��0�1��	���	���1����7�
•� ��������� 321� .���� 	�
��0�1� �	��� �3�� ���3�	���>�� ����2��2.���

�	�6�
�>������
�	���44�	���5� �3��4	�4��2�����.6�
�� ���4	��	�244	�02��
���2�	���/2.������	5����	2��5�7��

•� ��� 
���������� ��� �3�� ���������� ��� ��0��� ��5����	�� �����������
�	���
��� 321� .���� 	�
��0�1� �	��� �3�� 244��
2��� .��� 3�� 321� ��/�

����	��1�3���
��������������3��4	���
��7�

•� �11�����2��2	
32����5��
��������321�.����	�
��0�1�/3�
3����53��
�3�� 	�4�2
������ ��� 1	2��� 
��1������� #8� 2�1� #@� ��	� ���� .��4�
��

��1��������	��3������7��

•� ����1��������1	2���
��1������?� ���2���� ��
��1��1��2������� �3����2

�
3��53�7�

�
!�4	�����2������ ��� ��44�	�� ��� �3�� 244��
2����� /�	�� 	�
��0�1� �	��� �3��
244��
2��>�� 25���7� '�� 	���		�1� ��� �;�����0�� ��5���2������ ��1�	�2
��� /��3�
����
�	�����
��	����2������3��244��
2��������=���)�/3�
3�321���0��0�1�2���/�
1���5��244	�2
3�2�1�2� 	�1�
����� ���.�1��42
��7�'�� 	���		�1� ��� �3�� �2	5��
2������ ��� 4	�02��� ���1���� 2

����12����� ��� �3�� '���� !�21A+��3�	52���
%2	1� 2�1� 4�����1� ���� �32�� �3��� 1�0���4����� /���1� 	���2��� 2	���1� #""�
�2����� 1/�����5�� ����� �3�� �2	
��7� �3�� ��0�	������2�� �2�25������ 4�2��
2�1�4�	�2�������-������2�25������4	����
��/���1�3��
����	��1�	�1�
��
������2�1�2������
�2��.�320���	�����������2�3�53�������2��2.�����
2����7�
�
!�4	�����2������ ��� �.6�
����� /�	�� 	�
��0�1� �	��� 2� ��
2�� 	���1���� /3��
	���		�1�����3��	24�1��4	�21�����3��$��0�	�����
2�4���2�1���.��B����������
��� �2����� 3�����5� ��� ���1����7� '�� 4�����1� ���� �32�� ��
2�� 	���1����� 2�1�
�2	��3� ����
���� ����� �32�� �3�� $��0�	����� �3���1� 4	�0�1�� ���1����
2

����12��������
2�4��7�
�
�3����
2�����.�	�2����4�����1����� �32�� �3��$��0�	�����321��2���1� ���.���1�
�����
�����2

����12��������
2�4��7�'��	���		�1����	���1�����
��
�	������
	��2�������� �3���2	���	��
3����2�1�
����	��1��32��3��321�����.6�
������ ���
�3�� 4	������ 244��
2����� 6���� 2� ���.�	� ��� B��������7� �3���� 	��2��1� ��� �3��
5	����/2����
	�����5)�42	
��5�2�1��3����	��5�3����1	2���
��1�������8�/3�
3�
�3���1���
��1��12	
��
��
��4��2�����53���57�
�
��� 2��/�	� ������.�	�� B��������� �3�� 244��
2��>�� �	
3���
�� 
����	��1� �32��
$����0��5� 321� 2� �����2	� �

�42�
�� �2�25������ 4�2�� ��� �4�	2����� ��� 2�
1�0���4����� ��� '���� /3�
3� 321� /�	
�1� /���� ��� �2���2����5� 
���	��� ���
�

�42���7�
�
���.�	��/���������B��������2����.�	����2�4�
�������3���
3������
��1��5C�

•� ���2��������3��5	����/2����
	�����5C�
•� �����	�2����� �32�� �3�� 1�0���4����� /2�� ���� ���1� ��� 2� �4�
���
�

$��0�	����C�
•� ������5����2

����12��������������	������C�
•� ���2�������.���	����������5��3��4	�4���1���/�.����3����	C�
•� �����	�2����� �32�� �3�� ����� /���1� 320�� 2� �8� 3��	� �2�25������

4	����
�C��

Page 6



•� �����	�2����� �32�� 1��
�������� /��3� �3�� ����
�� �	
3���
��	2�� ��2�����
����
�	�/���1�.����1�	�2
���2���3��	���	0�1��2���	����25�C��

•� �4����42
��
���	�.������2�1�������������3����
2�����	2�3�	��32��2���3��
$��0�	������

�
+����/��5���	�3�	����5�3��1��
����������/2����
�
!����,��<�����(� �32�� �3�� 244��
2����� .�� 244	�0�1� ��.6�
�� ��� �3��


��1������� ���� ���� ��� �3�� 	�4�	�� 2�1� �3�� �����/��5�
2���1�1�
��1������<�

�
����1����� ��� ���1������ ?� ��� 	�21� D���/��3��2�1��5�
�3�� ����	�2�����
���2���1���� �3��244	�0�1�4�2��)� �3��
3��53����� �3��244	�0�1�1�0���4������32��������;
��1�
#87:� ���	��)� ��� 	�15�� 3��53�� 2�1� #@7:� ���	��� ���
�2;����� ��2

� 3��53�)� 2�� ��2��	�1� �	��� �;�����5�
5	���1���0��7� ���	��2���/�	
��
�����
������3������)�
2���2�������1��������5��3���;�����5�5	���1���0�������3��
������32���.��25	��1����/	����5)�2�1�2���/�	
��	�B��	�1�
������������2	
��32��5	���1���0���2

�	2�����1�	��5��3��

����	�
�����/�	
���32��� .�� ��4�������1�4	��	� ���2���
1����	.2�
�� ��� �3�� �;�����5� 5	���1� ��0��7� ���� ��
3�
43���
2��/�	
���	��2	
�	��32���.��	��2���1�2��2���������
1�	��5��3��
����	�
�����4�	��17E�

�
��������� ��� ���1������� #8� 2�1� #@� 2�1� �3��	�
	�4�2
������/��3�D���1�����������32��� �2
��4�2
��������
�3��244��
2���32����
�	�1� �3��/	������244	�02����� �3��
��
2�� ��2����5� ���3�	���� ��	� �3�� 
������� 2�1�
��4������2����� ��� 2�� 2	
32����5�
2�� ����52�����
��	2��5�� /3�
3� 
�������� ��<� 1���������� 2�1� ��0���
	�1�
����� ��� �3�� ��4� ��� ��	0�0��5� 2	
32����5�
2��
1�4������ ��1�	� 2	
32����5�
2�� ��4�	0�����C�
2	
32����5�
2�� �;
202����� ��� ��2��	��� 2�1� 1�4������
2���
�2��1� /��3� �3�� #F�3� �����	�� �2���	�� 2�1� ����
��.��B����� 1�0���4����C� 2�2�����)� 	�4�	���5� 2�1�
4�.��
2���������3��	�����������3���;
202����C�1�4��������
��� �3�� 2	
3�0�� /��3� �3�� ��	
�3�	�� ������C� 2��
2	
32����5�
2�� /2�
3��5� .	���� ��� 2��� ��3�	� 5	���1�
1����	.2�
��C�2�1�
���������2

����2�1���0��0������
����3��4	�6�
�7E�
�
���1������ �#<� �32�� �3�� �32�	� 2�1� ,�
�� �32�	� ���

������2����� /��3� �3�� ������2��� ��	�
��	� ��� ��2����5�
2�1�����2��2.�����0���4�����.��2��3�	���1� ���25	���
�3�� 1��2���� ��� �3�� �����5� ��� �3�� 4	�4���1� .��� ���4� ���
�2/	��
����	���7��

�
��(�� �32�� ��1�	� ��
����� #"9� ��� �3�� ��/�� 2�1� �����	��

��2����5� �
�� #FF"� �3�� ���2�
�2�� 
���	�.������ ��/2	1��
���������4	�0����������4����42
���3���1��4�
�����32���3��

���	�.�������3���1�.�����1���	�4	�0����������3����
2�����
����3�������2�1�����2���3��$��0�	����7��

Page 7



�
�
!�����<� ��� �3�� �4������ ��� �3�� ��
2�� ��2����5� ���3�	���� �3��

4	�4��2�)� ��.6�
�� ��� �3�� 
��1������� �����1)� /���1� ����

2���� ��1��� 32	�� ��� ����	����� ��� 2

��/��15�1�
��4�	�2�
�)�/��3�42	��
��2	�	���	��
������3��4	��
�4������
�3�� 1�0���4����)� 2���	12.��� 3�����5� A�

�42�
�)�
��42
�� �4��� �3�� 
32	2
��	� 2�1� 244�2	2�
�� ��� �3��
2	�2)���42
���4���	���1����2��2������)���0��5�
��1�������
�������	���

�42���)�42	
��5�2�1�3�53/2��������)��4���
�42
�� ������� 2	
32����5�
2�� ��5����
2�
�� ��� �3�� �����
2�1�����2��2.�����7������
3��3��4	�4��2��
��4�����/��3�
����
������#")���#)���82()���9)�'#)�'�#")��#
(�2�1�
�8� ��� �3�� ����� ��� ��	
� ��0���4����� ����	��� ��
2��
��2�7�

�
��)� �����*"+,-+��."++. �!�"#�$�%&%��/0&����(��

�
�����1�	2�����/2��5�0������2��26�	������244��
2����)�	�
��0�1��	��� �2

�����
��1)� ��	� �3���	�
��������9���7�.��

�� ��	� ���1����2

����12�����2���	� �3��
1�������������2���;�����5�
2	��3�/	����&	���.�������(7�
�
����
�	�� 
�	
��2��1� 2�� �412��)� /3�
3� ����	��1� ���.�	�� ��� �3�� �����/��5�
&�3��������412��1����2��2
3�1�����3���������25��12(<�
�

•� �3��2
��2�����.�	����������/2����?�	2�3�	��32����:��
•� ��5���3� '�	��25�� 321� ��� ��	�3�	� 
�������� ��� 	��2����� ��� �3��

2���1�1��
3����
•� :� ��	�3�	� �����	������.6�
�����321�.����	�
��0�1�
�0�	��5�2����.�	�

�����/�4������
•� ��� �2/	��
�� �3�	
3� 321� /��31	2/�� ���� �.6�
����� ��� �3�� �
3����

��.6�
�����2����.�	����4������
•� ��	
� ��0�
� �	���� 321� 
�������1� 
��
�	��� 	�52	1��5� �3�� 1������)�

�
2���2�1��2����5�2�1�42	��
��2	����3��1���5������3��.���1��5��
•� +�	�3�	� 
�������� ��� �3����0�	������2��'�2��3�����
�	� ��
��1��5� 2�

	�B�������	��3��211���������2�������
��1������
•� '�53/2��	�B�������	�2���1��������1	2���
��1������#:����	��2�������3��

4	�0���������
�
���42	
��5�
•� �������5� ��2	���5� 2�1� �����	�� 321� 
����	��1� �32�� �3�� 
������1�

������	�����������4����42
��/���1�.��2����2�����G?9)8��7��3���321�
2����
����	��1��32���3�	��/2��2�1���
���
������4�	��4	�0������/��3���
�3�� 2	�2� 2�1� �32�� �3�� ������ /���1� .�� �4���� 2�� 42	�� ��� �3��

���������2

����.����2
��������2��'�����5�����2��7�

•� +����/��5�	�
��4�����211�����2��1	2��25������	�2������3����5����	��5�
�������2�
�� 321� 	�B�����1� �3�� 211������ ��� 2� ���.�	� ��� 211�����2��

��1�������2�1�2������	�2��0�������

•� ���2��������3��4�2�����.�	����	���
����������1	2���
��1�������7�
�
!�4	�����2������ ��� ��44�	�� ��� �3�� 244��
2����� /�	�� 	�
��0�1� �	��� �3��
��2����5� �������2��7� '�� �32�
�1� ����
�	�� ��	� �3��	� 2�����2�
�� /��3� �3��
244��
2�����2�1�4�����1������32���3�������/2�����2�
���	2����
2������2
��5����
�1�2�� ��	� ���1���� 2

����12����7� '�� ��2��1� �32�� �3�� 4	�0������ ���

Page 8



2

����12����� ��� �3�� 
���� 321� ���� 
�4�� 42
��/��3� ���1���� ���.�	�� 2�1�
�32���3�������/���1�.��
�0�	�1�.��2��2�25������4�2�7�'��/���������	���	�
���2����.�	�
��
�	���	2���1�1�	��5��3�������0����� ���	��2��������
2	�42	
��5�
2�1�3��	����	2��1��32��3�53/2���321�	2���1�����.6�
����������3��4	�4��2��7�
�
!�4	�����2������ /�	�� 	�
��0�1� ��� �.6�
����� �	��� 2� ��
2�� 	���1���� /3��
4�����1������32���3��4�2���1��4�2��1�2���3��������5�/�	�������3���2���2��
�3��4�2���3��321�4�	
32��1� �	��� �3�����3�	����/3��� �3��244��
2�����321�
.������.�����17�
�
�3�� ��2����5� ����
�	� 
����	��1� �32�)� ���
�� �3�� 244��
2����� 321� .����
��.�����1)�2����.�	����	�0�������321�.�����21������3���
3�������/3�
3�
	���1����� 321� .���� 	�
�������17� � � ����
�	�� 1��2���1� �3�� �26�	� 
32�5���
�21������3���
3�������
�����321��	�5��2����.������15�17�
�
�3�� ��
2�� 	���1���� /���� ����� �;4	���� 
��
�	��� 	�52	1��5� �3�� 4	�4���1�
3��53������3�����1����2

����12�����.��

��2�1�����3��524������������
��5�
2162
���� ��� �2/	��
�� �2��� 2�1� �3�� ����� 2

���7� '�� 2���� 	���		�1� ���
1	2��25������������2��2	�2�/3�	���3��1	2����/�	��2�	�21���0�	��21�17�
�
!�4	�����2������ ��� �.6�
����� /�	�� 2���� 	�
��0�1� �	��� 2�� ��.2�1/�

�
	���1����/3���;4	����1�
��
�	��2�� �3��4	����	��.���5�4�������	���� ����
�2�1���	�3�����5�1�0���4����7�'��	���		�1�����3��3�53���0�������.6�
���������
�3��4	�4��2�����	��3������)�/3�
3�3��3�4�1����.�	��/���1�����7�'��252���
����� �32�� ���1����2

����12������3���1�.��4	�0�1�1�/��3��� �3��$��0�	�����

2�4��7�
�
!�4	�����2������ /�	�� �3��� 	�
��0�1� �	��� 2� 	�4	�����2��0�� ��� �3�� ��	
�
��0�
���
����7��3��	�4	�����2��0����2��1��32���3����
�����321�2����.�	����

��
�	��� ��
��1��5� �32�� �3���1�0���4�����/2��4�	�����4�
��2��0��2�1�321�
����.����	�B�����1�.�� �3��$��0�	����7�'����2��1� �32�)� ����3��	��4�����)� �3��
4	������ �
2��)� 1���5�� 2�1��2��	�2��� /�	�� ���� ����2.��� ��	� �3�� 2	�27� �3��
2

����	�21�/���1�.������1�252������3��������%������'�����2�1�2���
���3��
2����������0����	2.���	���1����7�
�
�3�� ��
2�� ���.�	� �;4	����1� 
��
�	��� 2�� �3�� 4	�4��2��� 42	��
��2	��� ���
	��2����� ��� ���� 2���
�� ��� �3�� �����	02����� �	�2� 2�1� �3�� 2162
���� �����1�
.���1��5�7�'�� ����� �32�� �3�	��/2�� �������
�����
2	�42	
��5�2�1� �3���2����5�
/���1�2����320��2�1��	�����2����42
������3���2���	��2�1� 2	.�
2����/�7�
'��	�B�����1��3���������������	�������3��244��
2����7�
�
���.�	��/���������B��������2����.�	����2�4�
������ �3��244��
2�����2�1�
2	�2�����
��
�	�)�/3�
3���
��1�1<�

•� %�1�3�.��/�����3��2

����12�����.��

����	����	5��
����	0�
��)�
/3�
3����/2��
����	��1�/���1�.��
�0�	�1�.��.���1��5�	�5��2������

•� $�������3���4����42
��
���	�.������2���3��$��0�	������
•� +�	�3�	�1��2��������3���

�42�
���2�25������4�2���
•� �2/	��
���2���2

������������0�2�
��421��2�1�
����	�2������32���3���

/���1�2������
��1�����,�.��3�����1��2�1������1���3��4	�4�	�����
•� �2	
��5� 4	�0������ 2�1� 4������2�� 42	
��5� 1��4�2
������ ��� �3��

��		���1��5�2	�2�
�

Page 9



��� 2��/�	� ��� ���.�	�� B��������� ����
�	�� 
����	��1� �32�� ��� /2�� ����
��
���2	������4�
����/3�	���3��
���	�.��������	�����������4����42
���3���1�
.�����17����/2��4�����1������32������
�	�������������5���2	���5�2�1������	��
/���1� �2
�� 2

����� ��� ��
2�� ��2�� 4���
���� 2�1� 1�	�
�� ������� ��� 2���
�1�������1����1������3��2	�27�
�
+����/��5� ��	�3�	� ���5�3�� 1��
������� ����
����	� �>�5�	��� ��0�1� 2�1�
����
����	� �����	� ��
��1�1� 	����2�� ��� �3�� 244��
2����� ��� �3�� 5	���1�� ���
�0�	1�0���4�������� �3������)� ���� ��42
����� �3�������	02������	�2�2�1� ����
2���
������3��2����������2162
����	���1����7����.���5�4�������3��0�������/2����
�
!����,��<� �32���3��244��
2�����.��	�����17�
�
!�����<�����#7� ������
����1�	�1��32��2��2�
����B���
������3��	���
2�����

2�1� 1������� 2�� /���� 2�� �3��	� �;
����0�� �
2��)� 3��53��
2�1��2����5)� �3��4	�4���1����1����.��

�)�/���1�.��
1��	�����2�� ��� �3�� 
32	2
��	� 2�1� 244�2	2�
�� ��� �3��
����	2�� '����	�
� ��	�� �����	02����� �	�2� 2�1� �3��
������5����2162
���������1�������%����������3������2�1�
��� �2/	��
�� �3�	
37� �3�� 1�0���4����� ��� �3�	���	��

���	2	�� ��� 210�
�� ��� ��2����5� ����
�� ��2������� @�
H��2����5� 2�1� �3�� '����	�
� ��0�	������>� 2�1� �3��
2

��42����5�'����	�
���0�	���������2����5��	2
��
��
���1��&�2	
3��"#"()�/3�
3�3�53��53���3����4�	�2�
�����
�3��4	���
��������3�	��25��2�����)�2�1�����3�������/��5�I�
��0���4����� ����	��� ��
2�� ��2�� &�44	�0�1� �4	���
�""@(�4���
���<-�

�
� ��#� &����5�(� /3�
3� ��2���)� ����	� 2��2)� �32��

1�0���4�����4	�4��2���/����.���;4�
��1���<�
2(� 	��4�
���	���32�
���3����
2����0�	������C��
.(� .�����2�1������)��2����)��
2��)��2���2�1�1���5��

�32�� ��� 
��42��.��� /��3� ���53.��	��5� .���1��5�)�
�42
��� 2�1� �3�� 
32	2
��	� ��� �3�� 2	�2)� ����5�
244	�4	�2���.���1��5��2��	�2�C�

�
'���&��0���4��������'����	�
���
2�����(�/3�
3���2����
�32�� /��3��� �	� 216�����5� 
����	02����� 2	�2�� 2�1� ���
��
2������ /3�
3� 2���
�� �3�� ������5� ��� �����1� .���1��5�)�
�
3�1���1� ���������� �	� �2����2���� ��4�	�2���
2	
32����5�
2�� 	��2���� &/3��3�	� �
3�1���1� �	� ���()�
1�0���4����� 4	�4��2��� ����� 	��4�
�� 2162
����
.���1��5�)� �4��� �42
��)� �2�1�2	
�� 2�1� ������5�� 2�1�
320�� 	�52	1� ��� ��
2�� �
2��)� 4	�4�	����)� 1��2��� 2�1�
�2��	�2��C�
�
'��� &�����	02����� �	�2�(� /3�
3� ��2���� 1�0���4�����
4	�4��2���/����.���;4�
��1���<�
2(� 	��4�
���	���32�
���3����
2����0�	������C�
.(� .�����2�1������)��2����)��
2��)��2���2�1�1���5���32��

��� 
��42��.��� /��3� ���53.��	��5� .���1��5�)� �42
���
2�1� �3�� 
32	2
��	� ��� �3�� 2	�2)� ����5� 244	�4	�2���
.���1��5��2��	�2��7�

Page 10



�
'�8� &�����1� ���1��5�(�/3�
3� ��2���� 
�������/���� �����
.��5	2���1���	�1�0���4���������3������1�2���0�
���������
�����1�.���1��5��/3�	���3�	��������210�	�������
������3��

32	2
��	)�244�2	2�
���	�������5�����3��.���1��5�&�(7�
�

�7� ������
����1�	�1��32��2��2�
����B���
������3��	���
2�����
2�1� 1������� 2�� /���� 2�� �3��	� �;
����0�� �
2��)� 3��53��
2�1� �2����5)� �3�� 4	�4���1� ���1���� .��

�)� /���1�
1����2��� 2�1� �0�	���
� �;�����5� 	���1����2��
1�0���4����� ��� �3�� ����3)�/���� 2�1� �2��� ��� �3�� ����)�
2�1� /���1� �3�	���	�� .�� 1��	�����2�� ��� �3�� 	���1����2��
2������� ��� 2162
���� 1/�����5�7� �3��� ��� 
���	2	�� ���
��0���4����� ����	��� ��
2�� ��2�� &�44	�0�1� �4	���
�""@(� ����
�� ��#� &����5�()� /3�
3� ��2���� �32��
1�0���4�����4	�4��2���/����.���;4�
��1���)�����	�2��2<-�

�
�(� ����	�� �32�� 	���1����� ��0��5� ��2	.�� 2	�� ���� ��1����
2���
��1� .�� �����)� 1����	.2�
�)� �0�	���
��5)�
�0�	�321�/��5� �	� 1����2��1� .�� �0�	.�2	��5�
��	�
��	��7�

�
�/�� ����������	��	��
����
���������
�������	!��

�
�3������������
����1�	�1�2�	�4�	�)�/3�
3�����	��1��3�������3������
��>��
4�	��	�2�
�� ��� 	��2����� ��� 244�2��� 1���	����1� .�� �3�� ��2����5�
���4�
��	2��� ��� �3�� �-����3� 4�	��1� �4� ��� �"� =���� �"#"7� �3�� 	�4�	�� 2����
4	�0�1�1�2�����2	������3���2������4�������	���244�2���1���	����1�����32��
4�	��1���5��3�	�/��3�2��������������2�1��5�244�2���2��2���#�=�����"#"7�
�
���.�	���;4	����1��3��	��32�
������3����2����5�����
�	����	�����	�������3���
2	�27�
�
!����,��<�� �32���3��	�4�	���
�������.������17�
�
!�����<� ��� �32�� ���.�	�� 
2�� 
�������� ��� .�� �412��1� ���

244�2��1�
�������/��3����3������2	�2�2�1�����	��1����
�3�� 4�2����5� ������� ��		���1��5��2
3� 
2��� ��	� ����	��
	���	��
�����1���	�����5�4�2����5�244��
2�����7�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
!�%�����)��32�	�
J�3��������5���2	��1�2��87�"�4��2�1������3�1�2��978@�4�K7�

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 1 of 20 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
Date: 25 November 2010 Ward: Clifton 
Team: Major and Commercial 

Team 
Parish: Clifton Planning Panel 

 
Reference: 10/01677/FULM 
Application at: Nuffield Hospital York Haxby Road York YO31 8TA  
For: Construction of 83 bed residential care home including 

ancillary facilities, external works and access 
By: Primary Care Investments Ltd 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 2 November 2010 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 This is a full application for the erection of a new, 83 bedroomed,  
residential nursing care home at land adjacent to Nuffield Hospital, Haxby 
Road York 
 
1.2 The site is an area of 0.46 ha located on the east side of Haxby Road. 
Access to the site is from Haxby Road via the access that serves the Nuffield 
Hospital. The site is currently used as a car park and has been leased out to 
the NHS hospital during the alterations/improvements that have been taking 
place at that site. To the north, east and south of the site is existing residential 
development and to the west is the car park for the Nuffield Hospital. 
Conservation area no.35 The Nestle/ Rowntree factory is located to the west 
and incorporates the majority of the Nuffield Hospital Buildings and the front 
part of the Nuffield Hospital car park. 
 
1.3 The proposed development is designed to provide two and three storey 
communal and bedroom accommodation for a residential care home with 
ancillary  facilities on a fourth floor. The care facility includes a 10 bedroomed 
young physically disabled (YPD) area at ground floor level. The building 
presents an L-shaped structure to the North-west of the site enclosing a 19 
space car parking area, 16 space secure cycle parking and access 
arrangements. The north wing is two storeys with a flat, parapet roof, the west 
wing,  is three storeys with ancillary facilities provided over part of the flat 
roofed area creating a fourth floor. A further wing to the building extends east 
wards at three storeys. The total internal floor area of the structure is 4,091 
square metres. 
 
1.4 The application has been amended since first submission in the following 
ways:- 
 
-increase in separation distance between northern end of the building and the 
boundary. 
 
- Alterations to the design and size of the top storey of the building 

Agenda Item 4aPage 13



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 2 of 20 

- Additional landscaping to the western boundary and south-eastern boundary 
adjacent to garages 
 
- Visitor cycle hoops to entrance 
 
- Relocation of drainage runs from under tree canopies 
 
- Adjustment of external materials 
 
1.5 The application is supported by a Design and Access statement 
incorporating a Sustainability Statement, Geo-Environmental report, Tree 
survey and Arboricultural report and Topographical survey. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints: East Area (2) 0005 
 
Floodzone 2 GMS Constraints: Flood zone 2  
 
Schools GMS Constraints: Haxby Road Primary 0198 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYH17 
Residential institutions 
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYHE2 
Development in historic locations 
  
CYNE1 
Trees, woodlands, hedgerows 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
3.1 Highway Network Management - Expected levels of traffic generation are 
low and are unlikely to have a material impact on the surrounding highway 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 3 of 20 

network. The access arrangements are considered suitable to serve the level 
of development proposed. Although the site will employ 80-90 staff due to 
staff shift patterns the expected maximum staff on site at any one time is 
approximately 15 to 20. Car parking levels are therefore realistic and will be 
supported by the aims of a travel plan which will further reduce car borne trips 
generated by the site. 
 
3.2 City Development - relevant policies are H17, HE2, HE4, GP4a and NE1. 
There are no policy objections to the application provided housing and adult 
services are supportive of the principle of the development. Officers should be 
satisfied with the design, heritage, landscape and sustainability 
considerations. 
 
3.3 York Consultancy - The development is within flood zone 1 and is unlikely 
to suffer from river flooding. Object to the application which provides 
insufficient and conflicting information about drainage. 
 
3.4 Countryside Officer - The development presents a good opportunity to 
carry out some habitat enhancement work to benefit a range of species. The 
enhancement works should include features included within the design of the 
building such as bat bricks and tiles. A condition is suggested to ensure that a 
habitat enhancement is achieved as part of the development. 
 
3.5 Design and Conservation  - The proposal represents an intensive 
development of the site.  The built form whilst not directly impacting on the 
setting of the conservation area presents a functional west elevation which will 
be visible from the conservation area.  The screen planting proposals to this 
elevation need to be clearly understood, and should be covered by an 
appropriate condition.  The external materials proposed for the development 
are a mix of brick, render and metal cladding panels.  Although these are the 
materials found on the adjacent Nuffield Hospital - the former recreation block 
to the Rowntree factory complex - the design intent still needs to be clear.  
Revisions to the scheme have increased the amount of facing brick which is 
welcome, but  the external materials should still be covered by an appropriate 
condition.  The external amenity space looks okay on plan, in reality the depth 
will feel smaller because of the more powerful vertical presence of the trees 
and the shade they will cast due to their location on the southern boundary. 
Nonetheless the physical distance between trees and buildings is acceptable. 
Because of the tightness of the development to the existing landscape 
margins appropriate construction phase protection and the subsequent 
landscape improvements to the perimeter of the site will need to be carefully  
controlled by condition. 
 
3.6 Engineering Consultancy -  The site is in flood zone 1 and should not 
suffer river flooding. Insufficient and conflicting information has been provided 
to determine the potential impact the proposal may have on the existing 
drainage systems. Engineering consultancy therefore currently object to the 
application.  
 
3.7 Environmental Protection - No objections in principle subject to extensive 
conditions covering protection of surrounding properties during the 

Page 15



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 4 of 20 

construction of the building through a Construction Environmental 
Management plan, ensuring noise from plant and machinery is at an 
acceptable level, protection of residents from road noise, controlling odour 
from kitchens, contamination and levels of  external lighting.  
 
3.8 Sustainability Officer – Comments awaited 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
3.9 Clifton Ward Planning Panel - The size of the building footprint and the 
bulk of the building raises some concern because of the impact of the 
development on the neighbouring houses to the south and the east, although 
it is considered that a good attempt has been made to reduce the overall 
appearance of the development through the elevational treatment of the 
building. Concerned about overshadowing; there appeared to be no sun-path 
diagram in the documents, this might be especially relevant to properties on 
the north side of the development. Question the size of the cycle store and the 
ability to expand this area if necessary. It is assumed that the care staff will be 
the main users of cycle places. The panel question whether 19 parking 
spaces will be sufficient for the number of beds and staff. 
 
3.10 Police Architectural Liaison Officer - Analysis of police recorded incidents 
show no significant issues related to crime and the location of the site. The 
design and access statement demonstrates that crime prevention has been 
considered. The applicant is encouraged to apply for the Police secure by 
design award. There are no concerns regarding crime and community safety 
in relation to this development. 
 
3.11 Environment Agency - No objections provided a condition is imposed to 
ensure that surface water drainage details, based on sustainable drainage 
principles, is conditioned. 
 
3.12 2 letters of objection have been received covering the following points:- 
 
- There were tunnels under the car park do these tunnels still exist 
- The building covers the greater part of the land area and is intrusive to 
surrounding residential properties, impacting on the privacy of individuals. 
- The proposal is effectively a three storey structure, the surrounding 
properties are only two; the building will overwhelm by its size and 
construction 
- Reduce natural light to surrounding properties 
- Parking will be a problem. The public rely less on public transport than the 
council would have us believe 
- There are better sites for this scheme such as Vickers Instruments site on 
Haxby Road. 
- The block is very high and near the back of properties on Kitchener Street 
- Noise levels will increase because the proposal is a 24 hour operation 
- There is already a parking problem in Kitchener Street this will be made 
worse by the development 
 
 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 5 of 20 

Publicity 
3.13 The application has been advertised by means of a site notice posted on 
the 17th August 2010, a press advert dated 28th August 2010 and via 
neighbourhood notification letters. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues:- 
 
- Policy Background 
- Principle of the development  
- Design and Landscaping 
- Highways, access and parking 
- Residential Amenity 
- Policy H17 considerations 
- Ecology 
- Drainage 
- Sustainability 
 
4.2 The proposal is for an 83 bedroomed care home, 10 of the beds are 
envisaged to accommodate young physically disabled (YPD).  
 
4.3 Government guidance in Planning Policy Statement 1 ("Delivering 
Sustainable Development") (PPS1) states that a number of key principles 
should be applied to ensure that decisions taken on planning applications 
contribute to the delivery of sustainable development. In particular, PPS1 
promotes high quality inclusive design in the layout of new developments and 
individual buildings in terms of function and impact, not just for the short term 
but over the lifetime of the development. Design which fails to take the 
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area 
should not be accepted. High quality and inclusive design should create well-
mixed and integrated developments which avoid segregation and have well 
planned public spaces that bring people together and provide opportunities for 
physical activity and recreation. 
 
4.4 Planning Policy Statement 4 (PPS4) 'Planning for Sustainable Economic 
Growth' says that economic development includes  public and community 
uses and that policies in the PPS also applies to other development that either 
provides employment opportunities, generates wealth or produces or 
generates an economic output. Policy EC10 of PPS4 says that Local Planning 
Authorities should adopt a positive and constructive approach towards 
planning applications for economic development. All development should be 
assessed against the following impact considerations:- 
 
a. whether the proposal has been planned over the lifetime of the 
development to limit carbon dioxide emissions, and minimise vulnerability and 
provide resilience to, climate change 
b. the accessibility of the proposal by a choice of means of transport including 
walking, cycling, public transport and the car, the effect on local traffic levels 
and congestion (especially to the trunk road network) after public transport 
and traffic management measures have been secured 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 6 of 20 

c. whether the proposal secures a high quality and inclusive design which 
takes the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of the 
area and the way it functions 
d. the impact on economic and physical regeneration in the area including the 
impact on deprived areas and social inclusion objectives 
e. the impact on local employment 
 
4.5 Planning Policy Statement 5 - 'Planning and the Historic Environment' 
says the Government’s overarching aim is that the historic environment and 
its heritage assets should be conserved and enjoyed for the quality of life they 
bring to this and future generations. To achieve this the Governments 
objectives for planning for the historic environment are to deliver sustainable 
development, to conserve England’s heritage assets in a manner appropriate 
to their significance and to contribute to our knowledge and understanding of 
our past by ensuring that opportunities are taken to capture evidence from the 
historic environment and to make this publicly available. 
 
4.6 PPS5 is supported by a practice guide which provides more detailed 
advice on how to deal with applications in an historic environment. In 
particular paragraph 80 says policies HE7.5, HE9.5 and HE10 require 
attention to the extent to which the design of new development contributes 
positively to the character, distinctiveness and significance of the historic 
environment. The paragraph acknowledges that a successful scheme will be 
one whose design  takes into account sites historical features including views 
into and from the site and surroundings and green landscaping.  
 
4.7 PPS9 'Biodiversity and Geological Conservation' says development 
proposals provide many opportunities for building-in beneficial biodiversity or 
geological features as part of good design. When considering proposals, 
Local Planning Authorities should maximise such opportunities in and around 
developments, using planning obligations where appropriate. 
 
4.8 The following local plan policies are considered to be relevant to the 
application:-  
 
- Policy H17 which states that planning permission will only be granted for 
residential institutions where the development, together with existing 
residential institutions or unimplemented planning permissions for that use, 
would not give rise to a concentration likely to have an adverse impact on 
residential amenity and where it is positively located relative to local facilities 
and public transport. 
 
-  Policy C1 says that planning applications for social, health, community and 
religious facilities will be granted provided that the proposed development is of 
a scale and design appropriate to the character and appearance of the locality 
and it would meet a recognised need. 
 
-  Policy GP1 'Design' includes the expectation that development proposals 
will, inter alia; respect or enhance the local environment; be of a density, 
layout, scale, mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring buildings 
and spaces, ensure residents living nearby are not unduly affected by noise, 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 7 of 20 

disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or dominated by overbearing 
structures, use materials appropriate to the area; avoid the loss of open 
spaces or other features that contribute to the landscape; incorporate 
appropriate landscaping and retain, enhance or create urban spaces, public 
views, skyline, landmarks and other features that make a significant 
contribution to the character of the area. 
 
-   Policy GP4a 'Sustainability' of the City of York Council Development 
Control Local Plan (2005) states that proposals for all development should 
have regard to the principles of sustainable development and sets out those 
issues to consider as part of a sustainably designed development. The interim 
planning statement on Sustainable Design and Construction supports Policy 
GP4a in setting out ways to achieve sustainability furthermore the document 
requires that 10% onsite renewables are achieved.  
 
-  Policy GP9 requires where appropriate developments to incorporate a 
suitable landscaping scheme 
 
-  Policy HE2 'Development in Historic Locations' says within or adjoining 
conservation areas, and in locations which affect the setting of listed buildings 
development proposals must respect adjacent buildings, open spaces, views, 
landmarks and other townscape elements which contribute to the character or 
appearance of the area. 
 
- Policy NE1 requires that trees, woodlands and hedgerows which are of 
landscape, amenity, nature conservation or historical value will be protected. 
 
PRINCIPLE OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
 
4.9 The site is located within the built area of the city as defined in the City of 
York Draft local plan. The site has previously been used for industrial 
purposes in connection with the former use of the site by Nestle/Rowntrees 
and is currently used as a car park. Originally allocated for employment use 
the site has not been included as employment land within the employment 
land review and its retention as employment land is not required. PPS4 says 
Local Planning Authorities should be supportive of economic development 
subject to the detailed design of the scheme. There are no policies in the 
Local Plan that would  preclude the use of the site for a residential care home 
subject to the details of the scheme being acceptable.  The principle of the 
development is therefore considered to be acceptable. 
 
DESIGN AND LANDSCAPING 
 
4.10 The proposed building is predominantly 3 storey with a significant 4 
storey element housing the ancillary accommodation and a two storey north 
wing. The site is currently used as a car park. Nuffield Hospital, which fronts 
the Haxby Road to the west of the application site, occupies the former 
Rowntree staff welfare/canteen building. The hospital building is an imposing 
red brick building with a tall and detailed parapet with later additions to the 
roof storey in grey metal clad set behind. The adjoining theatre building is 
listed and the Nestle Rowntree Conservation Area includes these buildings 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 8 of 20 

and the Haxby Road frontage. The proposed form of the development 
attempts to reflect  the form of the Nuffield Hospital using facing brick/render 
panels with a parapet and flat roof to the 2/3 storey elements and metal 
cladding to express the vertical circulation cores and to the 4th storey element 
which has a pitched roof. The design and access statement suggests that the 
building adopts the form of the industrial buildings of the Rowntree complex 
and specifically the Nuffield hospital building. 
 
4.11 Both PPS1 and PPS4 says that  new developments should secure high 
quality and inclusive design which takes the opportunities available for 
improving the character and quality of the area and the way it functions. Policy 
GP1 of the Local Plan  includes the expectation that development proposals 
will respect or enhance the local environment and be of a density, layout, 
scale, mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring buildings and 
spaces. PPS5, in the accompanying practice guide acknowledges that the 
views into and out of the conservation area are an important consideration.  
 
4.12 The application site has a varied visual context; the Haxby Road frontage 
has  distinctive industrial design associated with the former use of the area by 
the Rowntree factory. The north, south and east is domestic scale 
development of varying ages. The design of the scheme very much aligns 
itself with the design of the industrial qualities of the surrounding development 
and there is as much legitimacy for this approach as for the alternative 
approach of a more domestic design approach. In the context of policies the 
issue is whether the design undermines the character and qualities of the 
area, respects the local environment or detracts from views into or out of the 
conservation area.  
 
4.13 The building is set back from Haxby Road and from this vantage point 
the main visual references are the existing former industrial buildings (now 
Nuffield Hospital). In this context the proposed building will not, in officer's 
view, be out of character with its surroundings. The domestic properties to the 
north, east and south are less visually related to the site because of the 
planting to the site boundaries and the intervening rear access roads. Taking 
reference for the design from these structures is not necessarily a more 
legitimate approach than that taken by the architect and may make it difficult 
for the applicant to achieve the level of floor space required on site. In 
Officer's opinion the scheme has evaluated its surroundings and identified a 
design that has regard to the character and qualities of the area. Subject to 
the conditions as suggested by the Conservation Officer the form of 
development would be it is felt be appropriate for the site. 
 
4.14 The application is supported by a landscaping scheme and Arboricultural 
report. The Landscaping scheme seeks to retain existing boundary planting 
and to enhance this planting. New trees are proposed to the west and eastern 
boundaries and existing hard surfacing around the new building is to be 
replaced with grassed areas, new shrub planting and patio areas. The 
application has been amended since first submission to pull the building away 
from planting on the northern boundary, incorporate more trees in to the car 
park area and to the east and west boundaries. Drainage runs have been 
relocated from under tree canopies. Protective fencing is proposed during the 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 9 of 20 

construction period. The alteration of the building on the northern side 
overcomes some of the concerns of the Landscape Architect. However some  
concern remains about the overshadowing of the main garden area to the 
south of the care home by existing trees and hence the usefulness of the 
garden as an outside space. The applicant's agent takes a different view on 
this garden area. In their experience the garden will not be used significantly 
by residents, but residents will be able to look out at the trees from the 
communal areas and bedrooms providing them with a pleasant outlook. 
 
4.15 There are no planning policy requirements for minimum garden areas, 
garden orientation or provision of outdoor facilities for care homes. 
Nonetheless, the landscaping both existing and proposed and the space 
around the development will provide a good setting for the building and 
Officers are satisfied with the principles  of the proposed landscaping scheme. 
Conditions are proposed to ensure that existing planting is protected during 
construction and that the landscaping scheme submitted is properly detailed 
and implemented. 
 
HIGHWAYS, ACCESS AND PARKING  
 
4.16 Access to the development is from Haxby Road via an existing access 
which also serves Nuffield Hospital. The proposal includes 19 car parking 
spaces, 16 covered and secure cycle spaces and three Sheffield hoops for  
visitor cycle parking. The parking area is located on the north-west side of the 
building adjacent to the former sweet shop building used by Rowntree and 
now housing plant associated with the Nuffield hospital. 
 
4.17 The supporting information with the planning application is based upon 
nationally recognised TRICS data and the applicant's experience of running a 
number of these types of homes. From this information it can be ascertained 
that the expected levels of traffic generation are low, in the region of 8 
movements during the peak network periods, and are unlikely to have a 
material impact on the surrounding highway network. Access to the site is via 
the existing junction onto Haxby Road, which is also used by the Nuffield 
Hospital. The access arrangements are considered suitable to serve the level 
of development proposed. 
 
4.18 The site will employ in the region of 80 to 90 staff; however due to staff 
shift patterns and the differing nature of roles (clerical/nurses/maintenance 
etc) the expected maximum number of staff on site at any one time is 
approximately 15 to 20. Car parking levels are therefore realistic and will be 
supported by the aims of a travel plan which will further seek to reduce car 
borne trips generated by the site. 
 
4.19 The site can be considered to be in a sustainable location and is well 
served by bus stops served by frequent public transport services on Haxby 
Road, footways and cycle ways.  
 
4.20 Highway Network Management raise no objections to the application 
subject to conditions which ensure the proper implementation of the 
development, cycle parking provision and travel plan. 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 10 of 20 

 
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
4.21 Existing residential development is located to the north, south and east of 
this proposed site. To the south are two storey Victorian terrace properties 
located on Kitchener Street. The properties are separated from the site by a 
rear alley approximately 3 metres wide. To the west, located on Huntington 
Road are more modern terraced properties. The properties have a shared 
vehicular access to the rear and are at a lower level than the application site. 
To the north at the rear of Haley's Terrace there is a pair of semi-detached 
properties. All the surrounding properties have main rear elevations facing the 
site.  
 
4.22 The foot print of the building is such that to the north there will be a two 
storey end elevation of the building facing the boundary at a distance of 
between 7 and 8.5 metres. This end elevation, which is 16.5 metres wide and 
has within it two bathroom windows, a ground floor door and first floor 
stairway windows, is two storey height with maximum height of 6.6 metres. 
The distance between the rear face of the properties to the north and the 
building will be approximately 16.5 metres. To the southern boundary one of 
the main elevations of the building is proposed. This elevation runs 47 metres 
parallel with the boundary, the main part of the elevation is 3 storeys high but 
also there is a fourth storey provided on the roof which joins in to the main 
structure along the elevation so that along the length of the elevation the 
height of the building varies between 9.5 metres and 10.7 metres. The 
remaining part of the fourth storey is set back from the roof line by 1 to 2 
metres and itself stand 2.1 metres  high to eaves and 3.6 metres high to apex. 
The main bedroom windows face this boundary as well as some of the 
communal areas. The building is between 11 and 13 metres from the southern 
boundary with a single storey element and first floor balcony being  8 metres 
from the boundary. The distance between properties on Kitchener Street and  
the main face of the building is between 23 and 25 metres (this discounts the 
ground floor outriggers to the properties). To the western boundary the end 
elevation of the eastern wing of the building faces the site at a distance of 
between 11.5 and 12 metres, the elevation stands 9.5 metre high and is 11.5 
metres wide. The distance between the properties and the building on this 
side is  between 24 and 26 metres. 
 
4.23  From the above analysis the distance on all boundaries between the 
building and the properties is considered to ensure the amenity of the 
residential properties will not be unduly affected by the development;  
furthermore  all boundaries are reasonably well screened by existing planting, 
and to the east and south the site is separated from the houses by  
intervening access roads. GP1 of the Local Plan requires that developments 
should  ensure residents living nearby are not unduly affected by noise, 
disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or dominated by overbearing 
structures. Whilst it is clear that the structures will be visible to adjacent 
residents and that the overall outlook from the rear of their properties will be 
changed, the details of the scheme are considered to provide an acceptable 
relationship between  existing and proposed development sufficient to accord 
with the requirements of GP1.  

Page 22



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 11 of 20 

 
4.24 Environmental Protection are not objecting to the application but require 
a number of condition relating to the detail of the development to ensure 
neighbours are not affected by the development. Issues covered by condition  
include  Construction Environmental Management plan,  noise from plant and 
machinery, internal noise levels, odour from kitchens, contamination and  
external lighting. 
 
POLICY H17 CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.25 Policy H17 only supports residential institutions where there development 
would not give rise to a concentration likely to have an adverse impact on 
residential amenity and where it is positively located relative to local facilities 
and public transport. Officers have examined appeal cases where this issue 
has been considered and it appears that there is little support for refusal on 
the basis of a lack of local facilities. In the main this is because the registering 
authority for care homes (Care Quality Commission) considers this issue 
through the licensing process. Consideration of the issue through the planning 
process would, therefore, merely duplicate controls that already exist under 
licensing legislation. Furthermore paragraph 65 of circular 3/2005 states that 
in relation to care homes that have to be registered, registration can be 
refused on the grounds that the home would not provide adequate services or 
facilities reasonably required by residents or patients. However in the case of 
this development the site is close to Haxby Road which is well served by 
public transport and it is a short walk down the road to local shops. The care 
home location is considered to be well located in terms of local facilities. City 
Development is not objecting to the principle of the development and has not 
identified a concentration of care home schemes within the area. The 
application is considered to accord with the requirements of Policy H17.  
 
BIODIVERSITY 
 
4.26 The Countryside Officer acknowledges that the site as existing provides 
little of nature conservation value. However the development provides 
opportunities to provide wildlife habitat enhancement works. The design of the 
building should include measures  for habitat enhancement especially for bats 
and birds. Use of British native landscaping within the planting scheme will 
also help increase the wildlife value of the site. The requirements of the 
Countryside Officer are legitimate planning considerations within the context 
of PSS 9, and a condition is proposed to ensure the measures suggested are 
incorporated in to the design and landscape for the development. 
 
 
DRAINAGE 
 
4.27 The site is in flood zone 1 and should not suffer river flooding.   
Engineering Consultancy considers that insufficient and conflicting information 
has been provided to determine the potential impact the proposal may have 
on the existing drainage systems. Whilst it is considered that there has been 
enough information submitted to show that the site can be drained and that 
outstanding issues can be subject to conditions, an update will be provided to 

Page 23



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 12 of 20 

committee providing details of conditions and any additional information 
submitted by the applicant to address the concerns of raised.  
 
4.28 The Environment Agency is not objecting subject to a sustainable 
drainage condition being imposed on any permission granted.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY 
 
4.28 The application is supported by a sustainability statement which commits 
to the principles set out in Policy G4a of the Local Plan and the IPS on 
sustainable design and construction. It is proposed to condition the application 
to require a BREEAM 'very good' rating is achieved and to ensure 10% of 
energy generated for the building is from renewable sources. The 
Sustainability Officer's comments on the proposals are awaited and will be 
reported direct to Committee. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The site is located within the built area of the city as defined in the City of 
York Draft Local Plan. The site has previously been used for industrial 
purposes in connection with the former use of the site by Nestle/Rowntree and 
is currently used as a car park. Originally allocated for employment use, the 
site has not been included as employment land within the employment land 
review and its retention as employment land is not required. PPS4 says Local 
Planning Authorities should be supportive of economic development subject to 
the detailed design of the scheme. There are no policies in the Local Plan that 
would  preclude the use of the site for a residential care home subject to the 
details of the scheme being acceptable.  The principle of the development is 
therefore considered to be acceptable. 
 
5.2  In Officers’ opinion the scheme has evaluated its surroundings and 
identified a design that has regard to the character and qualities of the area. 
The  building  takes reference for its design from its surroundings as required 
by Government Guidance and Local Plan policies. In terms of landscaping 
there are no planning policy requirements for minimum garden areas, garden 
orientation or provision of outdoor facilities for care homes. The landscaping 
both existing and proposed will provide a good setting for the building and 
officers are satisfied with the principles  of the proposed landscaping scheme. 
Conditions are proposed to ensure that existing planting is protected during 
construction and that the landscaping scheme submitted is properly detailed 
and implemented. 
 
5.3 Highway Network Management raise no objections to the application 
subject to conditions which ensure the proper implementation of the 
development, cycle parking provision and travel plan. 
 
5.4 The distance on all boundaries between the building and the adjoining 
residential properties is considered to ensure the amenity of the properties will 
not be unduly affected by the development; furthermore all boundaries are 
reasonably well screened by existing planting and to the east and south the 
site is separated from the houses by  intervening access roads. GP1 of the 

Page 24



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 13 of 20 

Local Plan requires that developments should  ensure residents living nearby 
are not unduly affected by noise, disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or 
dominated by overbearing structures. Whilst it is clear that the structures will 
be visible to adjacent residents and that the overall outlook from the rear of 
their properties will be changed the details of the scheme are considered to 
provide an acceptable relationship between existing and proposed 
development sufficient to accord with the requirements of GP1.  
 
5.5 Additional drainage details are awaited and conditions and further 
comments will be reported direct to committee. 
 
5.6 The comments of the Sustainability Officer are awaited. 
 
5.7 In all other respects the application is considered to be acceptable subject 
to appropriate conditions. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following plans and other submitted details:- 
 
L3066 (9-)902 Rev C 
L3066 (- -)21 Rev C 
L3066 (- -)22 Rev C 
L3066 (- -)13 Rev D 
L3066 (- -)20 Rev C 
L3066 (9-)904 Rev A 
L3066 (- -)25 Rev B 
L3066 (- -)23 Rev B 
L3066 (- -)12 Rev D 
L3066 (- -)11 Rev D 
L3066 (- -)10 Rev D 
L3066 (9 -)901 Rev B 
L3066 (5 -)500 Rev A 
11081 - 166 - Topographical survey 
2212/3 Revision B 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 
carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3  VISQ7  Sample panel ext materials to be approv  
 
4  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app  
 
 5   Prior to commencement of the development, an Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for minimising the creation of noise, 

Page 25



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 14 of 20 

vibration and dust during the demolition, site preparation and construction 
phases of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. All works on site shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
  
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents  
 
 
 6  All construction and demolition  works and ancillary operations, 
including deliveries to and despatch from the site shall be confined to the 
following hours: 
 
  Monday to Friday    08.00 to 18.00 
  Saturday      09.00 to 13.00 
  Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents 
 
 7  Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or 
located on the development hereby permitted, which is audible at any 
business, residential or hotel accommodation, shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority for written approval.  These details shall include maximum 
(LAmax(f)) and average sound levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and 
any proposed noise mitigation measures.  All such approved machinery, plant 
and equipment shall not be used on the site except in accordance with the 
prior written approval of the local planning authority.  The machinery, plant or 
equipment and any approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully 
implemented and operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be 
appropriately maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents and occupants of the care 
home 
 
 8  The building envelope shall be constructed so as to provide sound 
attenuation against externally generated noise to achieve internal noise levels 
of not more than 30dB(A) Leq 8 hour from 11.00pm to 7.00am, 45 dB(A) 
Lmax between 11.00pm and 7.00am, and 35dB(A) Leq from 7.00am to 
11.00pm in all bedrooms of the development, with alternative methods of 
ventilation where required. The detailed scheme shall be approved in writing 
by the local planning authority and fully implemented before the development 
hereby approved is constructed. All works which form part of the scheme shall 
be completed before any part of the development is occupied. The works 
provided as part of the approved scheme shall be permanently retained and 
maintained as such except as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The aforementioned written scheme shall demonstrate that the 
noise levels specified will be achieved. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupants 
 

Page 26



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 15 of 20 

 9  Upon completion of the development, delivery vehicles shall be 
confined to the following hours 
 
 Monday to Saturday   07.00 to 23.00 
 Sundays and Bank Holidays 9.00 to 18.00  
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of future residents and local neighbours 
 
 
10  There shall be adequate facilities for the treatment and extraction of 
cooking odours from kitchens in the care home. Details of the extraction plant 
or machinery and any filtration system required shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for written approval. Once approved it shall be installed 
and fully operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be 
appropriately maintained thereafter. 
  
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
11  Prior to the commencement of the development or within such longer 
period as may be agreed in writing prior to commencement  full details of all 
external lighting including a full Lighting Impact Assessment for all proposals, 
undertaken by an independent assessor (not the applicant or the lighting 
provider), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The Lighting Impact Assessment shall include the following: 
 
- A description of the proposed lighting: number of lighting columns and their 
height, and proposed lighting units. 
- Drawings showing the illuminance levels (separate drawings for each item 
listed): 
- A plan showing horizontal illuminance levels(Eh), showing all buildings within 
100 metres of the site boundary 
- A plan showing vertical illuminance levels (Ev), showing all buildings within 
100 metres of the site boundary. 
- A specification of the Environmental Zone of the application site, as defined 
in The Institution of Lighting Engineers’ Guidance Notes for the Reduction of 
Light Pollution. 
- A statement of the need for floodlighting. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents. 
 
12  Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development 
other than that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of 
remediation must not commence until parts a to c of this condition have been 
complied with:  
 
a. Site Characterisation  
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided 
with the planning application, must be completed in accordance with a 
scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, 
whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The 

Page 27



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 16 of 20 

investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons 
and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of 
the findings must include:  
 
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including 

ground gases, where appropriate);  
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:  
  -human health,  

 -property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, 
pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,  

  -adjoining land,  
  -groundwaters and surface waters,  
  -ecological systems,  

- archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 
(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred 

option(s). 
   
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency’s ‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, 
CLR 11’.  
 
b. Submission of Remediation Scheme  
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended development by removing unacceptable risks to human health, 
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must 
be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site 
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not 
qualify as contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  
 
c. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme  
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its 
terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to 
carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks 
written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be 
produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of 
the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 
neighbours and other offsite receptors.  

Page 28



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 17 of 20 

 
C2 Reporting of Unexpected Contamination  
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in 
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the 
previous condition, and where remediation is necessary a remediation 
scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the 
previous condition.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of 
the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 
neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
13  HWAY40  Dilapidation survey  
 
14  The site shall not be occupied until a Full Travel Plan has been 
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The travel 
plan should be developed and implemented in line with local and national 
guidelines. The site shall thereafter be occupied in accordance with the aims, 
measures and outcomes of said Travel Plan.  
 
Within 12 months of occupation of the site a first year travel survey shall have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Results of yearly travel surveys shall then be submitted annually to the 
authority's travel plan officer for approval. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development complies with advice contained in 
PPG13 (Transport), and in policy T20 of the City of York deposit Draft Local 
Plan, and to ensure adequate provision is made for the movement of vehicles, 
pedestrians, cycles and other forms of transport to and from the site, together 
with parking on site for these users. 
 
15  Prior to the commencement of any works on the site, a detailed method 
of works statement identifying the programming and management of site 
clearance/preparatory and construction works shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a statement shall 
include at least the following information; 
- the routing that will be promoted by the contractors to use main arterial 
routes and avoid the peak network hours 
- where contractors will park 
- where materials will be stored within the site 
- details of how the car parking area will be managed during the construction 
period to ensure adequate car parking remains 

Page 29



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 18 of 20 

- measures employed to ensure no mud/detritus is dragged out over the 
adjacent highway. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development can be carried out in a manner that 
will not be to the detriment of amenity of local residents, free flow of traffic or 
safety of highway users. 
 
16  HWAY21  Internal turning areas to be provided  
 
17  HWAY18  Cycle parking details to be agreed  
 
18  HWAY19  Car and cycle parking laid out  
 
19  No development shall take place until details have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Council of the measures  to be provided within 
the design of the new building and landscaping to enhance the biodiversity of 
the site. The works shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
details in accordance with a timescale to be agreed in writing as part of the 
submitted scheme.  
 
NB. Features suitable for incorporation include measures for species that use 
buildings such as bats and birds and enhancement of the existing landscape 
areas that form the boundaries of the site. 
 
Reason: This is proposed to take account of and enhance the habitat and 
biodiversity of the locality in accordance with PPS9 'Biodiversity and 
Geological Conservation'. 
 
20  No development shall take place until there has been submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscape 
scheme which shall include the species, density (spacing), stock size, and 
position of trees, and details of ground preparation. This scheme shall be 
implemented within a period of six months of the completion of the 
development.  Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development, die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority 
agrees alternatives in writing. This also applies to any existing trees that are 
shown to be retained within the approved landscape scheme. Any works to 
existing trees that are protected by a tree preservation order (TPO) or are in a 
conservation area are subject to local authority approval and notification 
respectively within and beyond this five year period. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the 
variety, suitability and disposition of species within the entire site, since the 
landscape scheme is integral to the amenity of the development. 
 
21  No development shall take place, including demolition, site clearance 
and the installation of utilities, until there has been submitted and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a method statement regarding 
protection measures for the existing trees to be retained. This statement shall 

Page 30



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 19 of 20 

include the following: details and locations of protective fencing to BS 
5837:2005 to be shown on a plan; phasing of demolition/clearance and 
landscape works; type of machinery/vehicles to be used (including 
excavators); parking arrangements for site vehicles; locations for off-loading 
and storage of materials; location of site cabin.  
 
The protective fencing line shall create exclusion zones that will be adhered to 
at all times during operations associated with the development. None of the 
following activities shall take place within the exclusion zones: excavation 
below existing surface construction, raising of levels, mechanical cultivation, 
storage of any materials or top soil, lighting of fires, parking or manoeuvring of 
vehicles, mixing of cement, disposing of washings, storage of fuel. Within the 
exclusion zone there will be no new trenches or pipe runs for utilities or drains, 
and no site huts et al. The fencing shall remain secured in position throughout 
the demolition and construction process. A notice stating ‘tree protection zone 
- do not remove’ shall be attached to each section of fencing. All contractor’s 
staff on site shall be made aware of the content of the method statement and 
its gravity. 
 
Reason: To ensure protection of existing trees before, during and after 
development which are covered by a Tree Preservation Order and/or make a 
significant contribution to the amenity of the area and/or development. 
 
22  The development hereby approved shall be constructed to a BREEAM 
standard of 'very good'. A formal Post Construction assessment by a licensed 
BREEAM assessor shall be carried out and a copy of the certificate shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the building. 
Should the development fail to achieve a 'very good' BREEAM rating a report 
shall be submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority 
demonstrating what remedial measures shall be undertaken to achieve a 'very 
good' rating. The remedial measures shall then be undertaken within a 
timescale to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of achieving a sustainable development in 
accordance with the requirements of GP4a of the City of York Development 
Control Local Plan and the Interim Planning Statement  'Sustainable Design 
and Construction'  
 
23  No building work shall take place until details have been submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate how the 
development will provide, from on-site renewable energy, 10 per cent of the 
developments predicted energy demand. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the submitted details unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented before first occupation of the development. The site thereafter 
shall be maintained to at least the required level of generation. 
 
Reason: In the interests of achieving a sustainable development in 
accordance with the requirements of GP4a of the City of York Development 
Control Local plan and the Interim Planning Statement  'Sustainable Design 
and Construction'  

Page 31



 

Application Reference Number: 10/01677/FULM  Item No:4a 
Page 20 of 20 

 
24  Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage scheme for 
the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the 
hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall  subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is completed. 
 
The scheme shall also include:- 
 - a minimum of 30% reduction in surface water discharge for any new 
development from the site 
- a design that ensures that storm water resulting from a 1 in 100 year event 
and surcharging the drainage system can be stored on the site without risk to 
people or property and without overflowing into the watercourse 
-  details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed after 
completion 
 
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding to improve and protect 
water quality, improve habitat and ensure future maintenance of the surface 
water drainage system. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Diane Cragg Development Management Officer (Mon/Tues) 
Tel No: 01904 551351 
 

                                                                                           

Page 32



A

A

A

E

E

F

A

F
F

F

E

F

E

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

Nuffield Hospital, York
10/01677/FULM

City of York Council

Planning and Sustainable Development

16 November 2010

1:1250

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



PLANS LIST ITEM 4A - UPDATE FOR COMMITTEE, 25 NOVEMBER 2010 
NUFFIELD HOSPITAL YORK, HAXBY ROAD, YORK 10/01677/FULM 
 
Paragraph 4.27 - Drainage raise no objections subject to drainage 
conditions. Drainage are satisfied with the condition suggested by 
the Environment agency (condition 24) with slight amendments  
 
Condition 24 amended as follows: - 
 

 Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage 
scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and 
an assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of 
the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details before 
the development is completed. 
 
The scheme shall also include: - 
 - A minimum of 30%reduction in surface water discharge for 
any new development from the site 
- A design that ensures that storm water resulting from a 1 in 
100 year event and surcharging the drainage system can be 
stored on the site without risk to people or property and without 
overflowing into the watercourse. Proposed design must also 
include an additional 20% allowance for climate change.  
-  Details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed 
after completion 
- The development should not be raised above the level of 
the adjacent land, to prevent runoff from the site affecting 
nearby properties. 

 
 
Paragraph 4.28 - The Sustainability Officer is satisfied with the 
detail of the sustainability information in the application. BREEAM 
condition and 10% renewables  are conditions 22 and 23 on the 
committee report. 
 
The approved plans condition (Condition number 2) has been 
amended to update plan numbers 
 
The City Archaeologist confirms that the site lies outside the Area of 
Archaeological Importance and in an area which has produced 
evidence for prehistoric activity and stray finds of Romano-British 
date. The development proposal may have an effect on 
archaeological deposits which might be preserved within the 
boundaries of the site.  Therefore, an archaeological watching brief 

Page 35



on all ground works for the development will be necessary. Arch 2 is 
already attached as condition 25 on the agenda. 
 
An additional condition is proposed to ensure the quality of the 
detail to the heads sill and coping/eaves detail of the roof of the 
building as follows: - 
 
Large-scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development and the works shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
- Eaves 
- Heads, sill and reveals to all window types as appropriate 
- Coping to flat roof 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with 
these details. 
 
                                                                                                             

Page 36



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 1 of 8 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 25 November 2010 Ward: Heslington 
Team: Major and Commercial 

Team 
Parish: Heslington Parish Council 

 
Reference: 10/02140/REM 
Application at: Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane And 

Low Lane  A64 Trunk Road And Hull Road York   
For: Erection of social and catering building with access and cycle 

parking 
By: University Of York 
Application Type: Approval of Reserved Matters 
Target Date: 1 December 2010 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 This is a reserved matters application for the erection of a social and catering 
building (site area 0.36ha) within cluster 2 of the new campus at Heslington East.  
The application is pursuant to outline planning permission 04/1700/OUT, granted by 
the secretary of state in June 2007 for the development of a university campus.  The 
social and catering building is the first cluster 2 application to be put before 
members. 
 
1.2 The building would be approximately 33m long, 27m wide and 8m high.  Total 
floorspace would be 1039sqm spread over two levels - ground floor and mezzanine.  
The building would include a licensed bar, bistro, coffee bar and a range of seating 
areas for dining, drinking and informal study.  It would trade up to 11pm, seven days 
a week.  The building has the capacity to hold up to 400 people, including staff.  The 
building would be broadly rectangular in shape with a flat roof punctuated by a 
lantern and a series of vent flues.  Around the perimeter at ground level would be a 
covered walkway.  Materials would be similar to those used on cluster 1 and 
comprise clear glass panelling, coated aluminium, painted render and treated timber 
cladding.  Vehicular access would be via the central vista loop road to a service 
entrance and detached bin store along the north-west elevation.  One disabled 
parking bay and Sheffield stands for 40 bicycles would be provided for visitors.  
 
1.3 The building would be located on the east side of the central vista opposite 
the hub building (in cluster 1 to the west).  Between the two buildings will be the 
central square, which will be laid out as a later phase of development.  To the north, 
east and south will be academic and residential buildings in cluster 2. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints:  East Area (1) 0003 

Agenda Item 4bPage 37



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 2 of 8 

2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CGP15A 
Development and Flood Risk 
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
  
CYED9 
University of York New Campus 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL  
 
3.1 Highway Network Management - No objections in principle but the access for 
service vehicles should be revised to remove conflicts with pedestrians.   
 
3.2 Environment, Conservation, Sustainable Development (Urban Design) – No 
objections to the design and appearance of the building subject to conditions 
requiring submission of materials and design details.  I do have concerns about how 
the building relates to the other buildings in cluster 2 to the east and the proposed 
central square to the west.  These should be addressed as part of the current 
masterplanning of cluster 2. 
 
3.3 Environment, Conservation, Sustainable Development (Landscape) - The 
layout of the building does not encourage drinking/eating activity within the central 
square. Instead it is directed to what is described within the draft master plan as the 
‘Academic Square’. Thus there is insufficient clarity as to how the open spaces within 
this area of the campus will inter-relate and function comprehensively. No objection 
to the area that is to become the central square being given a temporary landscape 
treatment until the neighbouring buildings are fully developed.  However, it is 
important to establish in planning terms how implementation of a detailed design for 
the central square can be secured.  
 
3.4 Structures and Drainage - The site is in flood zone 1 and should not suffer 
from river flooding.  Insufficient information has been provided to determine the 
impact the proposals may have on existing drainage systems.   Nevertheless, now 
that the central lake is in operation drainage details for the building can be made a 
condition of approval.   
 

Page 38



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 3 of 8 

EXTERNAL  
 
3.5 Heslington Forum including Heslington Parish Council - The university gave a 
brief presentation to the forum on 19 July 2010 prior to submission.  No specific 
comments on the proposals were made by forum members 
 
3.6 Public Consultation - The consultation period expires on 24 November 2010.  
At the time of writing this report no representations have been received.  Any that are 
subsequently received will be reported to members at the meeting. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues:- 

• Principle of the Use 
• Design and Relationship to the Central Square 
• Transport  
• Sustainability 
• Drainage  
• Landscape 

 
RELEVANT LOCAL PLAN POLICIES  
 
4.2 Planning Policy Statement 1 (PPS1) sets out the government's overarching 
planning policies.  It sets out the importance of good design in making places better 
for people and emphasises that development that is inappropriate in context or fails 
to take the opportunities available for improving an area should not be accepted. 
 
4.3 PPS25 aims to: ensure that flood risk is taken into account in the planning 
process; avoid inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding; and direct 
development away from areas at highest risk. 
 
4.4 The Draft Local Plan including the 4th set of changes was approved in April 
2005. Policy GP1 - Development proposals will be expected to respect or enhance 
the local environment and be of a density, layout, scale, mass and design that is 
compatible with neighbouring buildings, spaces and vegetation.  
 
4.5 Policy GP4a  - Proposals for all development should have regard to the 
principles of sustainable development.   
 
4.6 GP9 - Where appropriate, development proposals should incorporate a 
suitable landscaping scheme that is an integral part of the proposals; includes an 
appropriate range of species, reflects the character of the area; enhances the 
attractiveness of key transport corridors; and includes a planting specification where 
appropriate. 
 
4.7 GP15a - Developers should ensure that the site can be developed, serviced 
and occupied safely and that discharges from new development should not exceed 
the capacity of existing/proposed sewers and watercourses.  
 

Page 39



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 4 of 8 

4.8 ED9 - The scale, layout and design of the new campus at Heslington East 
should have regard to, inter alia, a comprehensive landscape scheme including 
publicly accessible public open space and a comprehensive network of 
pedestrian/cycle routes between campuses. 
 
4.9 T4 - Seeks to promote cycling and states that all new development should 
provide storage for cycles in accordance with the standards in the local plan. 
 
PRINCIPLE OF THE USE 
 
4.10 The use of the site as part of a new campus was accepted when the 
Secretary of State granted outline consent in 2007.  The use as a social and catering 
building accords with the land use plan approved as part of the outline consent and 
the campus masterplan approved in 2008.  The building is shown on the draft 
indicative masterplan for cluster 2, which is currently being discussed with officers. 
 
DESIGN AND RELATIONSHIP TO THE CENTRAL SQUARE 
 
4.11 The draft masterplan for cluster 2 has only recently been submitted to the 
council.  The draft is unacceptable in its present form and discussions between the 
university and officers are ongoing. Whilst officers would normally expect a 
masterplan to have been agreed before submission of reserved matters the design 
of the social and catering building is acceptable.  It would be light and airy with a 
logical layout and crisp external detailing.  Materials and design details should be 
made conditions of approval.  The design of future reserved matters applications for 
cluster 2 will have to take into account the precedent set by the design of the social 
and catering building. 
 
4.12 The building would face south west thereby addressing movement to and 
from the hub building across the proposed central square.  However, the building’s 
main spill-out space would be to the south east, where the draft masterplan 
proposes 'Academic Square', a lower-order open space.  The central square is an 
important, central element of the new campus.  It was identified as such in the land 
use plan approved by the Secretary of State and is shown on the approved 2008 
masterplan.  The draft masterplan for cluster 2 also shows the central square but the 
indicative arrangement of buildings together with the design of the social and 
catering building suggest that the central square may not function as envisaged in 
the outline consent.  Clarification and reassurance should be sought from the 
university as the draft masterplan for cluster 2 develops.  
 
TRANSPORT 
 
4.13 Pedestrian and cycle links will connect the building to the pedestrian ribbon to 
the north and to the movement spine to the south.  The Sheffield stands for 40 
bicycles would supplement the bicycle stands provided elsewhere within the new 
campus.  The facilities for access are acceptable subject to resolution of conflict 
between service vehicles and pedestrians/cyclists.  At the time of writing revised 
access arrangements had only just been received.  Members will be updated at the 
meeting.  
 

Page 40



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 5 of 8 

SUSTAINABILITY   
 
4.14 The sustainability statement submitted with the application is acceptable.  It 
shows that the building will achieve a BREEAM rating of at least 'very good' and will 
provide at least 10% of its energy from renewable sources. These should be made 
conditions of approval.   
 
DRAINAGE 
 
4.15 The site is in flood zone 1 and should not suffer from river flooding.   Surface 
water from the building would be drained by gravity to the lake along the southern 
side of the site.  The water would be stored in the lake and released at agricultural 
rates into local watercourses.  These arrangements, which apply to the campus as a 
whole, are already approved.  Details of the drainage works as they apply to the 
social and catering building should be made a condition of approval.   
 
LANDSCAPE 
 
4.16  The red line boundary for this application has been drawn fairly tightly around 
the building but it does include part of the proposed central square.  As described 
above this is the key relationship to the building.  The university proposes that the 
square will not be constructed until the proposed landmark building, on the east side 
of the square (and close to the social and catering building), has been developed.  
The rationale for this postponement, which the council accepts in principle, is that the 
final design of the central square is dependant upon the buildings that front onto it.  
In the meantime the university proposes a temporary landscape treatment for the 
central square.  Officers have no objection to this subject to the university clarifying 
how the permanent provision of the central square will be secured.  
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1. The principle of the use of the land for a social and catering building has been 
agreed and outline planning permission granted. The design of the building is 
acceptable subject to conditions regarding materials and other details.  Nevertheless 
the relationship of the building to the proposed central square is unclear and should 
be clarified as part of the masterplanning process. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 1  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the following plans: …………………. [Plans list to be tabled at committee]. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2  Within three months of the commencement of development detailed 
landscaping proposals for the proposed central square shown on the approved site 
location plan, together with that part of the central square within the application site 
shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
scheme shall include the species, density (spacing), and position of trees, shrubs 

Page 41



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 6 of 8 

and other plants; seeding mix, sowing rate, ground levels and swales, hard 
landscaping materials, lighting, litter/recycling bins and street furniture. Where 
appropriate reference shall be made to the relevant sections of the Environmental 
Site Management Plan and/or the Landscape Management Plan. Where required it 
will also include details of ground preparation. This scheme shall be implemented 
within a period of six months of the completion of the development.  Any trees or 
plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the development, 
die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the 
next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless the Local 
Planning Authority agrees alternatives in writing.  
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species within the entire site, since the landscape 
scheme is integral to the amenity of the development. 
 
 3  Within three months of commencement of development, typical external 
details at a scale of 1:20 of the following matters (as shown on approved plan 120 
Rev E) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.  
 
Main entrance 
Colonnade  
Roof lantern 
Typical bays 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the design and external appearance of the building 
 
 4  Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, within 
three months of commencement of development the developer shall submit in writing 
and be approved by the Local Planning Authority a formal pre-design BREEAM 
assessment for the design and procurement stages of the development.  The 
developer shall submit a further BREEAM assessment after construction, at a time to 
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The developer shall submit a 
completion assessment  when issued by the BRE.  All assessments shall confirm the 
minimum 'Very Good' rating anticipated in the preliminary BREEAM assessment 
submitted with the application 
 
Reason: To ensure the development complies with the principles of sustainable 
development 
 
 5  Within three months of the commencement of development full details of the 
following shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority (i) 
measures to reduce energy demand for the building hereby approved, and (ii) 
measures to reduce CO2 emissions to a level lower than required under Building 
Regulations Part L.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development complies with the principles of sustainable 
development. 

Page 42



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 7 of 8 

 6  No building work shall take place until details have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, to demonstrate how the 
applicant will provide, from renewable sources, 10% of the building's total energy 
demand on land within the control of the applicant.  The development shall not be 
occupied until these works have been carried out in accordance with the submitted 
details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority (as part of 
an energy strategy for the Heslington East campus).  Not later than 12 months after 
the building has first been brought into use, the applicant shall submit an Energy 
Statement to the Local Planning Authority, which details the percentage of the 
buildings energy consumption that has been derived from renewable sources. 
Thereafter the Energy Statement shall be submitted on an annual basis unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development 
 
 7  Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings 
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external 
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority within three months of commencement of the development.  The 
development shall be carried out using the approved materials. 
 
Reason:  So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance. 
 
 8  The building shall not be occupied until the cycle parking areas and means of 
enclosure shown on the approved plans have been provided within the site.  These 
areas shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of cycles. 
 
Reason:  To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent 
roads and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours. 
 
 9  Within one month of commencement of development, details of foul and 
surface water drainage works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with 
these approved details. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details for 
the proper drainage of the site and that provision has been made to maintain the 
existing drainage in accordance with policy GP15a of the Development Control Local 
Plan and PPS25 (Development and Flood Risk). 
 
10  No mechanical, electrical, telecommunications or other plant, equipment or 
apparatus (other than as shown on the approved plans) shall be installed on the roof 
of the building without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority). 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the design and external appearance of the building 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

Application Reference Number: 10/02140/REM  Item No: 4b 
Page 8 of 8 

7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to the principle of the use, scale and 
appearance of the building, landscaping, transport, sustainability and drainage and 
constructional impact.  As such the proposal complies with Policies GP4a, GP9, 
GP15A, ED9 and T4 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Kevin O'Connell Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 552830 
 

Page 44



A
cc

es
si

b
le

p
ar

ki
n

g
d

el
et

ed

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 
East Area Planning Sub-Committee Update 

25 November 2010 
 

10/02140/REM 
Social & Catering Building, Heslington East Campus, York 

 
 
 
Revised Conditions  
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the following plans: 001/J received 24 November 2010 and 100/G, 101/E, 
102/C, 120/E, 121 and 110/D received 5 October 2010. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 
carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 
The second is Condition 11, an additional condition, requiring the submission of 
details of the vehicular access for service vehicles and the proposed disabled 
parking space. Discussions between highway colleagues and the university are 
not yet complete, hence the need for the condition. 
 
11. Within one month of commencement of development, details of the 
access, parking and manoeuvring arrangements for service vehicles and of the 
disabled persons parking space(s) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with these approved details. 
  
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety.  
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



 

  
 

 
   

 
Planning Committee 25 November 2010 
 
Report of the Assistant Director (Planning and Sustainable Development) 

 

THREE CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISALS FOR STRENSALL, 
STRENSALL RAILWAY BUILDINGS AND TOWTHORPE VILLAGE 
CONSERVATION AREAS: CONSULTATION DRAFTS 

Summary 

1. This report requests that three separate draft Conservation Area Character 
Appraisals for the neighbouring conservation areas of Strensall (No.23, 
19.16ha), Strensall Railway Buildings (No.31, 1.58ha) and Towthorpe Village 
(No.32, 8.81ha) are approved for public consultation.  Copies of the appraisals 
are in Annex A. 

 Background 

2. Strensall Conservation Area was originally designated in 1979 and was 
extended in 2001 following public consultation. Also in 2001, Strensall Railway 
Buildings and Towthorpe were designated as two new conservation areas 
following the request of Strensall and Towthorpe Parish Council. These 
conservation areas are the subject of 3no separate draft appraisal documents.  
Prior to the production of the draft appraisals the character of these three 
conservation areas had been summarised in conservation statements within 
Appendix B of the City of York Draft Local Plan. 

3. Both Strensall and Towthorpe Village conservation areas were identified as 
“conservation areas at risk” by English Heritage (EH) in 2009 (ref. English 
Heritage’s ‘Heritage At Risk’ information www.english-heritage.org.uk). At 
Towthorpe the significant number of redundant farm buildings was cited as 
being of particular concern; whereas at Strensall general development 
pressures were identified as leading to some loss of special character. Based 
on the findings of EH’s survey, the City of York Council prioritised these 
conservation areas in their rolling programme of producing Conservation Area 
Appraisals for each of their 35 conservation areas. Given the proximity of 
Strensall Railway Buildings within the Parish, it seemed logical to review this 
conservation area at the same time, as appraisal work and consultations could 
run simultaneously saving both time and resources.  The work is being jointly 
funded by Strensall and Towthorpe Parish Council and from the existing budget 
of the Design Conservation and Sustainable Development Section. 

4. The appraisals offer an opportunity to re-assess the character of the designated 

Agenda Item 5Page 53



areas and the extent of their boundaries and to evaluate and record their 
special interest.  New guidance on Planning for the Historic Environment, PPS 
5, advises local authorities to develop a firm evidence base for plan-making 
(policy HE 2) and to use established methods of environmental appraisal to 
better understand the significance of heritage assets such as conservation 
areas. By defining the special architectural and historic interest which makes 
designation justified, development control decisions will be better informed. The 
appraisal should also provide a basis for making sustainable decisions about 
the future of an area through the development of management proposals.  

5. The draft conservation area appraisals are attached at Annex A1, A2 and A3. 
The documents have been developed by a team of independent conservation 
consultants.  The format and content of the report have been discussed with 
officers in the Design Conservation and Sustainable Development Section of 
the City Strategy Directorate and there has been an interim meeting with the 
Parish Council.  

6. If adopted the appraisals would form part of the review process incumbent on 
Local Authorities under section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act. An important element of this process is a 
reassessment of the conservation area boundary. 

7. Each appraisal follows the sequence recommended by English Heritage. The 
first sections (2-4) describe the context and development of the areas and draw 
attention to factors which have contributed to their present day character. 
Section 5 outlines the findings of the boundary reviews. Section 6 describes the 
general character of the areas (as revised). In the case of Strensall four 
different character areas have been identified and each of these is analysed in 
more detail in sections 7-10. The final section of each appraisal outlines issues 
which should be incorporated into future management strategies. 

Boundary Reviews 

8. Strensall - Chapter 5 proposes two areas of extension to the conservation area 
boundary (areas B&C) as shown on the map in Annex B1. It is proposed that 
Areas B and C be added due to their historical significance to Strensall. Area B 
is to the north of Southfields Road, which is an important historic back lane 
defining the rear boundaries of the properties along the main street, and Area C  
includes some impressive properties associated with the railway along Princess 
Road and Moor Lane. A further area was put forward for exclusion from the 
conservation area (area A) due to its modern layout and appearance. For 
reasons related to the historical significance of the block plan it has been 
decided to retain the current boundary position. 

9. Strensall Railway Buildings – Chapter 5 recommends that the boundary be 
extended to include the storage facilities associated with the former railway 
station (Area A, map Annex B2), and to the west the boundary would extend 
around numbers 93-103 The Village. The latter buildings appear contemporary 
with other houses in the area which were developed around the turn of the 
century (C19th-20th) to take advantage of the new railway halt (Area B, map 
Annex B2). 

Page 54



10. Towthorpe Village – Chapter 2 concludes that no areas are considered to be 
included inappropriately within the current boundary and no further areas are 
proposed to be added (map Annex B3). 

Consultation  

11. This report seeks approval for a consultation process to take place.  If Members 
agree the draft appraisals, then a public consultation will be carried out based 
upon the methods used for other conservation areas.  This would take place 
over a six week period in December and January as follows: 

• A letter to consultees including Conservation Area Advisory Panel, the Local 
Ward Members, Strensall and Towthorpe Parish Council, Strensall Local 
History Group and appropriate amenity bodies (see list of consultees in 
Annex C). 

• A single leaflet summarising the three appraisals and boundary changes, with 
a tear-off comments slip, will be distributed to all properties within and 
adjoining the proposed conservation area (approximately 400 households as 
opposed to the whole parish which would be approximately 2372 
households).  The map in Annex D shows the existing Conservation Area 
boundaries, proposed amendments, and suggested delivery area for the 
leaflet.  The Parish Council have kindly offered to assist with the delivery of 
the leaflet. 

• Copies of the appraisal documents will be made available at the Council 
offices 9 St Leonard’s Place, Strensall Parish Office, Strensall Library, The 
Half Moon Public House and The Ship Inn as well as on the Council and 
Strensall and Towthorpe Parish Council websites. 

• Representatives of the Consultants and the City of York Council will attend 
Strensall and Towthorpe Parish Council meeting on 11th January 2011 to 
allow residents to see the documents and talk to the team who will be on hand 
to help with any queries.  We propose to run an exhibition/ drop-in session 
before the start of the meeting, rather than hold a separate event, and 
consider that this along with the delivery area of the leaflet will provide 
sufficient coverage for the Appraisal.   

 
• A press release will be sent to the York Press, and posters advertising the 
exhibition and meeting on the 11th January and also where the appraisals can 
be viewed will be placed in local venues in order to promote it to the wider 
village residents.  An article will also feature in the December/ January parish 
‘Outreach’ magazine which is delivered to each property in Strensall and 
Towthorpe. 

 

Page 55



Options  

12. Option 1 – approve the draft document(s) for consultation purposes and  
approve the method and range of consultation. 

13. Option 2 – amend the draft document(s) and/or change the method and range 
of the consultation process. 

14. Option 3 – do not approve the draft document(s) for consultation.  

Analysis 
 

15. Unless any obvious omissions or inaccuracies can be identified within the draft 
documents, or concerning the consultation process proposed, option 1 would 
allow the consultation process to start in November. Subsequent feedback from 
this process could be assessed comprehensively rather than in stages as 
implied by option 2. Option 3 would halt the statutory process and this should 
only be considered in exceptional circumstances.     

 

Corporate Priorities 

16. The appraisals aim to assist in improving the actual and perceived condition 
and appearance of each of the conservation areas. This aim supports the 
following objectives of the corporate strategy: “thriving city”, “inclusive city” 
“sustainable city”. It would also provide a more informed basis for decision 
making and for policy formulation. 

17. The appraisal would contribute towards the Local Authority’s statutory 
obligations with regard to conservation areas in their control.  

 Implications 

18. Financial – Production of the consultation documents and delivery costs would 
be met by existing budgets and from a significant contribution by the Parish 
Council. 

19. Human Resources (HR) – No known implications. 

20. Equalities – Different formats of the consultation leaflet will be made available 
on request. Documents will be lodged in accessible locations.  

21. Legal – No implications at this stage. 

22. Crime and Disorder – No known implications.  

23. Information Technology (IT) – No implications. 

24. Property – No implications. 

Page 56



 Risk Management 

25. There should be no additional risks. 

 Recommendations 

26. i)  Members are asked to agree Option 1 to approve the 3no draft Conservation 
Area character appraisals  (Strensall,  Strensall Railway Buildings and 
Towthorpe Village), as proposed in Annex A1, A2 & A3, for use as 
consultation documents.   

ii)  Members are also asked to approve the proposed consultation methods. 

Reasons: 

 (1) the documents have been prepared in accordance with current guidance 
from English Heritage. They have adopted a structured approach to the 
assessment process and as consultation documents they are clearly 
written and capable of being amended where required 

(2) the boundary reviews have been carried out in accordance with the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and conform 
with the latest policy guidance on the historic environment - PPS 5 and the 
related practice guide.  

(3) the proposed consultation process would be based on previous practice 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Janine Riley 
Conservation Architect 
Tel 01904 551305 
 
Katherine Atkinson 
Community Planner 
Tel 01904 551694 
 
Design Conservation and 
Sustainable Development 
 

Mike Slater  
Assistant Director (Planning & Sustainable 
Development) 
 
Report 
Approved ü 

Date 12 November 2010 

    

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  none 
 

Wards Affected – Strensall  All  

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 

Page 57



PPS 5   Planning for the Historic Environment  - March 2010 
PPS 5   Historic Environment Planning Practice Guide  - March 2010 
Guidance on conservation area appraisals -  English Heritage 2006 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A1 -  Strensall Conservation Area Appraisal consultation draft 
Annex A2 -  Strensall Railway Buildings Conservation Area Appraisal consultation 

draft 
Annex A3 -  Towthorpe Conservation Area Appraisal consultation draft 
Annex B1 -  Map showing the existing boundary and proposed amendments to 

Strensall Conservation Area  
Annex B2 -  Map showing the existing boundary and proposed amendments to 

Strensall Railway Buildings Conservation Area 
Annex B3 -  Map showing the existing boundary of Towthorpe Conservation Area 
Annex C -  List of consultees  
Annex D –  Map showing the proposed consultation area 
 

Page 58



S
T

R
E

N
S

A
L

L
 C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

  
A

R
E

A
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
  
 

  

In
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
ith

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 

Pa
ri

sh
 C

ou
nc

il 

Page 59



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

ge
 

 
 1 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  2

 
 

 2 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
C

on
te

xt
  

 
 

 
 

 
  3

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

3 
 T

op
og

ra
ph

y 
an

d 
Se

tt
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  4
 

  
  

   
4 

 H
ist

or
ic

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t  

 
 

 
   

   
   

   
 5

 
 5 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

Bo
un

da
ry

 
 

 
 

 
  8

 
   

 
 

6 
G

en
er

al
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1

0 
 

  
7 

 C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
   

   
   

 1
2 

 8 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 1

4 
 9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
  

 
 

   
 

   
 

 
 1

6 
 10

 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d/

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 

 
 

 
 

 
 1

9 
   

 11
 

Fu
tu

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Su

gg
es

tio
ns

 
 

 
 

  
  2

1 
   

 
  

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
Li

st
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
 

 
   St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
1 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

Th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
by

 W
oo

dh
al

l P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
he

 fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 

co
nt

en
t 

w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
es

ig
n,

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Se

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 …
…

...
 

   

Page 60



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

2 

1
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
01

 A
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (L

ist
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

) A
ct

 1
99

0 
as

 a
n 

ar
ea

 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 

in
te

re
st

, (
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

or
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 
w

hi
ch

) i
s 

de
sir

ab
le

 t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 o
r 

en
ha

nc
e.

  S
ec

tio
n 

69
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
Lo

ca
l P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
de

sig
na

te
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

ir
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

an
d 

to
 

fo
rm

ul
at

e,
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
, 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

(S
ec

tio
ns

 7
1 

an
d 

72
 o

f t
he

 
A

ct
). 

 T
he

 A
ct

 p
la

ce
s 

a 
du

ty
 u

po
n 

Lo
ca

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s. 

1.
02

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
is 

a 
hi

st
or

ic
 v

ill
ag

e,
 lo

ca
te

d 
to

 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 1
). 

 T
he

 
St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
w

as
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
in

 1
97

9 
an

d 
w

as
 e

xt
en

de
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

in
 2

00
1t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
ri

ve
rs

id
e 

pa
st

ur
e 

la
nd

 a
nd

 
pa

dd
oc

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h-

w
es

t, 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

al
on

g 
W

es
t 

En
d 

an
d 

so
ut

h 
al

on
g 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 
Ro

ad
 s

ee
 M

ap
 2

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, a
 s

m
al

l a
re

a 
on

 t
he

 e
as

te
rn

 e
dg

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
de

sig
na

te
d 

as
 t

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Ra
ilw

ay
 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

an
d 

th
is 

is 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
of

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

A
pp

ra
isa

l 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

   

1.
03

 
Th

is 
re

po
rt

 c
on

ta
in

s 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
an

d 
is 

in
 fo

ur
 

se
ct

io
ns

.  
Th

e 
fir

st
 p

ar
t 

(C
ha

pt
er

s 
1-

4)
 

se
ts

 t
he

 s
ce

ne
 b

y 
an

al
ys

in
g 

th
e 

hi
st

or
y 

an
d 

ba
se

lin
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

. T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

 5
) 

re
vi

ew
s 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

as
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
an

d 
ex

pl
ai

ns
 t

he
 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 r

ev
isi

on
 o

f i
ts

 
bo

un
da

ri
es

. T
he

 t
hi

rd
 p

ar
t 

de
sc

ri
be

s 
th

e 
ar

ea
 a

s 
re

vi
se

d,
 fi

rs
tly

 in
 g

en
er

al
 t

er
m

s 
(C

ha
pt

er
 6

) a
nd

 t
he

n,
 in

 m
or

e 
de

ta
il,

 a
s 

 
fo

ur
 s

ub
-a

re
as

 (C
ha

pt
er

s 
7-

10
 ).

 T
he

 fi
na

l 
pa

rt
 (C

ha
pt

er
 1

1)
 d

isc
us

se
s 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 a
nd

 
en

ha
nc

e 
its

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

nd
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e.
 

 1.
04

 T
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is 
ba

se
d 

on
 fi

el
d 

w
or

k 
in

 
A

ug
us

t 
an

d 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
10

 a
nd

 is
 

lim
ite

d 
to

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 a

re
as

 v
isi

bl
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 d

om
ai

n.
   

1.
05

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l 

w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
as

 a
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
t 

to
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k'

s 
dr

af
t 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
(in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 s

et
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

) 
by

 t
he

 P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
f C

ity
 o

f 
Yo

rk
 C

ou
nc

il 
 to

 b
e 

in
se

rte
d.

  T
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

ill
 a

lso
 b

e 

us
ed

 t
o 

in
fo

rm
 t

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 L
oc

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

   

M
ap

 1
 

Page 61



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

3 

2
 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 

 2
.0

1 
Th

e 
St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
lie

s 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

5 
ki

lo
m

et
re

s 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e.

  T
he

 c
or

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
on

 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
an

d 
is 

po
sit

io
ne

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
B1

36
3 

an
d 

A
64

 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 1

). 
 T

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

co
ve

rs
 t

he
 h

ea
rt

 o
f t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 o
f t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

). 

2.
02

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

or
e 

of
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 S

t 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
to

 w
es

t, 
fa

rm
la

nd
 u

p 
to

 t
he

 
Ri

ve
r 

Fo
ss

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

on
 b

ot
h 

sid
es

 o
f t

he
 m

ai
n 

ro
ad

, T
he

 V
ill

ag
e,

 
as

 fa
r 

as
 N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
to

 t
he

 e
as

t. 
 

 
 

   
Pl

at
e 

1 
 A

er
ia

l v
ie

w
  

Page 62



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

4 

3
 

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
E

T
T

IN
G

 

3.
01

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
vi

lla
ge

 o
cc

up
ie

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 fl

at
 

op
en

 a
re

a 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s. 

 
Th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 it
se

lf 
is 

su
rr

ou
nd

ed
 b

y 
fie

ld
s 

to
 

th
e 

no
rt

h,
 e

as
t 

an
d 

w
es

t. 
 T

he
se

 a
re

as
 o

f 
op

en
 g

ro
un

d 
en

ab
le

 lo
ng

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 n
or

th
, i

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 t
ow

ar
ds

 t
he

 c
hu

rc
h 

an
d 

M
an

or
 

Fa
rm

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 s

et
 o

n 
sli

gh
tly

 h
ig

he
r 

gr
ou

nd
.  

To
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

St
re

ns
al

l C
om

m
on

 a
nd

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
A

rm
y 

C
am

p.
 

 3.
02

 T
he

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 d

om
in

at
ed

 b
y 

tw
en

tie
th

-c
en

tu
ry

 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 s
ou

th
, w

es
t 

an
d 

ea
st

, t
ho

ug
h 

tr
ee

 fr
in

ge
s 

he
lp

 t
o 

m
iti

ga
te

 
th

ei
r 

ef
fe

ct
.  

To
 t

he
 n

or
th

 li
es

 o
pe

n 
gr

ou
nd

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
ra

l p
ur

po
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
). 

 A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 

se
tt

in
g,

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

, i
s 

co
m

pr
om

ise
d 

by
 t

he
 p

ar
tia

lly
 d

em
ol

ish
ed

 
fo

rm
er

 t
an

ne
ry

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
  A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 
en

cl
os

ed
 b

y 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
 o

nl
y 

th
e 

op
en

 g
ro

un
d 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

re
lie

f t
o 

th
is 

en
cl

os
ur

e.
   

          
 

 

Pl
at

e 
2 

Vi
ew

 w
es

t 
ou

t o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
 

ar
ea

 fr
om

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
N

ew
 B

ri
dg

e 
 

Page 63



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

5 

4
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

 
 

4.
01

 T
he

 n
am

e 
St

re
ns

al
l p

ro
ba

bl
y 

in
di

ca
te

s 
an

 
A

ng
lo

-S
ax

on
 s

et
tle

m
en

t, 
al

th
ou

gh
 t

he
re

 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ct

iv
ity

 in
 o

r 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 
sit

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

at
 e

ar
lie

r 
pe

ri
od

s. 
 P

re
-

hi
st

or
ic

 a
nd

 R
om

an
 r

em
ai

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
fo

un
d 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

it 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

al
w

ay
s 

be
en

 a
 c

on
ve

ni
en

t 
cr

os
sin

g 
po

in
t 

of
 t

he
 

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss
.  

It 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 w
as

 t
he

 s
ite

 o
f t

he
 S

yn
od

 o
f 

W
hi

tb
y,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 in

di
ca

te
 t

ha
t 

it 
w

as
 

al
so

 a
n 

ea
rl

y 
m

on
as

tic
 s

ite
.  

  
 4.

02
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 D

om
es

da
y 

Su
rv

ey
 o

f 1
08

6,
 a

s 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 e
st

at
es

 o
f 

th
e 

A
rc

hb
ish

op
 o

f Y
or

k,
 a

nd
 it

 w
as

 
de

sc
ri

be
d 

as
; “

St
re

ns
ha

le
, S

as
fo

rd
 a

nd
 

Tu
rc

hi
l h

el
d 

fiv
e 

ge
ld

ab
le

 c
ar

cu
ca

te
s 

of
 S

t 
Pe

te
r.

  T
he

re
 is

 la
nd

 fo
r 

tw
o 

pl
ou

gh
s, 

it 
is 

w
as

te
.”

  A
t 

th
is 

ea
rl

y 
pe

ri
od

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 fo
re

st
 o

f 
G

al
tr

es
 t

ha
t 

st
re

tc
he

d 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k.

  
Th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 t
he

 t
hi

rt
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

th
e 

pr
eb

en
da

ri
es

 o
f S

tr
en

sa
ll 

(o
ne

 o
f t

he
 

ca
no

ns
 o

f S
t. 

Pe
te

r’
s, 

Yo
rk

) d
ev

el
op

ed
 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
hu

nt
in

g 
pr

es
er

ve
 o

n 
th

e 
ed

ge
 

of
 t

he
 r

oy
al

 fo
re

st
.  

 4.
03

  
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 (f

or
m

er
ly

 k
no

w
n 

as
 

St
re

ns
al

l H
al

l) 
oc

cu
pi

es
 a

 m
oa

te
d 

sit
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

th
e 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
ce

nt
re

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 e

ar
ly

 
m

ed
ie

va
l p

er
io

d 
(a

nd
 p

os
sib

ly
 e

ar
lie

r)
.  

Pl
at

e 
3 

Vi
ew

 e
as

t 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Pl
at

e 
4 

Vi
ew

 e
as

t 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Th
e 

la
nd

 c
lo

se
 t

o 
th

e 
ha

ll 
w

as
 k

no
w

n 
as

 
C

on
ey

 G
ar

th
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 b
e 

th
e 

sit
e 

of
 t

he
 

fr
ee

 w
ar

re
n 

gr
an

te
d 

to
 G

er
ar

d 
de

 
Vu

ip
pe

ns
 in

 1
29

2 
(‘c

on
ey

’ b
ei

ng
 a

no
th

er
 

na
m

e 
fo

r 
ra

bb
it)

.  
O

th
er

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ea

rl
y 

hi
st

or
y 

of
 t

he
 s

et
tle

m
en

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 

th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f r

id
ge

 a
nd

 fu
rr

ow
 (s

ig
ns

 o
f 

m
ed

ie
va

l p
lo

ug
hi

ng
) a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

. 
 4.

04
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

ha
s 

a 
ty

pi
ca

l m
ed

ie
va

l p
at

te
rn

 o
f 

pr
op

er
tie

s, 
w

ith
 n

ar
ro

w
-fr

on
te

d 
pl

ot
s 

of
 

la
nd

 t
ha

t 
ex

te
nd

 b
ac

k 
on

 e
ith

er
 s

id
e 

of
  a

 
sin

gl
e 

w
es

t-
ea

st
 s

tr
ee

t 
(t

he
 p

re
se

nt
 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

- s
ee

 P
la

te
s 

3 
&

 4
). 

 T
he

 p
lo

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

w
er

e 
bo

un
de

d 
by

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
on

 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

st
re

tc
he

d 
to

 B
ac

k 
La

ne
 

(n
ow

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

). 
 O

th
er

 r
oa

ds
 le

d 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 a
nd

 s
ou

th
.  

Th
e 

ch
ur

ch
 w

as
 a

t 
th

e 
w

es
t 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 

vi
lla

ge
, c

lo
se

 t
o 

th
e 

ha
ll.

  T
he

 m
ed

ie
va

l 
fie

ld
s 

la
y 

on
 b

ot
h 

sid
es

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s, 
w

ith
 c

om
m

on
 la

nd
 (S

tr
en

sa
ll 

C
om

m
on

) 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 v
ill

ag
e.

  T
he

 
in

ha
bi

ta
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 a

lso
 h

ad
 g

ra
zi

ng
 

ri
gh

ts
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 fo
re

st
.  

   
   

   
 4.

05
 T

he
 h

ea
rt

h 
ta

x 
re

tu
rn

s 
fo

r 
16

63
 s

ug
ge

st
 

th
at

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

ar
ou

nd
 4

6 
ho

us
es

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 a

t 
th

at
 d

at
e,

 w
ith

 a
 li

ke
ly

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
20

0.
  T

he
 

en
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 t
he

 m
ed

ie
va

l f
ie

ld
s 

du
rin

g 
Pl

at
e 

5 
St

 M
ar

y’
s 

C
hu

rc
h 

Page 64



th
e 

se
ve

nt
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ei
gh

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ri
es

 
an

d 
a 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
re

 le
d 

to
 a

 s
lo

w
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 t
he

 
siz

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e,

 w
hi

ch
 b

y 
18

01
 h

ad
 a

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 2

97
.  

U
nu

su
al

ly
, t

he
 

en
cl

os
ed

 fi
el

ds
 s

ee
m

 t
o 

ha
ve

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
th

e 
fo

rm
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 o
f t

he
 lo

ng
 n

ar
ro

w
 s

tr
ip

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

 o
f f

ar
m

in
g 

pa
tt

er
ns

 
w

ith
in

 m
ed

ie
va

l f
ie

ld
s. 

 A
lso

, S
tr

en
sa

ll 
C

om
m

on
 r

em
ai

ne
d 

op
en

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
la

te
 

ni
ne

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ry
. 

 4.
06

 A
 s

ch
oo

l w
as

 fo
un

de
d 

in
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

in
 

17
18

-1
9,

 p
ro

ba
bl

y 
on

 t
he

 s
ite

 o
f t

he
 

ni
ne

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

th
at

 h
as

 
re

ce
nt

ly
 b

ee
n 

co
nv

er
te

d 
in

to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
  T

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
w

as
 

co
m

pl
et

el
y 

re
bu

ilt
 b

et
w

ee
n 

18
01

 a
nd

 
18

03
, o

nl
y 

to
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 a

ga
in

 in
 1

86
5-

6 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 5
). 

 
 4.

07
 T

he
 F

os
s 

N
av

ig
at

io
n 

C
om

pa
ny

 w
as

 
fo

rm
ed

 in
 1

79
3 

w
ith

 t
he

 in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 
fo

rm
in

g 
a 

na
vi

ga
bl

e 
lin

k 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 R
iv

er
s 

Fo
ss

 a
nd

 O
us

e 
in

 
ce

nt
ra

l Y
or

k 
no

rt
h 

to
 S

til
lin

gt
on

 M
ill

.  
D

ur
in

g 
17

96
 a

nd
 1

79
7 

tw
o 

lo
ck

s 
an

d 
a 

br
id

ge
 (S

tr
en

sa
ll 

N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

- S
ee

 P
la

te
 

6)
 w

er
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

at
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

hi
s 

w
or

k.
  D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
fir

st
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 
of

 t
he

 n
in

et
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

a 
ca

na
l w

as
 d

ug
 

fr
om

 n
or

th
 o

f S
tr

en
sa

ll 
to

 S
he

ri
ff 

H
ut

to
n 

Br
id

ge
 b

ut
 w

or
k 

th
en

 s
to

pp
ed

.  
St

re
ns

al
l 

Br
id

ge
, d

es
ig

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 e

m
in

en
t 

Yo
rk

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
 Jo

hn
 C

ar
r,

 w
as

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 in
 

17
98

, r
ep

la
ci

ng
 a

n 
ea

rl
ie

r 
br

id
ge

.  
 

 4.
08

 T
he

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ea
rly

 n
in

et
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
ie

s 
ap

pe
ar

 t
o 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
a 

tim
e 

of
 

pr
os

pe
ri

ty
 fo

r 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 a
s 

m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 
ol

de
r 

ho
us

es
 d

at
e 

fr
om

 t
hi

s 
pe

ri
od

.  
A

lso
, 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 n
ew

 r
el

ig
io

us
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
er

e 
er

ec
te

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
Q

ua
ke

r 
m

ee
tin

g 
ho

us
e,

 a
nd

 t
w

o 
M

et
ho

di
st

 c
ha

pe
ls 

(o
ne

 
Pr

im
iti

ve
, t

he
 o

th
er

 W
es

le
ya

n-
Se

e 
Pl

at
e 

7)
.  

Th
is 

pe
rio

d 
m

ay
 a

lso
 h

av
e 

se
en

 t
he

 
es

ta
bl

ish
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 t

an
ne

ry
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

iv
er

, n
ex

t 
to

 t
he

 b
ri

dg
e.

 
 4.

09
 T

he
 o

pe
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 Y
or

k 
to

 S
ca

rb
or

ou
gh

 
ra

ilw
ay

 in
 1

84
5,

 w
hi

ch
 r

an
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
, l

ed
 t

o 
a 

ra
pi

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 t

he
 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 c

an
al

.  
By

 1
85

4 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

, C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 W
es

t 
En

d 
ha

d 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s 

ca
n 

be
 s

ee
n 

fr
om

 
th

e 
fir

st
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
.  

O
nl

y 
th

e 
vi

ca
ra

ge
 a

nd
 it

s 
ou

tb
ui

ld
in

g 
ex

ist
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
.  

In
te

re
st

in
gl

y,
 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

fe
w

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

n 
th

e 
la

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
(id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 

Bu
tt

s 
En

d)
, p

os
sib

ly
 b

ec
au

se
 it

 w
as

 g
le

be
 

la
nd

 a
nd

 la
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ch
ur

ch
 a

nd
 t

he
 

vi
ca

ra
ge

.  
A

lso
, n

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ha

d 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
on

 M
oo

r 
La

ne
 (t

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ow
 k

no
w

n 
as

 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d)

, a
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 m
ap

 
ev

id
en

ce
 in

di
ca

te
s 

th
e 

ex
ist

en
ce

 o
f a

 g
at

e-
ke

ep
er

s 
co

tt
ag

e 
(n

ow
 d

em
ol

ish
ed

) a
t 

th
e 

le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g.
   

 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

6 

Pl
at

e 
8 

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s 

fr
om

 P
ri

nc
es

s 
Ro

ad
 

Pl
at

e 
7 

Fo
rm

er
 C

ha
pe

l, 
C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 

Pl
at

e 
6 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

Page 65



18
52

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 66



19
11

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 67



Pl
at

e 
9 

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h,
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 

Pl
at

e 
11

 H
aw

th
or

n 
M

ew
s 

Pl
at

e 
10

 M
id

 t
w

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 h

ou
sin

g 
on

 
 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 R
oa

d 

4.
10

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
di

d 
no

t 
ex

pa
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 
du

ri
ng

 t
he

 s
ec

on
d 

ha
lf 

of
 t

he
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 a

s 
no

te
d 

in
 5

.0
6 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
ch

ur
ch

 w
as

 r
eb

ui
lt 

in
 1

86
5-

6.
   

A
 

ho
us

e 
(n

ow
 T

he
 P

op
la

rs
 - 

se
e 

Pl
at

e 
8)

 
w

as
 b

ui
lt 

on
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 s
id

e 
of

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
 

at
 it

s 
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 a
nd

 in
 

18
95

 a
 n

ew
 W

es
le

ya
n 

C
ha

pe
l (

th
e 

pr
es

en
t 

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h)
 w

as
 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 9

). 
   

 
 4.

11
 B

y 
ea

rl
y 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 li
tt

le
 h

ad
 

ch
an

ge
d 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a.

  D
uc

k 
La

ne
 a

pp
ea

rs
 

to
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pr

ov
ed

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

be
tt

er
 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
th

e 
Yo

rk
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

ne
w

 h
ou

se
s 

be
ga

n 
to

 a
pp

ea
r 

on
 t

he
 e

as
t 

sid
e 

of
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

 (n
ow

 p
ar

tly
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 - 
se

e 
Pl

at
e 

10
). 

 F
ur

th
er

 h
ou

sin
g 

w
as

 a
lso

 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
al

on
g 

W
es

t 
En

d 
an

d 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 w
as

 e
xp

an
de

d.
  A

t t
he

 e
as

t e
nd

 o
f 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

 fi
ne

 s
in

gl
e 

st
or

ey
 h

ou
se

 
na

m
ed

 M
ea

do
w

sid
e 

(N
o.

 6
9)

 w
as

 b
ui

lt.
   

 4.
12

 B
y 

19
30

 N
o.

 2
 W

es
t 

En
d 

(n
am

ed
 

O
ak

le
ig

h 
at

 t
ha

t 
da

te
) h

ad
 b

ee
n 

bu
ilt

.  
A

lso
, t

he
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
 o

f t
ha

t 
da

te
s 

no
te

s 
th

e 
ex

ist
en

ce
 o

f S
tr

en
sa

ll 
H

al
t 

at
 t

he
 le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g 

on
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

.  
Tw

en
ty

 y
ea

rs
 la

te
r 

th
er

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
al

on
g 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 a

nd
 

by
 t

he
 e

ar
ly

 1
97

0s
 t

he
re

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

in
fil

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

.  
Th

is 
in

cl
ud

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 t

he
 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

 (f
or

m
er

ly
 

Ba
ck

 L
an

e)
 a

nd
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 S

t. 

M
ar

y’
s 

C
lo

se
 a

nd
 C

hu
rc

h 
Vi

ew
 (n

ow
 

W
es

t 
En

d 
C

lo
se

) o
n 

th
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h.
  A

lso
, t

he
re

 h
ad

 
be

en
 c

on
sid

er
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 t

he
 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 c

or
e.

   
  

 4.
13

 B
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 

ho
us

es
 h

ad
 a

lso
 b

ee
n 

bu
ilt

 in
 t

he
 g

ro
un

ds
 

of
 N

o 
69

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

in
fil

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ha

s 
al

so
 o

cc
ur

re
d 

to
 t

he
 

no
rt

h 
of

 T
he

 G
ra

ng
e.

  T
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
tw

en
ty

-fi
rs

t 
ce

nt
ur

y 
sa

w
 a

 r
ap

id
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
in

fil
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

.  
Ex

am
pl

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
ne

w
 

ho
us

in
g 

to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 o
f Y

ew
 T

re
e 

Fa
rm

 
an

d 
H

aw
th

or
n 

M
ew

s 
on

 t
he

 n
or

th
 s

id
e 

of
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
1)

. 
                  

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

7 

Page 68



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

8 

5 
C

O
N

SE
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 

5.
01

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
is 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

 w
he

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

if 
it 

m
ig

ht
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
fo

r 
th

er
e 

to
 b

e 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s. 
 

Th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 
ar

ea
s 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
st

ud
ie

d 
to

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 

w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 n
ew

 a
re

as
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

r 
ex

ist
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

ex
cl

ud
ed

.  
 

  
E

xi
st

in
g 

bo
un

da
ry

 
5.

02
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

on
 M

ap
 2

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
.  

To
 t

he
 n

or
th

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bo

un
da

ry
 

fo
llo

w
s 

th
e 

lin
e 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
(s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
12

) f
ro

m
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

ea
st

 
to

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 a
nd

 B
on

e 
D

ik
e.

  I
t 

th
en

 fo
llo

w
s 

th
e 

lin
e 

of
 B

on
e 

D
ik

e,
 

w
ra

pp
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 n
or

th
-e

as
t 

co
rn

er
 

of
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

, e
xc

lu
di

ng
 N

et
he

rw
oo

ds
, 

an
d 

ru
nn

in
g 

so
ut

h 
do

w
n 

th
e 

w
es

t 
sid

e 
of

 
N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
to

 c
on

ne
ct

 t
o 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
. 

 5.
03

 
Th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

so
ut

h 
ac

ro
ss

 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
he

 S
yc

am
or

e 
Fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
.  

It 
th

en
 r

un
s 

w
es

t 
al

on
g 

Bo
ne

 D
ik

e 
fo

r 
a 

sh
or

t 
di

st
an

ce
 b

ef
or

e 
tu

rn
in

g 
so

ut
h 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
Ye

w
 T

re
e 

Fa
rm

.  
Th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 c

ut
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ba
dg

er
 

C
ot

ta
ge

 a
nd

 r
un

s 
w

es
t, 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
re

ar
 

(s
ou

th
er

n)
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

th
at

 fr
on

t 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

, b
ef

or
e 

it 
tu

rn
s 

so
ut

h 
do

w
n 

th
e 

re
ar

 (e
as

te
rn

) 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ou
se

s 
al

on
g 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 
Ro

ad
. 

 5.
04

 
Th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 t

he
 t

er
ra

ce
d 

ho
us

es
 b

ef
or

e 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

no
rt

h 
up

 t
he

 
w

es
te

rn
 s

id
e 

of
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 

ba
ck

 e
dg

e 
of

 t
he

 fo
ot

pa
th

.  
Th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 in
cl

ud
es

 T
he

 P
op

la
rs

, o
n 

th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
, a

nd
 t

he
 O

ld
 

Vi
ca

ra
ge

, o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
 

op
po

sit
e 

its
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 W

es
t 

En
d.

  
 5.

05
 

Th
e 

bo
un

da
ry

 c
ro

ss
es

 Y
or

k 
Ro

ad
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
13

) a
nd

 r
un

s 
no

rt
h 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ho

us
es

 o
n 

th
e 

ea
st

 a
nd

 n
or

th
 s

id
es

 o
f 

W
es

t 
En

d.
  I

t 
th

en
 t

ur
ns

 n
or

th
, e

xc
lu

di
ng

 
th

e 
Pr

im
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

 fr
om

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

, t
o 

co
nn

ec
t 

ba
ck

 t
o 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 
Br

id
ge

. 
   

P
os

si
bl

e 
al

te
ra

ti
on

s 
5.

06
 

A
 s

m
al

l s
ec

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 fo
r 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 d
ue

 t
o 

its
 la

ck
 o

f 
sp

ec
ia

l a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 in

te
re

st
. T

hi
s 

A
re

a 
is 

an
no

ta
te

d 
as

 A
re

a 
A

 o
n 

M
ap

 2
 in

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 S

t 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

lo
se

 
of

f t
he

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e 

of
 C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
14

), 
N

os
. 5

-1
1 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

, W
es

t 

Pl
at

e 
12

 V
ie

w
 lo

ok
in

g 
ea

st
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss
 

Pl
at

e 
13

 V
ie

w
 n

or
th

 a
lo

ng
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

 

Pl
at

e 
14

  S
t M

ar
y’

s 
C

lo
se

 

Page 69



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
 2

01
0 

9 

En
d 

C
lo

se
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
5)

, N
os

. 4
- 8

 W
es

t 
En

d 
(e

as
t 

sid
e)

 a
nd

 N
os

. 8
-1

6 
on

 t
he

 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

.  
Th

is 
is 

an
 a

re
a 

of
 la

te
 t

w
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

bu
ng

al
ow

s 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
w

o 
sm

al
l c

ul
-

de
-s

ac
s. 

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 “
of

f s
et

” 
br

an
ch

 in
 

th
e 

ro
ad

 a
lig

nm
en

t 
fr

om
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

 
su

gg
es

ts
 t

he
 s

ite
 h

as
 h

ist
or

ic
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 

w
or

th
y 

of
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
  T

he
 r

oa
d 

fr
om

 
Yo

rk
 fo

cu
se

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ch

ur
ch

 
sp

ir
e 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 s

ite
.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 a

-
ty

pi
ca

l p
at

te
rn

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

do
es

 
no

t 
di

sr
up

t 
th

e 
st

re
et

sc
en

e 
as

 it
 is

 
in

te
rn

al
 t

o 
th

e 
ar

ea
.  

Th
e 

ga
rd

en
s 

of
fe

r 
m

at
ur

e 
he

dg
in

g 
an

d 
3 

no
. l

ar
ge

 t
re

es
 a

s 
am

en
ity

 t
o 

th
e 

w
id

er
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ea

st
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 a

lle
y 

to
 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

.  
O

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
it 

ha
s 

be
en

 
de

ci
de

d 
to

 r
et

ai
n 

th
is 

ar
ea

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

   
  5.

07
 

It 
is 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 t

w
o 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  
Th

es
e 

ar
e 

an
no

ta
te

d 
as

 A
re

as
 B

 &
 C

 o
n 

M
ap

 2
. 

 5.
08

 
A

re
a 

B 
is 

on
 t

he
 n

or
th

 s
id

e 
of

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

, a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
hi

st
or

ic
 la

ne
, d

ef
in

in
g 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 r
ea

r 
(s

ou
th

er
n)

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

of
 

th
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
st

re
et

.  
It 

is 
th

er
ef

or
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 t

ha
t, 

al
th

ou
gh

 fe
w

 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 a

re
 o

f s
pe

ci
al

 
Pl

at
e 

17
 N

os
. 9

 &
 1

1 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 

in
te

re
st

, t
he

 h
ist

or
ic

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

ro
ad

 ju
st

ifi
es

 it
s 

in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

6)
. 

 5.
09

 
A

re
a 

C
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 t

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

en
d 

of
 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  P
ri

nc
es

s 
Ro

ad
 a

nd
 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 r

oa
d 

pa
tt

er
n 

of
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ho

us
es

 
re

pr
es

en
t 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
 e

xp
an

sio
n 

of
 t

he
 

ar
ea

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ar

ri
va

l o
f t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
.  

In
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
, N

os
. 5

-1
1 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 a

re
 v

er
y 

go
od

 e
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f l
at

e 
ni

ne
te

en
th

/e
ar

ly
 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 la
rg

e 
vi

lla
 p

ai
rs

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 

17
). 

 It
 is

 a
lso

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

fr
om

 h
ist

or
ic

 
m

ap
 r

ec
or

ds
 t

ha
t 

a 
st

at
io

n 
ha

lt 
an

d 
ga

te
 

ho
us

e 
w

er
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 th

e 
le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g,

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 a

lm
os

t 
ce

rt
ai

nl
y 

on
e 

of
 t

he
 

re
as

on
s 

w
hy

 im
pr

es
siv

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 th

is 
ar

ea
.  

Th
is 

ha
lt 

w
as

 u
se

d 
by

 t
ro

op
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 n
ea

rb
y 

St
re

ns
al

l A
rm

y 
C

am
p 

du
ri

ng
 W

or
ld

 W
ar

 T
w

o.
 

  
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

5.
10

 
In

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

ab
ov

e,
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 A

re
a 

A
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

m
ai

n 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 A
re

as
 B

 &
 C

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
ei

r 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 
w

ith
in

 S
tr

en
sa

ll.
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
15

 W
es

t 
En

d 
C

lo
se

 
  Pl

at
e 

16
 V

ie
w

 w
es

t 
al

on
g 

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

 

Page 70



7

22

11

15

15

O
SM

IN
G

TO
N

 G
D

N
S

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

2

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

MOOR LANE

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

5

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t 
Pi

ts

28

67

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

4

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

96

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41
ST

A
TI

O
N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9

8

Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

4

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

24

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

FB

17
.3

m

16

17

3

61

11

9

44

49

18

1

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone 
Dike

15

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th
1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

41

4

33

18

12

11
0

12

10

10
1

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12

W
ES

T 
EN

D
 C

L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

11

25
32

OAKLA
NDS

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

The Birches

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

86

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

El Sub Sta

14

55

14

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

2

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

24

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

38

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R

W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 2
  -

 C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
   

 A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

north

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

A
RE

A
 A

A
RE

A
 C

A
RE

A
 B

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

A
re

a 
A

 a
ss

es
se

d 
bu

t
re

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e

bo
un

da
ry

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 71



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

10
 

6 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
 

6.
01

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a,
 a

s 
di

st
in

ct
 fr

om
 t

he
 

an
al

ys
is 

of
 t

he
 fo

ur
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
re

as
 t

ha
t 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

(s
ee

 6
.0

9 
be

lo
w

). 
 6.

02
 T

he
 k

ey
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

 o
f t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

is 
th

at
 o

f a
 li

ne
ar

 
vi

lla
ge

 t
ha

t, 
un

us
ua

lly
, h

as
 n

o 
th

ro
ug

h 
ro

ut
e 

at
 it

s 
w

es
te

rn
 e

nd
.  

Th
e 

la
te

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 a

nd
 w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
or

e 
re

su
lts

 in
 s

om
e 

lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 

vi
lla

ge
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 b
ut

 t
he

 r
iv

er
 a

nd
 t

he
 

op
en

 g
ro

un
d 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

 r
et

ai
n 

th
e 

ru
ra

l 
se

tt
in

g 
on

 t
hi

s 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 
 6.

03
 T

he
 fo

rm
 o

f t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ng

 n
ar

ro
w

 p
lo

ts
 o

n 
ei

th
er

 s
id

e 
of

 t
he

 m
ai

n 
w

es
t-

ea
st

 r
oa

ds
, 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 fr

on
tin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

m
an

y 
ou

tb
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 t
he

 lo
ng

 r
ea

r 
ga

rd
en

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

s 
18

 a
nd

 1
9)

.  
Th

es
e 

re
ar

 
ga

rd
en

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
re

lie
f t

o 
th

e 
en

cl
os

ed
 

vi
lla

ge
 s

tr
ee

ts
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 a

re
 m

an
y 

in
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 g
ar

de
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g,
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 t
o 

an
 

ex
te

nt
 e

ro
de

d 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 p

at
te

rn
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a.
 

 6.
04

 T
he

 r
oa

ds
 a

llo
w

 m
ed

iu
m

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 t

he
re

 a
re

 

Pl
at

e 
18

 
Vi

ew
 o

f W
es

t E
nd

 
 Pl

at
e 

19
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
 Pl

at
e 

20
 

Vi
lla

ge
 s

ho
ps

 
 

Page 72



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

11
 

Pl
at

e 
22

 
Tr

ee
s 

al
on

g 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 
 

  6
.0

9 
 T

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

fa
ir

ly
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 a
nd

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

is 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 p

er
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

on
e 

en
tit

y.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 fo
ur

 a
re

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

be
lo

w
 (a

nd
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 M
ap

 3
) d

o 
ha

ve
 

so
m

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

s 
an

d 
ar

e 
th

er
ef

or
e 

an
al

ys
ed

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

in
 t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
se

ct
io

ns
: 

 
! 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 
! 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 
! 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

! 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d/

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 

     
  

      

al
so

 li
m

ite
d 

vi
ew

s 
in

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

ow
ar

ds
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
to

w
er

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 

lo
ca

l l
an

dm
ar

k.
  V

ie
w

s 
fr

om
 t

he
 n

or
th

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
fie

ld
s 

to
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
ar

e 
of

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 im

po
rt

an
ce

. 
 6.

05
 T

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
its

el
f i

s 
a 

bu
sy

 r
ur

al
 s

et
tle

m
en

t 
w

ith
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ho
ps

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

Th
is 

ac
tiv

ity
 g

iv
es

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

en
ab

le
s 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

o 
re

ta
in

 it
s 

vi
lla

ge
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 2

0)
. 

 6.
06

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

pu
bl

ic
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
.  

Th
e 

on
ly

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 S

t 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
(s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
21

) a
nd

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
gr

ou
nd

 a
nd

 
w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

ri
ve

r.
 

 6.
07

  T
he

 m
an

y 
m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e,
 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

ch
ur

ch
, t

he
 

no
rt

he
rn

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

en
ve

lo
pe

 
an

d 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 it

se
lf 

(p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
t 

its
 e

as
t 

en
d)

 s
of

te
n 

th
e 

vi
su

al
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
2)

. 
 6.

08
 T

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

in
cl

ud
es

 
se

ve
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

Li
st

 o
f B

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
f S

pe
ci

al
 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
H

ist
or

ic
 In

te
re

st
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
tw

o 
br

id
ge

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 r
iv

er
 

- s
ee

 P
la

te
s 

6 
&

 2
3)

.  
Li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

. 

Pl
at

e 
21

 G
ro

un
ds

 o
f t

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
 Pl

at
e 

23
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

 

Page 73



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

2

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

5

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t P
its

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

24

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

61

11

9

44

49

18

FO
SS

LA
ND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone D
ike

15

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

11

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3
41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

86

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

14

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

38

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

P
rin

ce
ss

 R
oa

d

T
he

 V
ill

ag
e

M
ap

 3
 -

  C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

re
as

north

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 74



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t P
its

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

11

9

44

49

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone 
Dike

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R

W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 4
 -

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

es

C
om

m
un

ity

C
om

m
er

ci
al

R
es

id
en

tia
l

north

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

H
or

tic
ul

tu
ra

l

E
du

ca
tio

n 
(a

ll 
le

ve
ls

)

R
el

ig
io

us

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 75



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

1

61

1

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t P
its

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
 M

ar
y'

s
C

hu
rc

h

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

11

9

44

49

18

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone D
ike

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

36

Church

Surgery 16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R W
A

Y

2

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 5
  -

  B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

north

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ga

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ut

ra
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 76



7

11

15

15

45

Fo
res

t C
ourt

12

30

5

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

45

15

7

4

2

80

5

51

20

17
.2

m

YO
RK

 R
O

AD
M

P 
.2

5

47

23

51

1

61

1

66a 10
3

8

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

S

The Vicar
age

El

16
.1

m

Ing
s F

arm

51

53

St
re

ns
al

l
17

A
sh

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

69

19

2

10

11

A
pp

le
tr

ee
 H

ou
se

6

St
on

e

2

TOBY COURT

5

Th
e 

W
ill

ow
s

3

19
a 

& 
b

LB

16
a

18

2

11

21

WILKINSON WAY

9

11

33

18
.4

m

66

29

23

7

SHELLEY DRIVE

W
es

t 
Pi

ts

28

37

3

8

RIVERSID
E W

ALK

6

1

10

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

d

18

100

26

11

Po
nd

8

80

3

11

32

Is
su

es

Garage

N
ET

H
ER

W
O

O
D

S

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TC
B

29
45

W
ei

r

15
.9

m

3

11

17
.1

m

7

8

2

23

20

29

Po
nd

21

4a

11

W
ar

10a

10

1

4

H
ou

se

2a

8

Th
e 

Ro
be

rt
 W

ilk
in

so
n 

VC

23

3

16

1

18

C
al

di
e

Po
nd

40

11

25

15

58

78

3

37

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

19

LE
YF

IEL
D C

LO
SE

31

5

18

18
.6

m

NORTHFIELDS

10

93

Drain

Br
an

sd
al

e

Bo
ne

 D
ike

92

41

ST
A

TI
O

N

Pl
um

 T
re

e 
H

ou
se

Po
nd

H
om

e

31
a

Ya
rd

Th
e 

Sh
ip

 In
n

(P
H

)

3

Bl
an

ds

20

51

ST MARY'S CL

47

Drain

9Church Farm

6

10

11

5

29

H
el

m
sd

al
e

The 
Gabl

es

St
on

e

(P
H

)

15

10

TY
N

EH
A

M

64

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Fa

rm

Lit
tle

gar
th

4

Lo
w

ga
rt

h

2

La
w

ns
w

oo
d

1

15

17
.3

m

16

17

11

9

44

49

18

FO
SSL

AND VIEW

12

20

17
.5

m

W
or

ks

54

10

C
RE

A
SE

R 
C

LO
SE

13

LANE

l

10

17

16

LC

Drain

Drain

9

3

11
16

.9
m

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

56

1

Su
b

PO

41

12

1

5

2

Bo
ne

D
ike

Bone D
ike

15

39

20

1

71

TH
E 

VI
LL

A
G

E

58

G
ar

th

1

Th
e 

O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

Br
ac

ke
n 

Lo
dg

e

1

5

72

2

HAWTHORNE MEWS

Th
e

1

LB

7a

14

9

39

2

21

35

16

1

Pu
m

p

18

5 t
o 8

7

1

17
Dra

in

19

56

30

1

6

4

33

12

12

10

10
1

110

15

8

Drain

4

N
ur

sin
g

C
H

U
RC

H
 L

A
N

E

8

Fo
ss

21

9

12
W

ES
T 

EN
D

 C
L

1a

Ye
w

 T
re

e

44

2

35

28

2

7

WEST END

21

18
.2

m

20

31

11

25
32

15

Th
e 

Br
am

bl
es

18

St
on

e

Garden Cottage

6

8

El Sub Sta

K
lo

st
er

s

G
LE

BE
 C

LO
SE

6a
8a

1

H
A

RV
ES

T 
C

LO
SE

17

20

11

1

12

2

15

3

M
O

O
RL

A
N

D
 G

A
RT

H

2

43

23

18

54

9 t
o 1

2

Ex
ch

an
ge

5

72

15

3

Path (um) 42

60

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

13

67

Bl
ue

 F
ir

s

1a

10 to 16

49

2

1

2

23

5

M
id

ga
rt

h

Fa
rm

38

SQ
UARE

NORTHFIELDS

1

H
al

l

Fa
rm

49

C
re

st

RO
A

D

16
.7

m
43

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e

H
ea

lth
 C

en
tr

e

1

ORCHARD W
AY

53

22

1

Li
by

17.9m

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

11

2

8

C
oa

ch

C
hu

rc
h

19

14

26

49

53

2

14
 to

 17

LOW CROFT

33

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Pr
im

ar
y 

Sc
ho

ol

47

5

3

41

1

22
 to

 25

42

28

LY
N

W
O

O
D

6

WESTPIT

35

Te
le

ph
on

e

70

Ri
ve

r F
os

s

1

47

62

120

36
Church

Surgery

17
.6

m

16

Th
e 

Pe
bb

le
s

Th
e

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
s

18.6m

59
25 14

30

M
em

l

33

14

55

HIGHLANDS AVENUE

42

17

H
ea

th
er

 C
ot

ta
ge

2a

5

8

SH
ER

BO
U

RN
E 

G
R

SB

2

21

C
LO

SE

WESTPIT LANE

14

6

7

1

18
 to

 21

W
ES

T 
EN

D

32

St
 M

ar
y'

s

1 t
o 4

2

35

11

WOOD CLOSE

12

36

7

33

2

38

1

LC

12

31

7

Ta
nn

er
y

Ri
ve

r

Bu
ild

er
's

16
.8

m

15

82

M
P 

.5

Drain

40

5

H
ou

se

33

W
or

ks

57

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

10

2

1

72

PRINCESS R
OAD

15

SL

67

62 Th
e

H
alf

 M
oo

n

Th
e 

Po
pl

ar
s

M
P 

6

St
a

G
P

4

Gre
ys

to
ne

s

M
ID

D
LE

C
RO

FT
 D

R

W
A

Y

2

10

Ba
dg

er
 C

ot
ta

ge

M
ap

 6
 -

  S
pa

tia
l a

na
ly

si
s

La
nd

m
ar

ks

M
ed

iu
m

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

Lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

W
at

er

north

P
ub

lic
 F

oo
tp

at
hs

T
re

es

G
at

ew
ay

G
ra

ss
ed

 A
re

a

C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n
A

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

R
e-

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
S

ite

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
S

ite

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 77



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

12
 

7 
C

H
U

R
C

H
 L

A
N

E
 

7.
01

 T
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 c
on

sis
ts

 o
f C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 a

nd
 p

ar
ts

 o
f W

es
t 

En
d 

an
d 

Yo
rk

 
Ro

ad
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 3

). 
   

 7.
02

 T
he

 s
pe

ci
al

 in
te

re
st

 o
f t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 

is 
th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fa
ct

or
s: 

th
e 

tig
ht

 e
nc

lo
su

re
 o

f C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 t
he

 v
isu

al
 d

om
in

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

ch
ur

ch
; t

he
 v

ar
ie

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
of

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 t

o 
Yo

rk
 R

oa
d;

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
. 

  
 U

se
s 

7.
03

 T
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 a
ll 

re
sid

en
tia

l w
ith

 t
he

 e
xc

ep
tio

n 
of

 S
t 

M
ar

y’
s 

C
hu

rc
h 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 4
). 

   
  

Q
ua

lit
ie

s 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

7.
04

 W
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 t
w

o 
lis

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 (s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

): 
St

 
M

ar
y’

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
4)

; a
nd

 N
o.

 3
 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 - 
Be

rw
in

 H
ou

se
, w

hi
ch

 is
 a

 
m

id
-e

ig
ht

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
ho

us
e 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 

25
). 

 M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 o

f a
 

m
od

es
t 

tw
o 

st
or

ey
 h

ei
gh

t. 
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 o
f s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, w

ith
 v

er
tic

al
 

w
in

do
w

 o
pe

ni
ng

s, 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
in

 c
la

m
p-

fir
ed

,  
re

d 
br

ic
k,

 w
ith

 t
ile

d 
or

 s
la

te
d 

pi
tc

he
d 

ro
of

s. 
 T

he
 c

hu
rc

h 
is 

ve
ry

 
di

ffe
re

nt
, h

av
in

g 
a 

co
m

pl
ex

 fo
rm

 w
ith

 a
 

pr
om

in
en

t 
to

w
er

 a
nd

 s
pi

re
.  

 

Pl
at

e 
24

   
St

 M
ar

y’
s 

C
hu

rc
h 

Pl
at

e 
26

   
N

o.
 2

 W
es

t 
En

d 

Pl
at

e 
25

 
N

o.
 3

 C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 (B
er

w
in

 
 

H
ou

se
) 

7.
05

 L
oc

al
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

in
cl

ud
es

 b
ri

ck
 c

am
be

re
d 

or
 

fla
t 

ar
ch

 li
nt

el
s, 

an
d 

de
co

ra
tiv

e 
ba

nd
in

g 
at

 
ea

ve
s 

le
ve

l. 
 S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ea

rl
ie

st
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
al

so
 h

av
e 

tr
ia

ng
ul

ar
 b

ri
ck

 p
an

el
s 

- k
no

w
n 

as
 b

ri
ck

 t
um

bl
in

g 
on

 t
he

ir
 g

ab
le

s. 
 M

os
t 

re
ta

in
 t

he
ir 

or
ig

in
al

 fe
at

ur
es

, s
uc

h 
as

 s
as

h 
w

in
do

w
s 

an
d 

ca
st

 ir
on

 d
ow

np
ip

es
.  

A
lso

, 
w

ith
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
la

rg
er

 o
r 

m
or

e 
pr

om
in

en
t 

de
ta

ch
ed

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
hi

ch
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

he
 e

xp
an

sio
n 

of
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
la

te
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
an

d 
ea

rl
y 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ri

es
.  

Ex
am

pl
es

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
Vi

ca
ra

ge
 a

nd
 N

o.
 2

 W
es

t 
En

d 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
6)

.  
A

ll 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, 
lis

te
d 

or
 n

ot
, c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 

an
d 

th
e 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 

5)
. 

  
Sp

ac
es

 a
nd

 v
ie

w
s 

7.
06

 T
he

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 

is 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

hy
ar

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 s

et
 

be
hi

nd
 a

 t
re

e 
fil

te
r 

al
on

g 
its

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
w

ith
 C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
.  

Th
is 

ch
ur

ch
ya

rd
 

co
ns

ist
s 

of
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
gr

as
s 

an
d 

m
em

or
ia

l 
st

on
es

. 
 7.

07
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

vi
ew

 n
or

th
 a

lo
ng

 
W

es
t 

En
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 c
hu

rc
h 

to
w

er
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
27

). 
 N

o.
 2

 W
es

t 
En

d 
as

 a
 m

in
or

 
la

nd
m

ar
k 

bu
ild

in
g 

on
 Y

or
k 

Ro
ad

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 v
ie

w
s 

lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h.
  S

om
e 

Page 78



Pl
at

e 
27

  V
ie

w
 to

w
ar

ds
 C

hu
rc

h 
To

w
er

 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

13
 

lim
ite

d 
vi

ew
s 

al
so

 o
cc

ur
 a

lo
ng

 C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 a
nd

 W
es

t 
En

d 
in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

.  
 

 7.
08

 T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
pe

de
st

ri
an

 r
ou

te
 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
.  

Th
is 

is 
th

e 
na

rr
ow

 p
at

hw
ay

, e
nc

lo
se

d 
by

 h
ig

h 
w

al
ls 

th
at

 c
on

ne
ct

s 
C

hu
rc

h 
La

ne
 w

ith
 W

es
t 

En
d.

  I
t 

is 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t 
hi

st
or

ic
 r

ou
te

 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

du
e 

to
 t

he
 e

nc
lo

su
re

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ga

rd
en

 w
al

ls 
an

d 
hi

gh
 

be
ec

h 
he

dg
in

g 
of

 t
he

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 r
et

ai
ns

 it
s 

hi
st

or
ic

 in
te

re
st

 
an

d 
sig

ni
fic

an
ce

 d
es

pi
te

 b
ei

ng
 fi

ni
sh

ed
 w

ith
 

ta
rm

ac
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
8)

. 
   

So
ft

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

 
7.

09
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 6

). 
 M

an
y 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 t

he
 c

hu
rc

h.
  O

th
er

 t
re

es
 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 t

he
 g

ar
de

ns
 o

f t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 
ho

us
es

.  
Th

e 
Vi

ca
ra

ge
 o

n 
Yo

rk
 R

oa
d,

 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 v
er

y 
sig

ni
fic

an
t 

tr
ee

s 
al

on
g 

its
 

bo
un

da
ry

 t
ha

t 
pr

ev
en

t 
pu

bl
ic

 v
ie

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
  T

he
 n

um
er

ou
s 

tr
ee

s 
an

d 
he

dg
es

 m
ak

e 
a 

vi
ta

l a
nd

 v
ar

ie
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
n 

to
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

hi
s 

ar
ea

. 
   

N
eu

tr
al

 a
nd

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
7.

10
 W

he
re

 r
ec

en
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
a 

m
od

es
t 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

de
ta

ili
ng

, t
he

y 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 a

s 
ne

ut
ra

l f
ac

to
rs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 (M
ap

 5
). 

 
 

 7.
11

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
re

a 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 m

od
er

n 
de

ta
ch

ed
 m

od
er

n 
ho

us
es

 t
ha

t 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 in

te
re

st
 o

r 
 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s 

th
at

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
9 

an
d 

M
ap

 5
). 

 

Pl
at

e 
29

  L
ar

ge
 m

od
er

n 
ho

us
e 

on
 C

hu
rc

h 
   

La
ne

 
 Pl

at
e 

28
  V

ie
w

 o
f a

lle
y 

Page 79



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

14
 

8 
M

A
N

O
R

 F
A

R
M

 

8.
01

 
Th

is 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

  
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 (p

re
vi

ou
sly

 n
am

ed
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

H
al

l) 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 t
he

 a
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
ce

nt
re

 o
f t

he
 m

ed
ie

va
l v

ill
ag

e,
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 e
xt

en
d 

no
rt

h 
to

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s. 

 It
 e

xt
en

ds
 fr

om
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

in
 t

he
 w

es
t 

to
 

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e 

to
 t

he
 e

as
t 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 3
). 

  
 8.

02
  T

he
 s

pe
ci

al
 in

te
re

st
 o

f t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 is

 
ce

nt
re

d 
on

 t
he

 h
ist

or
ic

 c
om

pl
ex

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 la
nd

 a
t 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

, t
he

 
m

ed
ie

va
l m

oa
te

d 
sit

e 
an

d 
its

 o
pe

n 
se

tt
in

g.
  

  
  U

se
s 

8.
03

 
W

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
th

er
e 

is 
on

ly
 o

ne
 

pr
op

er
ty

, M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 a
nd

 it
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 (s
ee

 
M

ap
 4

). 
 T

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
ar

ea
 is

 m
ad

e 
up

 o
f o

pe
n 

fa
rm

la
nd

 a
nd

 
w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

ri
ve

r.
 

   
Q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
8.

04
 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 is
 a

 G
ra

de
 II

 li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

). 
 It

 d
at

es
 fr

om
 t

he
 la

te
 

se
ve

nt
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

bu
t 

w
as

 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 a

lte
re

d 
in

 t
he

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ri

es
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
0 

an
d 

M
ap

 5
). 

  
  

Pl
at

e 
30

 V
ie

w
 t

ow
ar

ds
 M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

Pl
at

e 
31

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
N

ew
 B

ri
dg

e 
 Pl

at
e 

32
  R

em
na

nt
s 

of
 lo

ck
 e

nt
ra

nc
e 

 

Page 80



Pl
at

e 
35

 W
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
al

 
 

fo
ot

pa
th

 to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 o
f 

 
St

re
ns

al
l N

ew
 B

ri
dg

e 

Pl
at

e 
33

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 
 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

15
 

  
O

th
er

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

8.
05

 
W

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

re
a 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
tw

o 
lis

te
d 

br
id

ge
s 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

). 
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

is 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 t
he

 
w

es
te

rn
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 
is 

th
e 

on
ly

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 b

ri
dg

e 
bu

ilt
 b

y 
th

e 
Fo

ss
 N

av
ig

at
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny
 in

 t
he

 la
te

 
ei

gh
te

en
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

1)
.  

O
n 

th
e 

ea
st

 s
id

e 
of

 t
he

 b
ri

dg
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 o
f a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

al
ls 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 
be

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

fo
rm

er
 lo

ck
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

2)
.  

Th
es

e 
re

m
na

nt
s 

ad
d 

to
 t

he
 in

te
re

st
 o

f 
th

is 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

re
a.

  
St

re
ns

al
l B

ri
dg

e,
 w

hi
ch

 d
at

es
 fr

om
 1

79
8,

 
ca

rr
ie

s 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

 n
or

th
 fr

om
 t

he
 

vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
3)

.  
 

  
  S

pa
ce

s 
an

d 
vi

ew
s 

8.
06

 
Th

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

s 
ar

ou
nd

 M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 
de

fin
e 

th
is 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
re

a.
  T

he
 

tr
ee

s 
at

 t
he

 w
es

te
rn

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
re

ar
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

en
ve

lo
pe

 c
re

at
e 

a 
di

st
in

ct
iv

e 
ru

ra
l s

et
tin

g 
  

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

4)
.  

Vi
ew

s 
in

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
, a

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
ch

ur
ch

 t
ow

er
, f

ro
m

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s 

ar
e 

im
po

rt
an

t, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 t

ho
se

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 a

lo
ng

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 fo
ot

pa
th

 t
ha

t 
fo

llo
w

s 
th

e 
no

rt
he

rn
 b

an
k 

of
 t

he
 r

iv
er

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 6
). 

 8.
07

 
A

 p
an

or
am

ic
 v

ie
w

 lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h 
ou

t 
ac

ro
ss

 o
pe

n 
fie

ld
s 

is 
po

ss
ib

le
 fr

om
 

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e 

an
d 

se
rv

es
 a

s 
a 

re
m

in
de

r 
of

 t
he

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l h
ist

or
y 

of
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e.
 

 8.
08

 
Th

e 
w

oo
de

d 
ar

ea
 o

n 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 

th
e 

ri
ve

r 
cl

os
e 

to
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
n 

in
fo

rm
al

 fo
ot

pa
th

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l p
ur

po
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
5)

. 
   

 S
of

t 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
 

8.
09

 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 
co

ns
ist

s 
of

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l 

pu
rp

os
es

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 r
iv

er
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 

St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 3

5 
an

d 
M

ap
 6

). 
 T

he
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 
en

ve
lo

pe
 a

lso
 c

on
ta

in
s 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
tr

ee
s. 

  
N

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

8.
10

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 n

eu
tr

al
 o

r 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
w

ith
in

 th
is 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
. 

  

Pl
at

e 
34

  V
ie

w
 in

to
 t

he
 a

re
a 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 

 
Ri

ve
r 

Fo
ss

 

Page 81



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

16
 

9 
T

H
E

 V
IL

L
A

G
E

 
 

 

9.
01

 T
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 3
) c

on
sis

ts
 o

f t
he

 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

w
hi

ch
 r

un
s 

in
 a

 
ea

st
/w

es
t 

di
re

ct
io

n 
an

d 
co

nt
ai

ns
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
on

 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f t

he
 r

oa
d.

  I
t 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
he

 
ho

us
es

 o
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s 

Ro
ad

, 
w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

(s
ee

 C
ha

pt
er

 5
.0

0)
. 

 9.
02

 T
he

 s
pe

ci
al

 in
te

re
st

 o
f t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 is

 
th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fa
ct

or
s: 

th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

; t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 p

lo
t 

la
yo

ut
s; 

th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 t

he
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 s
ty

le
, s

iz
e;

 a
nd

 t
he

ir
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

to
 t

he
 r

oa
d.

 
  

U
se

s 
9.

03
 T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
a 

m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

re
sid

en
tia

l a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

s 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 

fo
un

d 
in

 a
 v

ill
ag

e.
  F

ac
ili

tie
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

tw
o 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

es
, a

 g
ar

ag
e,

 t
he

 lo
ca

l l
ib

ra
ry

, a
 p

os
t 

of
fic

e,
 a

 c
on

ve
ni

en
ce

 s
to

re
, t

he
 M

et
ho

di
st

 
C

hu
rc

h 
an

d 
th

e 
fis

h 
&

 c
hi

p 
sh

op
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 4

). 
  

Q
ua

lit
ie

s 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

9.
04

 T
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 in
cl

ud
es

 t
w

o 
lis

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 5
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
): 

N
o.

 5
9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

 la
te

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

ho
us

e,
 

re
m

od
el

ed
 in

 t
he

 e
ar

ly
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
6)

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l (
se

e 
9.

07
 

be
lo

w
). 

 M
os

t 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

re
 o

f a
 m

od
es

t 
tw

o 
st

or
ey

 h
ei

gh
t 

an
d 

fo
rm

 p
ar

t 
of

 s
m

al
l 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

r 
te

rr
ac

es
.  

Th
ey

 a
re

 

Pl
at

e 
36

 N
o.

 5
9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
  

Pl
at

e 
37

 G
ab

le
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

 
 Pl

at
e 

38
 T

he
 S

hi
p 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ou
se

 

Page 82



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

17
 

of
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, w

ith
 v

er
tic

al
 w

in
do

w
 

op
en

in
gs

, c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 in
 c

la
m

p-
fir

ed
, r

ed
 

br
ic

k,
 w

ith
 t

ile
d 

or
 s

la
te

d 
cl

ea
r 

ro
of

 s
lo

pe
s 

in
te

rr
up

te
d 

on
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

nu
m

er
ou

s 
ch

im
ne

ys
. T

he
 m

or
e 

fo
rm

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 in
 t

he
 

ar
ea

 a
re

 s
et

 b
eh

in
d 

pl
in

th
 w

al
ls 

an
d 

ra
ili

ng
s. 

 9.
05

 L
oc

al
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

in
cl

ud
es

 b
ri

ck
 c

am
be

re
d 

or
 

fla
t 

ar
ch

 li
nt

el
s, 

an
d 

de
co

ra
tiv

e 
ba

nd
in

g 
at

 
ea

ve
s 

le
ve

l. 
 S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ea

rl
ie

st
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
al

so
 h

av
e 

tr
ia

ng
ul

ar
 b

ri
ck

 p
an

el
s 

- k
no

w
n 

as
 

br
ic

k 
tu

m
bl

in
g 

on
 t

he
ir

 g
ab

le
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 

37
). 

 M
an

y 
of

 t
he

 e
ig

ht
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ni
ne

te
en

th
 

ce
nt

ur
y 

bu
ild

in
gs

 r
et

ai
n 

or
ig

in
al

 fe
at

ur
es

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
sa

sh
 w

in
do

w
s 

an
d 

ca
st

 ir
on

 
do

w
np

ip
es

.  
So

m
e 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 s
ho

w
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 a

da
pt

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
fa

br
ic

, s
uc

h 
as

 t
he

 fo
rm

er
 B

ut
ch

er
s 

w
hi

ch
 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 h
ei

gh
t. 

 M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, w
he

th
er

 li
st

ed
 o

r 
no

t, 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

 t
o 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
th

e 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 5
). 

 S
om

e 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 
ha

ve
 r

en
de

re
d 

or
 p

ai
nt

ed
 fa

ca
de

s, 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
Th

e 
Sh

ip
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 
38

). 
 A

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f r
en

de
r 

an
d 

pa
in

te
d 

br
ic

kw
or

k 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
9)

 is
 n

ot
 t

he
 

pr
ed

om
in

an
t 

m
at

er
ia

l f
or

 e
xt

er
na

l w
al

ls 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a,
 t

he
se

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

lso
 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
 t

o 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 
 9.

06
 M

os
t 

of
 t

he
 m

or
e 

m
od

er
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 a

re
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 in

 a
 

sy
m

pa
th

et
ic

 b
ri

ck
 a

nd
 a

re
 o

f a
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 a

re
 s

ev
er

al
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

ho
us

es
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

ot
 c

on
fo

rm
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ve
rn

ac
ul

ar
 a

nd
 m

an
y 

of
 t

he
se

 d
o 

no
t 

fo
llo

w
 t

he
 fi

ne
 u

rb
an

 g
ra

in
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

. 
  

O
th

er
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
9.

07
 T

he
 v

er
y 

fin
e 

w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l i
s 

a 
G

ra
de

 II
 

lis
te

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

) t
ha

t 
is 

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 n

or
th

 s
id

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e.

  
It 

co
ns

ist
s 

of
 s

m
al

l h
ar

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 t

he
 m

em
or

ia
l r

ai
se

d 
on

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 
st

ep
s. 

 T
he

 t
al

l b
ac

k-
cl

ot
h 

of
 h

ed
gi

ng
 a

nd
 

sh
ru

bs
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
su

ita
bl

e 
ba

ck
-d

ro
p 

to
 

th
e 

Po
rt

la
nd

 s
to

ne
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
0)

. 
 

 
 

Sp
ac

es
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
9.

08
 T

he
 s

pa
ce

s 
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 
as

 m
os

t 
of

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

re
ar

 
ga

rd
en

s 
of

 t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 h
ou

se
s, 

w
hi

ch
 

ca
nn

ot
 g

en
er

al
ly

 b
e 

se
en

 fr
om

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 

do
m

ai
n.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 a

re
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

g 
en

cl
av

es
 s

et
 a

ro
un

d 
a 

sh
ar

ed
 y

ar
d 

ar
ea

. T
he

 o
nl

y 
pu

bl
ic

 s
pa

ce
 is

 
th

e 
sm

al
l l

an
ds

ca
pe

d 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 w
ar

 
m

em
or

ia
l (

se
e 

Pl
at

e 
40

). 
  

 9.
09

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
pu

bl
ic

 fo
ot

pa
th

 t
ha

t 
ru

ns
 fr

om
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e,
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 N

o.
 1

8,
 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 S

ou
th

fie
ld

s 
ne

xt
 t

o 
N

o.
 2

9.
  

Th
is 

is 
a 

ta
rm

ac
 fo

ot
pa

th
 a

nd
 h

as
 n

o 
hi

st
or

ic
 fe

at
ur

es
.  

A
 s

ec
on

d,
 u

n-
de

sig
na

te
d,

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ro
ut

e 
ru

ns
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 t

he
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 s

to
re

 o
n 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Pl
at

e 
41

  V
ie

w
 s

ou
th

 a
lo

ng
 u

nm
ad

e 
ro

ut
e 

 Pl
at

e 
40

   
Th

e 
W

ar
 M

em
or

ia
l 

 Pl
at

e 
39

  N
o.

 6
9 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Page 83



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

18
 

th
ro

ug
h 

to
 S

ou
th

fie
ld

s. 
 T

hi
s 

is 
a 

w
id

e 
ro

ut
e 

an
d 

ha
s 

an
 u

nm
ad

e 
su

rf
ac

e 
bu

t 
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 b
e 

of
 h

ist
or

ic
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
1)

.  
O

th
er

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

tr
ac

ks
 h

av
e 

be
en

 t
ar

m
ac

ed
 w

hi
ch

 
er

od
es

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
 

 9.
10

 M
ed

iu
m

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

ex
ist

 a
lo

ng
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

 b
ut

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

by
 

th
e 

cu
rv

at
ur

e 
an

d 
un

du
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 r

oa
d 

bu
t 

en
ab

le
s 

un
fo

ld
in

g 
vi

ew
s 

al
on

g 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ro
ad

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 6
). 

  
 9.

11
 A

 lo
ng

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 p

os
sib

le
 fr

om
 t

he
 e

as
te

rn
 e

nd
 o

f T
he

 
Vi

lla
ge

.  
Si

m
ila

rl
y,

 v
ie

w
s 

in
to

 t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ar

e 
al

so
 p

os
sib

le
, l

oo
ki

ng
 

w
es

t 
al

on
g 

th
e 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
th

at
 is

 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

. 
 9.

12
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 s
ho

rt
 d

ist
an

ce
 v

ie
w

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
hu

m
p 

of
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Br
id

ge
 lo

ok
in

g 
so

ut
h 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 M
et

ho
di

st
 C

ha
pe

l o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 V
ill

ag
e.

  T
hi

s 
bu

ild
in

g 
cl

os
es

 t
he

 
vi

st
a 

an
d 

ac
ts

 a
s 

a 
lo

ca
l l

an
dm

ar
k 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 

42
). 

 
 

  
So

ft
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
9.

13
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

he
dg

es
 w

ith
in

 th
is 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
.  

M
os

t 
of

 th
e 

tr
ee

s 
an

d 
he

dg
es

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

cu
rt

ila
ge

 o
f t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 b
ut

 t
he

y 
m

ak
e 

a 
ve

ry
 im

po
rt

an
t 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
n 

to
 t

he
 

st
re

et
sc

en
e 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

3 
an

d 
M

ap
 6

). 
  

 9.
14

 M
an

y 
of

 t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

on
 t

he
 n

or
th

 s
id

e 
of

 T
he

 

Vi
lla

ge
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

 r
ea

r 
ga

rd
en

s, 
so

m
e 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
fil

le
d 

w
ith

 n
ew

 h
ou

sin
g.

  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

o 
th

e 
ea

st
 o

f S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 a
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 t

he
 h

ou
se

s 
re

ta
in

 t
he

ir
 lo

ng
 

re
ar

 g
ar

de
ns

, w
hi

ch
 a

dd
s 

to
 s

en
se

 o
f 

im
m

ed
ia

cy
 t

o 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
in

 t
hi

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
 

  
N

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

9.
15

 W
he

re
 r

ec
en

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 h
av

e 
a 

m
od

es
t 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 
m

as
sin

g 
th

at
 r

es
po

nd
s 

to
 h

ist
or

ic
al

 
pr

ec
ed

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

, a
nd

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

de
ta

ili
ng

, t
he

y 
ca

n 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 a

s 
ne

ut
ra

l f
ac

to
rs

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 
5)

. 
 9.

16
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 t

ha
t 

do
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 in
te

re
st

 o
r 

 h
ist

or
ic

 
ch

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

s 
th

at
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a,

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
he

 t
yp

ic
al

 
la

te
 t

w
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 b
un

ga
lo

w
s 

on
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 5

 a
nd

 P
la

te
 4

4)
. 

 9.
17

 A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 t

he
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 u

se
s 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 t
he

 r
et

ai
l u

ni
ts

 h
av

e 
in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

sh
op

fr
on

ts
.  

Th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 la

rg
e 

pl
as

tic
 fa

sc
ia

s 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 t

o 
be

 a
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
20

). 
 T

he
 e

xt
en

t 
of

 il
lu

m
in

at
ed

 
sig

na
ge

 a
lso

 c
re

at
es

 a
 h

ar
sh

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 a
m

bi
en

ce
 a

t 
ni

gh
t. 

 

Pl
at

e 
43

 T
re

es
 in

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 

Pl
at

e 
44

  V
ie

w
 o

f  
bu

ng
al

ow
s 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 

Pl
at

e 
42

  V
ie

w
 lo

ok
in

g 
so

ut
h 

fr
om

 
 

St
re

ns
al

l B
ri

dg
e 

Page 84



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

19
 

10
 

  P
R

IN
C

E
SS

 R
O

A
D

/M
O

O
R

 L
A

N
E

 

10
.0

1 
Th

is 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 r

ou
te

 o
f P

ri
nc

es
s 

La
ne

 a
nd

 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 (w
hi

ch
 w

as
 fo

rm
er

ly
 a

ll 
kn

ow
n 

as
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

) a
t 

th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

.  
It 

in
cl

ud
es

 
ho

us
in

g 
on

 t
he

 e
as

t 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

 
on

ly
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 3

). 
 10

.0
2 

Th
e 

sp
ec

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t 

of
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 is

 t
he

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 it

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
du

ri
ng

 t
he

 la
te

 n
in

et
ee

nt
h 

an
d 

ea
rl

y 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 th
is 

ar
ea

 
ha

s 
a 

di
st

in
ct

 s
ub

ur
ba

n 
ch

ar
ac

te
r,

 v
er

y 
di

ffe
re

nt
 fr

om
 t

he
 t

ra
di

tio
na

l v
ill

ag
e 

qu
al

iti
es

 o
f t

he
 r

es
t 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

  
  U

se
s 

10
.0

3 
Th

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 t
hi

s 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ar
ea

 a
re

 
al

l i
n 

re
sid

en
tia

l u
se

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 4
). 

  
 Q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
10

.0
4 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 b

ut
 t

he
re

 a
re

 s
ev

er
al

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

f n
ot

e 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 5

). 
  

 10
.0

5 
N

os
. 1

9-
25

 P
ri

nc
es

s 
Ro

ad
 fo

rm
 a

 s
ho

rt
 

te
rr

ac
ed

 b
lo

ck
, t

w
o 

an
d 

a 
ha

lf 
st

or
ey

 in
 

he
ig

ht
, b

ui
lt 

in
 t

he
 la

te
 n

in
et

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
5)

.  
A

s 
re

su
lt 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
re

 m
or

e 
el

ab
or

at
e 

in
 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 t

ha
n 

th
os

e 
el

se
w

he
re

 in
 t

he
 

Pl
at

e 
45

 N
os

. 1
9-

25
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 

Pl
at

e 
46

 V
ie

w
 o

f 9
 &

 1
1 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 

 Pl
at

e 
47

 V
ie

w
 o

f i
nt

er
-w

ar
  h

ou
sin

g 
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
he

y 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 

co
nt

ra
st

in
g 

br
ic

kw
or

k 
an

d 
de

co
ra

tiv
e 

tim
be

r 
ea

ve
s. 

 T
he

 fo
rm

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
is 

al
so

 d
iff

er
en

t, 
w

ith
 g

ab
le

s 
in

 t
he

 r
oo

f, 
ca

nt
ed

 b
ay

 w
in

do
w

s 
on

 t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 
an

d 
br

ac
ke

te
d 

po
rc

he
s 

ov
er

 t
he

 fr
on

t 
en

tr
an

ce
 d

oo
r.

   
 

 10
.0

6 
N

os
. 5

-1
1 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 a

re
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f l
ar

ge
, e

ar
ly

 t
w

en
tie

th
 

ce
nt

ur
y,

 s
em

i-d
et

ac
he

d 
su

bu
rb

an
 h

ou
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
6)

.  
Th

es
e 

tw
o 

pa
ir

s 
re

pr
es

en
t 

ho
us

in
g 

bu
ilt

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 t

he
 

ra
ilw

ay
 a

nd
 a

re
 im

po
rt

an
t 

bo
th

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
 a

nd
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

.  
Th

e 
m

as
sin

g 
of

 t
he

se
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 is
 

ve
ry

 b
ol

d,
 w

ith
 e

ac
h 

ho
us

e 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 

pr
om

in
en

t 
ga

bl
e 

th
at

 a
re

 is
 p

ai
re

d 
w

ith
 

its
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

.  
Th

is 
fo

rm
 c

ou
pl

ed
 w

ith
 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 r

en
de

r 
an

d 
Ve

ne
tia

n-
st

yl
e 

w
in

do
w

s 
at

 s
ec

on
d 

flo
or

 le
ve

l p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

ve
ry

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e.
  O

th
er

 d
et

ai
ls 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
re

st
ra

in
ed

 b
ut

 a
t 

gr
ou

nd
 fl

oo
r 

le
ve

l t
he

re
 a

re
 c

an
te

d 
ba

y 
w

in
do

w
s 

lin
ke

d 
by

 a
 c

an
op

y 
th

at
 a

lso
 e

xt
en

ds
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 d
oo

rs
.  

 10
.0

7 
O

th
er

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
in

te
r-

w
ar

 h
ou

sin
g 

at
 t

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

en
d 

of
 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 R
oa

d.
  T

he
se

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

ui
lt 

in
 c

lo
se

 s
uc

ce
ss

io
n 

an
d 

fo
llo

w
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

bu
ild

in
g 

fo
rm

.  
Th

ey
 

Page 85



Pl
at

e 
50

 N
o.

 1
3 

Pr
in

ce
ss

 R
oa

d 

Pl
at

e 
48

 V
ie

w
 s

ou
th

 a
lo

ng
 P

ri
nc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 
 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

20
 

ar
e 

sm
al

l d
et

ac
he

d 
ho

us
es

,  
tw

o 
st

or
ey

s 
in

 h
ei

gh
t 

bu
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 fi
rs

t 
flo

or
 p

ar
tia

lly
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 t
he

 r
oo

f a
nd

 w
ith

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
ce

nt
ra

l s
m

al
l w

in
do

w
 a

t 
fir

st
 fl

oo
r 

le
ve

l 
fa

ci
ng

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
t. 

 T
he

 u
se

 o
f a

 c
en

tr
al

 
ro

of
 g

ab
le

 a
nd

 g
ab

le
 r

oo
f p

or
ch

 a
dd

s 
in

te
re

st
 t

o 
th

es
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

7)
.  

 
  

 S
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

vi
ew

s 
10

.0
6 

Th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

pa
ce

 w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 r
ea

r 
ga

rd
en

s 
to

 t
he

 
va

ri
ou

s 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 o
f 

im
po

rt
an

ce
, a

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
y 

ca
nn

ot
 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 b
e 

se
en

 fr
om

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 

do
m

ai
n.

 
  10

.0
7 

Vi
ew

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

re
a 

lim
ite

d 
to

 t
ho

se
 n

or
th

 a
nd

 s
ou

th
 a

lo
ng

 t
he

 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

8)
.  

Vi
ew

s 
in

to
 t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 fr
om

 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
th

e 
tr

ee
s 

(o
ut

sid
e 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
) t

ha
t 

ar
e 

se
en

 in
 t

he
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
vi

ew
 s

ou
th

 a
re

 o
f 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
.  

Vi
ew

s 
ou

t o
f t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
ar

ea
 a

re
 a

lso
 p

os
sib

le
 fr

om
 t

he
 le

ve
l 

cr
os

sin
g 

al
on

g 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 t
ra

ck
s 

in
 b

ot
h 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 4
9)

. 
 

 
  

  S
of

t 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
 

10
.0

8 
Th

e 
gr

as
s 

ve
rg

e 
do

w
n 

th
e 

w
es

t 
sid

e 
of

 
Pr

in
ce

ss
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t 

to
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
ce

ne
 a

s 
it 

so
fte

ns
 

th
e 

ha
rd

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 s

ev
er

al
 

m
at

ur
e 

tr
ee

s, 
w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 

le
af

y 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

hi
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 6
). 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 

fr
on

t 
ga

rd
en

s 
of

 t
he

 h
ou

sin
g 

on
 t

he
 e

as
t 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 h

ig
hw

ay
 h

av
e 

m
at

ur
e 

tr
ee

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
lso

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f 

th
is 

ar
ea

. 
  

 N
eu

tr
al

 a
nd

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
10

.0
9 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 t
ha

t 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 

in
te

re
st

 o
r 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
ist

ic
s 

th
at

 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

 t
o 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 5
0 

an
d 

M
ap

 5
). 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
49

 V
ie

w
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
al

on
g 

ra
ilw

ay
 

 
tr

ac
ks

 
 

Page 86



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

21
 

1
1
 

  
F

U
T

U
R

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

U
G

G
E

S
T

IO
N

S
 

11
.0

1 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

iss
ue

s 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
rm

 t
he

 
ba

sis
 fo

r 
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  H
ow

ev
er

, 
al

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 a
pp

ra
isa

l s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

or
 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

iss
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 o
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 
 11

.0
2 

C
on

sid
er

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 
in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 (2
) d

ir
ec

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
to

 u
nl

ist
ed

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

be
 

us
ed

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 t

o 
re

sis
t 

th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 t

im
be

r 
do

or
s 

an
d 

w
in

do
w

s 
in

 u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls/
st

yl
es

, 
or

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f t

yp
ic

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 

ga
te

s, 
fe

nc
es

, w
al

ls 
or

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 o
f 

en
cl

os
ur

e.
 

 11
.0

3 
A

lo
ng

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 g
en

er
at

e 
sig

na
ge

 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
sh

op
 fr

on
ta

ge
s. 

 S
om

e 
of

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sig

na
ge

 a
nd

 s
ho

p 
fr

on
ts

 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
in

 t
he

 
vi

lla
ge

 c
on

te
xt

.  
A

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 
ov

er
al

l d
es

ig
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, t
ha

t 
re

sp
on

ds
 

to
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
co

nt
ex

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
sy

m
pa

th
et

ic
 n

at
ur

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls,

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l t
o 

th
e 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

.  
 11

.0
4 

A
 c

on
sis

te
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 h
ar

d 
su

rf
ac

es
 w

ou
ld

 b
ri

ng
 a

bo
ut

 a
 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 v
isu

al
 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
  T

he
 

fo
ot

pa
th

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

re
qu

ir
e 

an
 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f m
at

er
ia

ls 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

on
 t

he
ir

 lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

fu
nc

tio
na

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.  

 
 11

.0
5 

W
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 li

gh
tin

g 
co

lu
m

n 
de

sig
ns

.  
It 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
f t

he
 c

ol
um

ns
 w

er
e 

of
 a

 
co

ns
ist

en
t 

de
sig

n 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

nd
 o

f a
 

hu
m

an
 s

ca
le

.  
A

lso
, t

he
 li

gh
t 

em
iss

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ym
pa

th
et

ic
 t

o 
th

ei
r 

ru
ra

l l
oc

at
io

n.
 

 11
.0

6 
Re

gu
la

r 
tr

ee
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t 

an
d 

th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 
fo

r 
re

in
fo

rc
in

g 
he

dg
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
ur

e 
pl

an
tin

g.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 it

 is
 r

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

-s
ur

ve
y 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 it

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
et

tin
g 

to
 

es
ta

bl
ish

 if
 a

ny
 fu

rt
he

r 
Tr

ee
 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

O
rd

er
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e.
 

  

11
.0

7 
It 

is 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
su

gg
es

t 
to

 E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 
th

at
 t

he
 li

st
in

g 
of

 t
he

 N
ew

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Br

id
ge

 b
e 

am
en

de
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
al

ls 
al

on
g 

th
e 

ri
ve

r.
 

       

Page 87



L
IS

T
E

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
S 

                         St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
Page 88



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

C
H

U
R

C
H

 L
A

N
E

 
(n

or
th

 s
id

e)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
hu

rc
h 

of
 S

t.
 M

ar
y 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 C

hu
rc

h.
  

18
65

-6
 a

nd
 l

at
e 

C
20

 a
dd

iti
on

. 
 J

 B
 a

nd
 W

 
A

tk
in

so
n.

  
Sa

nd
st

on
e 

an
d 

W
es

tm
or

la
nd

 s
la

te
. 

 W
es

t 
to

w
er

, 
4-

ba
y 

na
ve

 w
ith

 s
ou

th
 p

or
ch

, 
2-

ba
y 

ch
an

ce
l 

w
ith

 n
or

th
 v

es
tr

y 
an

d 
C

20
 p

ar
ish

 r
oo

m
.  

In
 G

eo
m

et
ri

c 
st

yl
e.

  
3-

st
ag

e 
to

w
er

 w
ith

 a
ng

le
 b

ut
tr

es
se

s. 
 W

es
t 

fr
on

t: 
2-

lig
ht

 w
in

do
w

 w
ith

 t
re

fo
il 

w
in

do
w

 a
nd

 r
el

ie
vi

ng
 

ar
ch

 a
bo

ve
.  

Tw
in

 b
el

fr
y 

w
in

do
w

s 
to

 e
ac

h 
fa

ce
.  

Sp
ir

e.
  

So
ut

h 
po

rc
h:

 
po

in
te

d 
do

or
w

ay
 

of
 

sin
gl

e 
or

de
r 

on
 

sh
af

te
d 

re
sp

on
ds

.  
2-

lig
ht

 w
in

do
w

s 
to

 n
av

e,
 s

in
gl

e-
lig

ht
 

w
in

do
w

s 
to

 c
ha

nc
el

.  
3-

lig
ht

 w
in

do
w

 t
o 

ea
st

 e
nd

.  
N

o 
in

te
rn

al
 

fe
at

ur
es

 
of

 
m

er
it.

 
 

C
20

 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

no
t 

of
 

sp
ec

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t. 

Pe
vs

ne
r 

N
, Y

or
ks

hi
re

: T
he

 N
or

th
 R

id
in

g,
 1

96
6 

 
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 L

A
N

E
 

(s
ou

th
 s

id
e)

 
 N

o.
 3

 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 H
ou

se
.  

M
id

 C
18

.  
Br

ic
k 

w
ith

 p
an

til
e 

ro
of

.  
 2

-c
el

l e
nd

-
lo

bb
y-

en
tr

y 
pl

an
.  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
2 

ba
ys

.  
4-

pa
ne

l d
oo

r 
to

 
ri

gh
t 

w
ith

 
4-

pa
ne

 
sa

sh
es

 
be

ne
at

h 
ca

m
be

re
d 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

 t
o 

le
ft.

  
Fi

rs
t 

flo
or

: 
4-

pa
ne

 s
as

he
s 

w
ith

 t
im

be
r 

lin
te

ls.
  

D
en

til
le

d 
ea

ve
s 

co
ur

se
. 

 R
ai

se
d 

ga
bl

e 
en

ds
.  

En
d 

st
ac

ks
. 

 
Tu

m
bl

in
g-

in
 

to
 

ga
bl

e 
en

ds
. 

 
In

te
ri

or
: 

or
ig

in
al

 b
ri

ck
-b

ui
lt 

in
gl

en
oo

k 
fir

ep
la

ce
. 

Page 89



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

 H
A

X
B

Y
 M

O
O

R
 R

O
A

D
 

 St
re

ns
al

l N
ew

 B
ri

dg
e 

 
(f

or
m

al
ly

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
St

re
ns

al
l L

ow
 B

ri
dg

e)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
G

ra
de

 I
I 

 Br
id

ge
. 

 L
at

e 
C

18
. 

 B
ri

ck
 w

ith
 a

sh
la

r 
dr

es
sin

gs
.  

Si
ng

le
 

ro
un

d-
ar

ch
ed

 
hu

m
pb

ac
k 

br
id

ge
. 

 
Sp

la
ye

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 w
ith

 p
ie

rs
 a

nd
 s

te
pp

ed
 s

to
ne

 c
op

in
g.

  
Th

e 
on

ly
 

su
rv

iv
in

g 
br

id
ge

 
bu

ilt
 

by
 

th
e 

Fo
ss

 
N

av
ig

at
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny
. 

 
R

D
 

 SH
E

R
R

IF
F 

H
U

T
T

O
N

  
 St

re
ns

al
l B

ri
dg

e 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 Br
id

ge
. 

17
98

. 
 B

ui
lt 

to
 d

es
ig

ns
 b

y 
Jo

hn
 C

ar
r 

of
 

Yo
rk

. 
 A

sh
la

r.
  

Si
ng

le
 s

eg
m

en
ta

l 
ar

ch
 f

la
nk

ed
 b

y 
bu

tt
re

ss
es

. 
 

So
lid

 
ca

m
be

re
d 

co
pe

d 
pa

ra
pe

t. 
 

Ra
m

pe
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 

w
ith

 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
w

al
ls 

in
 

m
at

ch
in

g 
st

yl
e.

  
Th

e 
br

id
ge

 c
os

t 
£1

,3
63

 3
s 

2d
 t

o 
bu

ild
. 

Page 90



 T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

 W
ar

 M
em

or
ia

l 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 W
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l, 
19

22
 w

ith
 l

at
er

 a
dd

iti
on

. 
 A

 s
to

ne
 

C
el

tic
 c

ro
ss

 o
n 

a 
re

ct
an

gu
la

r 
sh

af
t 

m
ou

nt
ed

 o
n 

a 
ta

ll 
pl

in
th

 r
es

tin
g 

on
 a

 4
 s

te
p 

ba
se

. 
 Th

e 
in

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
on

 t
he

 fr
on

t 
of

 t
he

 p
lin

th
 r

ea
ds

: T
O

 
PE

RP
ET

U
A

TE
 T

H
E 

M
EM

O
RY

/O
F 

TH
E 

M
EN

 O
F 

TH
IS

 P
A

RI
SH

 W
H

O
/W

ER
E 

K
IL

LE
D

, D
IE

D
 F

RO
M

/
W

O
U

N
D

S 
O

R 
SI

C
K

N
ES

S 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TE

D
/IN

 
TH

E 
G

RE
A

T 
W

A
R/

19
14

-1
91

9,
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
by

 
17

 
na

m
es

 w
ith

 r
eg

im
en

ts
, 

an
d 

be
lo

w
: 

ER
EC

TE
D

 B
Y 

PU
BL

IC
 

SU
BS

C
RI

PT
IO

N
/O

RG
A

N
IS

ED
 

BY
 

TH
E 

ST
RE

N
SA

LL
 B

RA
N

C
H

/O
F 

TH
E 

BR
IT

IS
H

 L
EG

IO
N

. 
 O

n 
th

e 
le

ft 
re

tu
rn

 
on

 
th

e 
pl

in
th

 
is 

in
sc

ri
be

d 
W

O
RL

D
 

W
A

R/
19

39
-1

94
5/

RE
M

EM
BE

R,
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 
by

 6
 n

am
es

. 
 Th

e 
cr

os
s 

be
ar

s 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
sc

ri
pt

io
n 

ha
lf 

w
ay

 u
p 

th
e 

sh
af

t 
re

ad
in

g 
TH

EY
 G

A
VE

/T
H

EI
R 

LI
VE

S/
TH

A
T 

W
E/

M
IG

H
T 

LI
VE

. 
 A

bo
ve

 t
hi

s 
is 

de
ep

ly
 i

nc
ise

d 
flo

ra
l d

ec
or

at
io

n 
co

ve
ri

ng
 t

he
 s

ha
ft 

an
d 

th
e 

he
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

cr
os

s, 
w

ith
 

a 
ce

nt
ra

l 
ro

se
. 

 
Be

lo
w

 
th

e 
in

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
is 

a 
re

lie
f 

ca
rv

in
g 

of
 a

 s
ol

di
er

 f
ac

in
g 

le
ft 

an
d 

lo
ok

in
g 

do
w

nw
ar

ds
, 

w
ith

 h
is 

ha
nd

s 
re

st
in

g 
on

 
hi

s 
gu

n 
be

fo
re

 
hi

m
. 

 
N

ea
r 

hi
s 

fe
et

 
ar

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 o
f a

 fi
el

d 
gu

n 
an

d 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 t

an
k.

  
A

 
la

ur
el

 w
re

at
h 

su
rr

ou
nd

s 
hi

s 
he

ad
. 

 

 Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 Im
po

rt
an

ce
 

 W
ar

 m
em

or
ia

ls 
ha

ve
 a

 v
er

y 
st

ro
ng

 h
ist

or
ic

al
 a

nd
 

cu
ltu

ra
l 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
 o

n 
bo

th
 a

 l
oc

al
 a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l 

sc
al

e.
  

Th
e 

m
em

or
ia

l 
cr

os
s 

at
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

is 
a 

fin
e 

ex
am

pl
e 

w
ith

 a
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f 

cr
af

ts
m

an
sh

ip
 i

n 
th

e 
ca

rv
in

g 
of

 i
ts

 d
ec

or
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
lie

f 
fig

ur
e 

of
 a

 
Fi

rs
t 

W
or

ld
 W

ar
 s

ol
di

er
.  

A
s 

a 
re

co
rd

 o
f t

he
 fa

lle
n 

of
 

bo
th

 
W

or
ld

 
W

ar
s 

it 
is 

cl
ea

rl
y 

of
 

na
tio

na
l 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
. 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 91



 T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

 (n
or

th
 s

id
e,

 o
ff)

 
 M

an
or

 H
ou

se
 F

ar
m

ho
us

e 
fo

rm
al

ly
 li

st
ed

 a
s 

St
re

ns
al

l H
al

l 
 G

ra
de

 I
I 

 H
ou

se
. 

 L
at

e 
C

17
 i

n 
or

ig
in

, 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 a

lte
re

d 
C

18
 a

nd
 C

20
. 

 W
hi

te
w

as
he

d 
br

ic
k,

 C
20

 p
la

in
 t

ile
 

ro
of

.  
L-

sh
ap

ed
 o

n 
pl

an
 w

ith
 c

en
tr

al
-h

al
lw

ay
 e

nt
ry

.  
2 

st
or

ey
s, 

5 
ba

ys
. 

 
Ea

rl
y 

C
19

 
ha

lf-
gl

az
ed

 
do

or
 

be
ne

at
h 

G
ot

hi
ck

-t
ra

ce
ri

ed
 f

an
lig

ht
 i

n 
pe

di
m

en
te

d 
do

or
ca

se
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
on

 
sle

nd
er

 
co

lu
m

ns
.  

Su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l f

ir
st

-fl
oo

r 
st

ri
ng

 c
ou

rs
e.

  
PV

C
 w

in
do

w
s 

in
 

or
ig

in
al

 
op

en
in

gs
, 

be
ne

at
h 

el
lip

tic
al

 
re

lie
vi

ng
 

ar
ch

es
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
. 

St
ee

pl
y-

pi
tc

he
d 

hi
pp

ed
 

ro
of

.  
St

ac
ks

 r
em

ov
ed

 a
t 

19
84

 r
e-

ro
of

in
g.

  
In

te
ri

or
: 

la
te

 
C

17
 

cl
os

ed
 

st
ri

ng
 

st
ai

rc
as

e 
w

ith
 

pl
ai

n 
sq

ua
t 

ba
lu

st
er

s. 
 L

an
di

ng
 b

al
us

tr
ad

e 
is 

a 
C

20
 c

op
y.

 

St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 92



St
re

ns
al

l C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

 T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

(n
or

th
 s

id
e)

 
 N

o.
 5

9 
(f

or
m

al
ly

 li
st

ed
 a

s 
T

he
 G

ra
ng

e)
 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 H

ou
se

.  
La

te
 C

18
 r

em
od

el
le

d 
ea

rl
y 

C
19

.  
Br

ic
k 

in
 

Fl
em

ish
 b

on
d,

 p
an

til
e 

ro
of

.  
C

en
tr

al
-h

al
lw

ay
 e

nt
ry

, 2
 

ro
om

s 
in

 d
ep

th
.  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
3 

ba
ys

.  
6-

pa
ne

l d
oo

r-
w

ay
 b

en
ea

th
 d

iv
id

ed
 o

ve
rl

ig
ht

 in
 D

or
ic

 d
oo

rc
as

e 
w

ith
 e

ng
ag

es
 c

ol
um

ns
.  

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

16
-p

an
e 

sa
sh

es
 b

en
ea

th
 c

am
be

re
d 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

.  
H

ea
vy

 t
im

-
be

r 
co

rn
ic

e 
w

ith
 p

ai
re

d 
de

nt
ils

.  
G

ab
le

 c
op

in
g 

an
d 

en
d 

st
ac

ks
. 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



S
T

R
E

N
S

A
L

L
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

  
C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

  
A

R
E

A
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
  
 

 

 

In
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
ith

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 

Pa
ri

sh
 C

ou
nc

il 

Page 95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 
 

 1 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  2
 

 
 2 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

C
on

te
xt

  
 

 
 

 
 

  3
 

 
   

 3 
To

po
gr

ap
hy

 a
nd

 S
et

tin
g 

 
 

 
 

 
  4

   
   

 4 
H

ist
or

ic
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 

 
 

 
 

  5
 

 5 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
Bo

un
da

ry
 

 
 

 
 

  7
 

   
   

 
 

6 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  9

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

7 
Fu

tu
re

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Su
gg

es
tio

ns
 

   
 

 
 

  1
2 

 
    

 
  

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
Li

st
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

ns
 

 
   St

re
ns

al
l R

ai
lw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

pp
ra

isa
l, 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

1 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

Th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
by

 W
oo

dh
al

l P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
he

 fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 

co
nt

en
t 

w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
es

ig
n,

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Se

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 …
…

…
...

. 
    

Page 96



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
2 

1
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
01

 A
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (L

ist
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

as
) A

ct
 1

99
0 

as
 a

n 
ar

ea
 o

f s
pe

ci
al

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 in

te
re

st
, (

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
or

 a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 w

hi
ch

) i
s 

de
sir

ab
le

 to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

or
 e

nh
an

ce
.  

Se
ct

io
n 

69
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
Lo

ca
l P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
de

sig
na

te
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

ir 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
an

d 
to

 fo
rm

ul
at

e,
 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, p
ro

po
sa

ls 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

(s
ec

tio
n 

71
 a

nd
 7

2 
of

 t
he

 A
ct

). 
 T

he
 A

ct
 

pl
ac

es
 a

 d
ut

y 
up

on
 L

oc
al

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

s. 

1.
02

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
is 

a 
hi

st
or

ic
 v

ill
ag

e,
 lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
of

 Y
or

k 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 1

). 
 T

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Ra
ilw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

w
as

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

in
 2

00
1,

 w
ith

 t
he

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

as
 

sh
ow

n 
on

 M
ap

 2
.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 h

ist
or

ic
 

co
re

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

de
sig

na
te

d 
as

 t
he

 
St

re
ns

al
l C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 t

he
 

su
bj

ec
t 

of
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
A

pp
ra

isa
l d

oc
um

en
t. 

   

1.
03

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

se
ts

 o
ut

 t
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 o
f a

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l o
f t

he
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

Ra
ilw

ay
 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

an
d 

ca
n 

be
 

re
ga

rd
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
in

 fo
ur

 p
ar

ts
. T

he
 fi

rs
t 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

s 
1-

4)
 s

et
s 

th
e 

sc
en

e 
by

 

an
al

ys
in

g 
th

e 
hi

st
or

y 
an

d 
ba

se
lin

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

 5
) r

ev
ie

w
s 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
as

 o
ri

gi
na

lly
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
an

d 
ex

pl
ai

ns
 th

e 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 r

ev
isi

on
 o

f i
ts

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s. 

Th
e 

th
ir

d 
pa

rt
, (

C
ha

pt
er

 6
) d

es
cr

ib
es

 t
he

  
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 T
he

 fi
na

l p
ar

t 
(C

ha
pt

er
 7

) d
isc

us
se

s 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 
co

ul
d 

be
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
pr

es
er

ve
 a

nd
 

en
ha

nc
e 

its
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
nd

 a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e.

 
 1.

04
 T

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 fi
el

d 
w

or
k 

in
 

A
ug

us
t 

an
d 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 is

 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 v

isi
bl

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 d
om

ai
n.

   

1.
05

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Ra

ilw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 a

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

t 
to

 t
he

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 C
ity

 
of

 Y
or

k'
s 

dr
af

t 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

(in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
th

e 
fo

ur
th

 s
et

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
) b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
f C

ity
 o

f Y
or

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

  t
o 

be
 in

se
rt

ed
. T

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

A
pp

ra
isa

l w
ill

 a
lso

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

in
fo

rm
 t

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 L
oc

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

 

    

M
ap

 1
 

Page 97



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
3 

2
 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 

 2
.0

1 
Th

e 
St

re
ns

al
l R

ai
lw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
lie

s 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

5 
ki

lo
m

et
re

s 
no

rt
h 

of
 Y

or
k 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e.

  
St

re
ns

al
l v

ill
ag

e 
sit

s 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 a

nd
 e

as
t 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
an

d 
is 

po
sit

io
ne

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
B1

36
3 

an
d 

A
64

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 1
). 

 
Th

e 
St

re
ns

al
l R

ai
lw

ay
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
sit

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

St
re

ns
al

l v
ill

ag
e 

en
ve

lo
pe

 a
nd

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
at

 
th

e 
ea

st
er

n 
en

d 
of

 S
tr

en
sa

ll,
 la

rg
el

y 
to

 t
he

 
no

rt
h 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
). 

2.
02

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e,
 it

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
sig

na
l b

ox
 a

nd
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
re

sid
en

tia
l p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
al

on
g 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
.  

 2.
03

 I
t 

is 
es

tim
at

ed
 t

ha
t 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
10

0 
pe

op
le

 li
ve

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

   
 

  

Pl
at

e 
1 

 A
er

ia
l v

ie
w

  

Page 98



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
4 

3
 

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
E

T
T

IN
G

 

3.
01

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
vi

lla
ge

 o
cc

up
ie

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 fl

at
 o

pe
n 

ar
ea

 t
o 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 F

os
s. 

Th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 it

se
lf 

is 
su

rr
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

fie
ld

s 
to

 t
he

 
no

rt
h,

 e
as

t 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

 T
he

se
 a

re
as

 o
f o

pe
n 

gr
ou

nd
 e

na
bl

e 
lo

ng
 d

ist
an

ce
 v

ie
w

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 fr

om
 t

he
 n

or
th

.  
To

 t
he

 s
ou

th
-

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

St
re

ns
al

l C
om

m
on

 a
nd

 
St

re
ns

al
l A

rm
y 

C
am

p.
 

 3.
02

 T
he

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 t
he

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
Ra

ilw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

do
m

in
at

ed
 b

y 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 h

ou
sin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

 a
nd

 a
 s

m
al

l 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

 a
nd

 t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

on
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e.

  G
lim

ps
es

 o
f t

he
 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 a

nd
 a

lo
ng

 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 t
ra

ck
s. 

 A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

th
e 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 e
nc

lo
se

d 
by

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
 o

nl
y 

th
e 

op
en

 g
ro

un
d 

to
 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
th

e 
sm

al
l p

la
yi

ng
 fi

el
d 

to
 t

he
 

w
es

t 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 2
) p

ro
vi

di
ng

 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 
fo

r 
op

en
 v

ie
w

s 
an

d 
th

e 
se

ns
e 

of
 s

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fr

om
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

its
el

f. 
  

           
 

Pl
at

e 
2 

Vi
ew

 o
f p

la
yi

ng
 to

 t
he

 w
es

t 
 

Page 99



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
5 

4
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

 
 

4.
01

 
Th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
cl

ea
rl

y 
re

la
te

s 
to

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 S
tr

en
sa

ll 
th

at
 

oc
cu

rr
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
of

 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

. 
 4.

02
 

Th
e 

Yo
rk

 t
o 

Sc
ar

bo
ro

ug
h 

lin
e 

w
as

 
op

en
ed

 in
 1

84
5 

an
d 

it 
is 

un
de

rs
to

od
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

st
at

io
n 

ho
us

e 
w

as
 b

ui
lt 

in
 1

84
8.

  T
he

 
18

54
-5

6 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
  

ill
us

tr
at

es
 t

he
 b

as
ic

 la
yo

ut
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e,

 k
no

w
n 

at
 t

hi
s 

da
te

 a
s 

H
ag

gs
 L

an
e,

 la
id

 o
ut

 in
 it

s 
cu

rr
en

t 
al

ig
nm

en
t 

an
d 

Lo
rd

’s 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 
ex

te
nd

in
g 

so
ut

h 
fr

om
 t

he
 le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g.

   
 4.

03
 

St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 S
ta

tio
n 

is 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 

th
e 

18
54

-5
6 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 m
ap

 b
ut

 it
 

is 
no

t c
le

ar
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
sig

na
l b

ox
 th

at
 

su
rv

iv
es

 t
od

ay
 is

 s
ho

w
n 

at
 t

hi
s 

da
te

.  
It 

is 
al

so
 a

ss
um

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pl
at

fo
rm

 o
pp

os
ite

 
th

e 
sig

na
l b

ox
 w

as
 in

 e
xi

st
en

ce
 a

t 
th

is 
da

te
.  

Th
e 

co
al

 d
ro

ps
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
, b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
pl

at
fo

rm
, 

ar
e 

no
t 

cl
ea

rl
y 

sh
ow

n 
bu

t 
ap

pe
ar

 t
o 

be
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 c

oa
l d

ep
ot

 t
ha

t 
is 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
  

A
lso

 a
t 

th
is 

da
te

 t
he

re
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
be

 a
 

sm
al

l g
ro

up
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 t

o 
th

e 
w

es
t 

of
 

th
e 

st
at

io
n 

ho
us

e 
on

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e 

of
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
. 

 4.
04

 
By

 1
89

2 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 h
as

 n
ot

 
ch

an
ge

d 
sig

ni
fic

an
tly

.  
W

ha
t 

ha
s 

Pl
at

e 
3 

Ea
rl

y 
bu

ild
in

g 

Pl
at

e 
4 

Vi
ew

 o
f h

ou
se

s 
on

 t
he

 n
or

th
 s

id
e 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 

Pl
at

e 
5 

Th
e 

sig
na

l b
ox

 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 a

pp
ea

re
d 

to
 b

e 
a 

sm
al

l g
ro

up
 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 
Vi

lla
ge

 (n
ow

 s
ho

w
n 

as
 S

ta
tio

n 
Ro

ad
) t

o 
th

e 
w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e,

 n
ow

 
ap

pe
ar

s 
as

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
bu

ild
in

g,
 w

hi
ch

 s
til

l 
su

rv
iv

es
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
). 

 O
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

tw
o 

ho
us

es
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

ui
lt 

at
 it

s 
ea

st
er

n 
en

d 
op

po
sit

e 
th

e 
le

ve
l c

ro
ss

in
g.

 
 4.

05
 

By
 th

e 
ea

rl
y 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 m
os

t o
f 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

d 
be

en
 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d,

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 t
he

 1
91

2-
13

 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 m

ap
.  

Th
is 

sh
ow

s 
ho

us
es

 o
n 

bo
th

 s
id

es
 o

f T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

(s
ee

 
Pl

at
e 

4)
, a

lth
ou

gh
 a

 g
ap

 e
xi

st
s 

on
 t

he
 

no
rt

h 
sid

e.
  A

lso
, b

y 
th

is 
da

te
 t

he
 s

ig
na

l 
bo

x 
is 

cl
ea

rl
y 

sh
ow

n 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 5
) a

nd
 t

he
 

br
ic

k 
an

d 
til

e 
w

or
ks

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
ha

d 
be

en
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d.
 

 4.
06

 
Li

tt
le

 c
ha

ng
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 t

w
en

tie
th

 
ce

nt
ur

y.
  T

he
 c

in
de

r 
tr

ac
k 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 t

he
 

br
ic

k 
an

d 
til

e 
w

or
ks

 w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
s 

hi
gh

w
ay

 a
nd

 L
or

ds
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

, l
ea

di
ng

 
so

ut
h 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
ig

na
l b

ox
, b

ec
am

e 
a 

fo
rm

al
 e

xt
en

sio
n 

to
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

ro
ad

.  
In

 
19

30
s 

St
re

ns
al

l S
ta

tio
n 

cl
os

ed
 t

o 
re

gu
la

r 
tim

et
ab

le
d 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
, b

ut
 S

un
da

y 

Page 100



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
6 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
6 

O
bl

iq
ue

 v
ie

w
 o

f 1
28

a 
on

 r
ig

ht
 

ha
nd

 s
id

e 

  

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 e
xc

ur
sio

ns
 o

pe
ra

te
d 

un
til

 
th

e 
19

50
s. 

 T
he

 s
ta

tio
n 

w
as

 a
lso

 u
se

d 
by

 
th

e 
ne

ar
by

 a
rm

y 
ba

se
 d

ur
in

g 
W

or
ld

 W
ar

 
Tw

o.
  T

he
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e 

w
as

 b
ro

ug
ht

 
ba

ck
 in

to
 u

se
 a

s 
a 

pr
iv

at
e 

re
sid

en
tia

l u
ni

t 
at

 s
om

e 
st

ag
e 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
ha

lf 
of

 
th

e 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

 4.
07

  
N

o.
 1

01
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
w

as
 b

ui
lt 

in
 1

93
7 

to
 

se
rv

e 
as

 t
he

 lo
ca

l d
oc

to
r’

s 
ho

us
e 

an
d 

su
rg

er
y 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 9

) a
nd

 a
t 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

tim
e 

th
e 

N
or

th
fie

ld
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
as

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h.
  L

at
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 in
vo

lv
ed

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 h

ou
se

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 6
). 

  F
in

al
ly

, 
“S

ta
tio

n 
Ro

ad
” 

w
as

 r
e-

na
m

ed
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
du

ri
ng

 t
he

 s
ec

on
d 

ha
lf 

of
 t

he
 t

w
en

tie
th

 
ce

nt
ur

y.
 

            

Page 101



18
52

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 102



19
11

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 103



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
7 

5 
C

O
N

SE
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 

5.
01

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
is 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e.

  T
he

re
fo

re
 t

he
 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 h
as

 
be

en
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

st
ud

ie
d 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 n
ew

 
ar

ea
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

r 
ex

ist
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

ex
cl

ud
ed

.  
 

  
E

xi
st

in
g 

bo
un

da
ry

 
5.

02
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

on
 M

ap
 2

.  
 T

he
 e

as
te

rn
 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 it

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 s
ig

na
l b

ox
 

an
d 

le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g.
   

It 
is 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
es

 
w

ha
t 

ar
e 

un
de

rs
to

od
 t

o 
be

 t
he

 fo
rm

er
 

sid
in

gs
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h–

w
es

t. 
 T

he
 r

em
in

de
r 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ou

nd
 

ho
us

in
g 

on
 b

ot
h 

sid
es

 o
f T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
w

hi
ch

 r
un

s 
in

 a
n 

ea
st

/w
es

t 
di

re
ct

io
n.

 
  

P
os

si
bl

e 
al

te
ra

ti
on

s 
5.

03
 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 a
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
el

y 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
cu

rr
en

t 
bo

un
da

ry
. 

  
P

os
si

bl
e 

ad
di

ti
on

s 
5.

04
 

Tw
o 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

pu
t 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
in

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a:

 t
he

 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 a

nd
 c

on
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
ra

ilw
ay

 h
ou

sin
g 

to
 t

he
 w

es
t. 

To
 t

he
 n

or
th

 
of

 t
he

 r
ai

lw
ay

 li
ne

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

 le
ve

l 
cr

os
sin

g 
is 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
.  

Th
is 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

co
al

 d
ro

ps
 th

at
 w

er
e 

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 7
)  

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
in

 fo
rm

 o
f a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 u

nc
ov

er
ed

 
br

ic
k 

ba
ys

 t
ha

t 
ab

ut
 th

e 
w

al
l t

ha
t 

w
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 o
ld

 p
la

tfo
rm

, w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
m

ol
ish

ed
. T

he
 1

85
4-

56
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 

m
ap

 in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 t

he
re

 w
as

 a
 c

oa
l d

ep
ot

 
at

 t
he

 s
ta

tio
n.

  I
n 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
ir

 h
ist

or
ic

 
as

so
ci

at
io

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ya
rd

 is
 w

or
th

y 
of

 
in

cl
us

io
n 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 (A

re
a 

A
 o

n 
M

ap
 2

). 
 T

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ya
rd

 is
 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
 li

ne
 o

f v
ie

w
 fr

om
 t

he
 w

es
t w

he
n 

tr
av

el
in

g 
al

on
g 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
ro

ad
 a

nd
 t

he
re

fo
re

 
an

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
m

us
t 

be
 s

tr
ic

tly
 

co
nt

ro
lle

d.
 

 5.
05

 
Be

yo
nd

 t
he

 w
es

te
rn

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

ar
e 

fiv
e 

re
sid

en
tia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

of
 in

te
re

st
: 

N
os

. 9
3 

- 1
01

 (A
re

a 
B 

on
 M

ap
 2

). 
 N

os
. 

93
-9

9 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 8
) a

re
 a

 t
w

o 
vi

lla
 p

ai
rs

 o
f 

sim
ila

r 
ag

e 
an

d 
fo

rm
 t

o 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

vi
lla

 p
ai

rs
 

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
, a

lth
ou

gh
 N

os
. 9

7 
an

d 
99

 h
av

e 
lo

st
 m

os
t 

of
 t

he
ir

 o
ri

gi
na

l 
de

ta
ils

.  
N

o.
 1

01
 is

 a
n 

in
te

re
st

in
g 

 a
nd

 w
el

l 
de

sig
ne

d 
de

ta
ch

ed
 h

ou
se

, d
at

ed
 1

93
7 

(s
ee

 
Pl

at
e 

9)
.  

It 
w

as
 p

ur
po

se
 b

ui
lt 

as
 a

 d
oc

to
r’

s 

Pl
at

e 
8 

N
os

. 9
3-

99
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e 

Pl
at

e 
9 

 N
o.

 1
01

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

Pl
at

e 
7 

Vi
ew

 o
f  

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 

Page 104



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
8 

 

 Pl
at

e 
10

 N
o.

 1
03

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

ho
us

e 
an

d 
su

rg
er

y.
  I

n 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 t

he
se

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 it

 is
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

. 
 5.

06
 

It 
is 

al
so

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

N
o.

 1
03

 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
.  

Th
is 

is 
a 

sin
gl

e 
st

or
ey

 la
te

 t
w

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 

ho
us

e 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
0)

.  
A

lth
ou

gh
 it

 is
 o

f n
o 

sp
ec

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t 

it 
is 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ho

us
e 

in
 t

he
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
se

ns
ib

ly
 

co
nn

ec
t 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 e
xt

en
sio

n 
to

 t
he

 
ex

ist
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry
. 

  
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

5.
07

 
In

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

ab
ov

e,
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 t

he
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

be
 a

lte
re

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 (A

re
a 

A
 

on
 M

ap
 2

) a
nd

 n
um

be
rs

 9
3 

- 1
03

 T
he

 
Vi

lla
ge

 (A
re

a 
B 

on
 M

ap
 2

). 
 

   
  

 
  

 

Page 105



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125
Is

su
es

FB

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67

El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a
1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB

C
op

pe
rf

ie
ld

Li
tt

le

72

10

M
ap

 2
  -

 C
ur

re
nt

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
   

 A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

north

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

A
re

a 
B

A
re

a 
A

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 106



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
9 

6 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
 

6.
01

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

 
of

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 o

f t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

 
  

U
se

 
6.

02
 T

he
 p

re
do

m
in

an
t 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 is
 r

es
id

en
tia

l, 
w

ith
 t

he
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 s

ig
na

l b
ox

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 t

he
 le

ve
l 

cr
os

sin
g 

at
 t

he
 e

as
t 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 3

 a
nd

 P
la

te
 1

1)
.  

Th
e 

fo
rm

er
 

st
at

io
n 

ya
rd

 (A
re

a 
A

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ad
di

tio
ns

) w
as

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 b

ui
ld

er
s 

ya
rd

 w
ith

 
in

fo
rm

al
 o

ffi
ce

 u
nt

il 
re

ce
nt

ly
.  

W
ith

in
 A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

n 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

tw
o 

sm
al

l 
ar

ea
s 

of
 la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

on
 e

ith
er

 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
w

ith
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
.  

  
  

Q
ua

lit
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

6.
03

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
th

er
e 

is 
on

ly
 

on
e 

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 4

 a
nd

 in
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

). 
 T

hi
s 

is 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 a

nd
 w

as
 b

ui
lt 

in
 c

ir
ca

 
18

48
 fo

r 
th

e 
Yo

rk
 a

nd
 N

or
th

 M
id

la
nd

 
Ra

ilw
ay

 L
in

e.
  T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

is 
tw

o 
st

or
ey

s 
in

 
he

ig
ht

 a
nd

 is
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 o

f l
oc

al
 b

ri
ck

 w
ith

 
st

on
e 

dr
es

sin
gs

 a
nd

 a
rc

h-
he

ad
ed

 w
in

do
w

s 
un

de
r 

a 
sh

al
lo

w
 p

itc
he

d 
ov

er
ha

ng
in

g 
sla

te
 

ro
of

.  
It 

ha
s 

a 
m

ai
n 

ra
ng

e 
w

ith
 a

 c
en

tr
al

 b
ay

 
th

at
 b

re
ak

s 
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 

an
d 

is 
ty

pi
ca

l o
f t

he
 e

ar
ly

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 

ra
ilw

ay
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

2)
.  

 

Pl
at

e 
11

 V
ie

w
 t

ow
ar

ds
 t

he
 s

ig
na

l b
ox

 

Pl
at

e1
2 

Th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e 

 Pl
at

e 
13

 
Ex

am
pl

e 
of

 a
 v

ill
a 

pa
ir

 
 

6.
04

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
ot

he
r 

bu
ild

in
g 

th
at

 r
el

at
es

 
di

re
ct

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 is
 t

he
 s

ig
na

l b
ox

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
(s

ee
 

Pl
at

es
 5

 a
nd

 1
1)

.  
Th

is 
ha

s 
a 

br
ic

k 
ba

se
 

w
ith

 a
 d

ist
in

ct
iv

e 
gl

az
ed

 fi
rs

t 
flo

or
.  

 6.
05

 O
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

N
os

. 1
26

 
&

 1
28

 a
re

 t
he

 o
nl

y 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f a
n 

ea
rl

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

.  
Th

e 
ho

us
e 

is 
se

m
i-d

et
ac

he
d 

w
ith

 a
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, i

s 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
of

 b
ri

ck
s 

w
ith

 n
o 

de
co

ra
tiv

e 
de

ta
ili

ng
 a

nd
 h

as
 a

 p
an

til
ed

 
ro

of
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
). 

  
 6.

06
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

re
 la

te
 V

ic
to

ri
an

 o
r 

ea
rl

y 
Ed

w
ar

di
an

 in
 s

ty
le

.  
Th

es
e 

ar
e 

tw
o 

st
or

ey
s 

in
 h

ei
gh

t, 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
of

 r
ed

 b
ri

ck
 

an
d 

ha
ve

 p
itc

he
d 

sla
te

 r
oo

fs
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 
13

). 
 T

he
 p

re
do

m
in

an
t 

bu
ild

in
g 

fo
rm

 is
 

sm
al

l v
ill

a 
pa

ir
s 

bu
t 

th
er

e 
is 

on
e 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
 a

 s
ho

rt
 t

er
ra

ce
 c

on
ta

in
in

g 
fiv

e 
un

its
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e.
  T

he
se

 
ho

us
es

 s
it 

be
hi

nd
 s

m
al

l f
ro

nt
 g

ar
de

ns
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

de
fin

ed
 b

y 
a 

lo
w

 b
ri

ck
 w

al
l t

op
pe

d 
w

ith
 a

 s
to

ne
 c

op
in

g.
  T

he
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
po

sit
io

ne
d 

cl
os

e 
to

ge
th

er
 w

hi
ch

 c
re

at
es

 a
 

fin
e 

lin
ea

r 
ur

ba
n 

gr
ai

n 
an

d 
al

so
 r

es
ul

ts
 in

 a
 

hi
gh

 d
en

sit
y 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

  
 6.

07
 M

an
y 

of
 t

he
se

 la
te

r 
ho

us
es

 h
av

e 
de

co
ra

tiv
e 

de
ta

ili
ng

, i
n 

co
nt

ra
st

 t
o 

th
e 

Page 107



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
10

 

Pl
at

e 
15

 V
ie

w
 e

as
t 

al
on

g 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 
 

Br
ec

ks
 la

ne
 in

 t
he

 m
id

 t
w

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
.  

Th
e 

bu
s 

te
rm

in
us

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

-lo
ca

te
d 

no
rt

h.
 

N
on

e 
of

 t
he

 p
av

em
en

ts
 r

et
ai

n 
th

ei
r 

or
ig

in
al

 
m

at
er

ia
ls,

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
w

ith
 

m
od

er
n 

co
nc

re
te

 k
er

bs
 a

nd
 ta

rm
ac

 
su

rf
ac

in
g.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 r
ub

be
r 

ro
ad

 s
ur

fa
ce

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
do

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 

in
te

re
st

 a
nd

 v
ar

ie
ty

 to
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 r

ef
le

ct
s 

its
 fu

nc
tio

n.
 

 6.
10

 T
he

re
 a

re
 t

w
o 

sm
al

l o
pe

n 
gr

as
se

d 
sp

ac
es

, 
ea

ch
 p

la
nt

ed
 w

ith
 o

rn
am

en
ta

l t
re

es
 w

ith
in

 
A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 o
n 

ei
th

er
 s

id
e 

of
 t

he
 ju

nc
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
N

or
th

fie
ld

s 
an

d 
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

.  
Th

es
e 

sp
ac

es
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 b
re

ak
 in

 t
he

 b
ui

lt 
fo

rm
 o

f 
th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 t

he
 t

re
es

 c
re

at
e 

an
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
ar

ea
 o

f l
an

ds
ca

pe
 (s

ee
 M

ap
 5

). 
 6.

11
 V

ie
w

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
re

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 a

lo
ng

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

to
 e

ith
er

 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 5
 

an
d 

Pl
at

e 
15

). 
 S

im
ila

rl
y,

 v
ie

w
s 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
in

to
 a

nd
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
lo

ng
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 r
oa

ds
.  

A
lso

, t
he

re
 a

re
 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
vi

ew
s 

ou
t 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

fr
om

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
lo

ok
in

g 
al

on
g 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 t

ra
ck

s 
in

 b
ot

h 
di

re
ct

io
ns

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 

17
). 

 T
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

an
 

ob
liq

ue
 v

ie
w

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ho

us
e 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 5
 a

nd
 P

la
te

 1
2)

.  
 

 6.
12

 A
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
vi

ew
 in

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

ex
ist

s 
lo

ok
in

g 
no

rt
h 

al
on

g 
Lo

rd
’s 

M
oo

r 
La

ne
.  

Th
is 

vi
ew

 is
 fr

am
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

sig
na

l b
ox

 a
nd

 

ol
de

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 t
he

 a
re

a.
  D

en
til

ed
 b

ri
ck

 
co

ur
sin

g 
ab

ov
e 

op
en

in
gs

 o
r 

a 
st

ri
ng

 c
ou

rs
e 

of
 w

hi
te

 c
on

tr
as

tin
g 

br
ic

k 
w

or
k 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
te

re
st

 t
o 

th
e 

fa
ça

de
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
3)

.  
C

an
te

d 
ba

y 
w

in
do

w
s 

ar
e 

a 
fe

at
ur

e 
of

 t
he

se
 

ho
us

es
 a

nd
 t

he
se

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 r

hy
th

m
 t

o 
th

e 
fa

ça
de

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

.  
Th

e 
fr

on
t 

do
or

s 
ar

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

tim
be

r 
po

rc
he

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
4)

.  
Th

es
e 

po
rc

he
s 

of
te

n 
ha

ve
 e

la
bo

ra
te

 c
ar

ve
d 

pa
ne

ls 
an

d 
br

ac
ke

ts
.  

M
an

y 
of

 t
he

 h
ou

se
s 

re
ta

in
 

th
ei

r 
or

ig
in

al
 v

er
tic

al
 s

lid
in

g 
sa

sh
 w

in
do

w
s 

an
d 

tim
be

r 
do

or
s. 

 6.
08

 T
he

re
 is

 o
ne

 la
te

r 
di

st
in

ct
iv

e 
ho

us
e 

(N
o.

 
10

1 
th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

), 
da

te
d 

19
37

, w
hi

ch
 a

lso
 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
s 

to
 t

he
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 9
). 

 T
hi

s 
is 

w
ith

in
 A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

dd
iti

on
s 

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 

at
 t

he
 w

es
t 

en
d 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e.
  T

he
 h

ou
se

 
is 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

w
ith

 r
ed

 b
ri

ck
 u

nd
er

 h
ip

pe
d 

pa
nt

ile
 r

oo
f. 

 It
 h

as
 a

 s
im

pl
e 

fo
rm

 w
ith

 li
tt

le
 

el
ab

or
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 t
he

 e
xc

ep
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 
br

ac
ke

t 
po

rc
h 

ov
er

 t
he

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
do

or
. 

  
Sp

ac
es

 a
nd

 v
ie

w
s 

6.
09

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 

lim
ite

d 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
pa

ce
s 

du
e 

to
 t

he
 fo

rm
 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

its
 s

m
al

l s
iz

e.
  T

he
 m

ai
n 

sp
ac

es
 a

re
 t

he
 r

oa
ds

 a
nd

 t
he

ir
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
el

em
en

ts
.  

Th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l w

id
th

 o
f T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

t 
its

 e
as

t 
en

d 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 t
hi

s 
w

as
 

a 
te

rm
in

us
 fo

r 
th

e 
bu

s 
an

d 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

s 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 t
hr

ou
gh

 r
oa

ds
 

un
til

 t
he

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 L
or

ds
 M

oo
r 

La
ne

 a
nd

 

Pl
at

e 
14

 D
ec

or
at

iv
e 

br
ac

ke
te

d 
po

rc
he

s 
 Pl

at
e 

16
 V

ie
w

 in
to

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

fr
om

 
 

Lo
rd

’s 
M

oo
r 

La
ne

 

Page 108



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
11

 

Pl
at

e 
17

 R
ai

lw
ay

 t
ra

ck
s 

ga
te

s 
at

 t
he

 le
ve

l c
ro

ss
in

g 
an

d 
th

e 
vi

st
a 

is 
cl

os
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ho
us

es
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 

Th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
6)

.  
Th

e 
le

ve
l 

cr
os

sin
g 

ac
ts

 a
s 

a 
ga

te
w

ay
 a

s 
it 

m
ar

ks
 t

he
 

en
tr

y 
in

to
 t

he
 a

re
a 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 a

nd
 t

he
 

sig
na

l b
ox

 a
ct

s 
as

 a
 lo

ca
l l

an
dm

ar
k 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 
5)

.  
 

 6.
13

 T
he

 fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 (A

re
a 

A
 o

f t
he

  o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

s 
to

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

) i
s 

a 
pr

iv
at

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 o
f h

ist
or

ic
 

sig
ni

fic
an

ce
.  

It 
co

nt
ai

ns
 c

oa
l d

ro
ps

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

st
or

ag
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 
ra

ilw
ay

 t
ha

t 
co

m
pr

ise
 o

f a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 la
rg

e 
un

co
ve

re
d 

br
ic

k-
bu

ilt
 b

ay
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 7

). 
  

  
So

ft
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 

6.
14

 T
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 V

ill
ag

e 
is 

so
fte

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 t

re
es

, s
hr

ub
s 

an
d 

he
dg

es
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 t

he
 fr

on
t 

ga
rd

en
s 

of
 t

he
 h

ou
se

s. 
 

Th
e 

la
rg

e 
m

at
ur

e 
tr

ee
s 

in
 t

he
 g

ar
de

n 
ar

ea
 

of
 t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e 
at

 t
he

 e
as

t 
en

d 
m

ak
e 

a 
ve

ry
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
co

nt
ri

bu
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
as

 d
o 

ot
he

r 
tr

ee
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
or

na
m

en
ta

l t
re

es
 a

t 
ro

ad
 ju

nc
tio

ns
 (s

ee
 

Pl
at

e 
18

 a
nd

 M
ap

 5
). 

  
N

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 N

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

  
6.

15
 W

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 t
he

re
 a

re
 a

 
lim

ite
d 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 n

eu
tr

al
 a

nd
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

(s
ee

 M
ap

 4
). 

 6.
16

 W
ith

in
 A

re
a 

B 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ad

di
tio

n 
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a,
 N

os
. 9

7 
an

d 
99

 T
he

 

Vi
lla

ge
 a

re
 a

 v
ill

a 
pa

ir
, w

hi
ch

 h
as

 it
s 

br
ic

kw
or

k 
co

ve
re

d 
w

ith
 r

en
de

r;
 t

hi
s 

ha
s 

al
so

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f m

uc
h 

of
 it

s 
or

ig
in

al
 d

et
ai

lin
g.

  A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
st

ill
 d

isp
la

ys
 it

s 
or

ig
in

al
 fo

rm
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 

be
 r

e-
in

st
at

ed
.  

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 it
 is

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
is 

a 
ne

ut
ra

l 
fa

ct
or

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
.  

 6.
17

 I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 s
om

e 
ho

us
es

 h
av

e 
un

fo
rt

un
at

el
y 

lo
st

 t
he

ir 
or

ig
in

al
 t

im
be

r 
w

in
do

w
 fr

am
es

 a
nd

 fr
on

t 
do

or
s. 

 O
th

er
 

ho
us

es
 h

av
e 

lo
st

 t
he

ir
 fr

on
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 
w

al
ls 

an
d 

th
e 

fr
on

t 
ga

rd
en

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
pl

ac
ed

 w
ith

 h
ar

d 
su

rf
ac

in
g 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g.

 
 6.

18
 O

n 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 T

he
 V

ill
ag

e,
 to

 th
e 

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 fo

rm
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

ho
us

e 
is 

a 
la

rg
e 

m
od

er
n 

ho
us

e 
se

t 
ba

ck
 fr

om
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 

bu
ild

in
g 

lin
e 

w
ith

 a
n 

L-
sh

ap
ed

 fo
ot

pr
in

t 
an

d 
la

rg
e 

do
rm

er
 w

in
do

w
.  

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 it

s 
ex

po
se

d 
lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
its

 
un

ch
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ty
po

lo
gy

 a
nd

 
do

rm
er

 w
in

do
w

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 a

 m
in

or
 

in
tr

us
io

n 
in

to
 t

he
 a

re
a 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

9)
.  

Si
m

ila
rl

y 
th

e 
bu

ng
al

ow
 a

t 
N

o.
 1

03
 T

he
 

Vi
lla

ge
 (w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 A
re

a 
B 

of
 t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

) 
is 

al
so

 u
nc

ha
ra

ct
er

ist
ic

 o
f t

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 
of

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

0)
.  

  
   

     
Pl

at
e 

19
  V

ie
w

 o
f m

od
er

n 
ho

us
e 

on
 t

he
 

so
ut

h 
sid

e 
of

 T
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

Pl
at

e 
18

 T
re

es
 in

 g
ar

de
n 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 fo

rm
er

 
st

at
io

n 
ho

us
e 

Page 109



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125

Is
su

es

FB

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67

El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a

1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB
Li

tt
le

72

10

M
ap

 3
 -

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

es

R
es

id
en

tia
l (

in
cl

ud
in

g
st

ud
en

t r
es

id
en

ce
s 

an
d 

ca
re

ho
m

e)

north

T
ra

ns
po

rt

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

V
ac

an
t

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 110



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125
Is

su
es

FB

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67

El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a
1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB

C
op

pe
rf

ie
ld

Li
tt

le

72

10

M
ap

 4
 -

  B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

north

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ga

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ut

ra
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 111



17
.2

m

128

Paddock

66a

10
3

11
3 St

on
e

Drain

Th
e 

Fi
rs

18
.0

m 130
100

125

Is
su

es

FB

Th
e 

H
aw

th
or

ns

G
re

en
sle

ev
es

1 St
at

io
n

1

8

93 92

K
ar

el
ia

Mast

2

Si
gn

al
 G

an
tr

y

LA
N

E

Tr
ac

k

H
ea

th
fie

ld

Be
ec

hw
oo

d

Pinewood

10
1

110

LC

67
El

The

Su
b

13
3

NORTHFIELDS

LB

BR
EC

KS

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

TH
E 

SID
IN

G
S

Ya
rd

120

PARK GATE

St
a

17
.6

m

Ri
dg

e

128a

1

M
P 

.5

Drain

SB

C
op

pe
rf

ie
ld

Li
tt

le

72

10

M
ap

 5
 -

  S
pa

tia
l a

na
ly

si
s

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

La
nd

m
ar

ks

M
ed

iu
m

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

Lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

north

T
re

es

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

G
at

ew
ay

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 112



St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
12

 

7
 

  
F

U
T

U
R

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

U
G

G
E

S
T

IO
N

S
 

7.
01

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

iss
ue

s 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
rm

 t
he

 
ba

sis
 fo

r 
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
  H

ow
ev

er
, a

ll 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 a

pp
ra

isa
l s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r 
pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
or

 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
iss

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

 7.
02

 
C

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 

in
tr

od
uc

in
g 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 (2

) d
ir

ec
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
  T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

to
 

un
lis

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

co
ul

d 
be

 u
se

d,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 t

o 
re

sis
t 

th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 t

im
be

r 
do

or
s 

an
d 

w
in

do
w

s 
in

 u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls/
st

yl
es

, 
or

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f t

yp
ic

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 

ga
te

s, 
fe

nc
es

, w
al

ls 
or

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 o
f 

en
cl

os
ur

e.
 

 7.
03

 
W

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
va

ri
et

y 
of

 
lig

ht
in

g 
co

lu
m

n 
de

sig
ns

.  
It 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

ne
fic

ia
l i

f t
he

 c
ol

um
ns

 w
er

e 
of

 a
 

co
ns

ist
en

t 
de

sig
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, o
f a

 h
um

an
 

sc
al

e.
  A

lso
, t

he
 li

gh
t 

em
iss

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ym
pa

th
et

ic
 t

o 
a 

ru
ra

l l
oc

at
io

n.
 

 7.
04

 
Re

gu
la

r 
tr

ee
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
an

d 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
em

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
in

fo
rc

em
en

t 
of

 h
ed

ge
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
m

at
ur

e 
pl

an
tin

g.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 it

 is
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
re

-
su

rv
ey

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 it
s 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

et
tin

g 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
if 

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

Tr
ee

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e.

 
 7.

05
 

Th
e 

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ya

rd
 t

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 h

as
 a

n 
op

en
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
w

hi
ch

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 r
et

ai
ne

d 
sh

ou
ld

 t
he

 s
ite

 b
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 t

he
 

fu
tu

re
. 

    

Page 113



L
IS

T
E

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
S 

                         St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
Page 114



T
H

E
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 

(s
ou

th
 s

id
e)

 
 N

o.
 1

30
 (

St
at

io
n 

H
ou

se
) 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 St

at
io

n.
 N

ow
 h

ou
se

. 
C

18
48

. 
 P

ro
ba

bl
y 

by
 G

 T
 

A
nd

re
w

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
Yo

rk
 a

nd
 N

or
th

 M
id

la
nd

 R
ai

lw
ay

.  
Br

ic
k,

 s
to

ne
 d

re
ss

in
gs

 a
nd

 W
el

sh
 s

la
te

 r
oo

f. 
 M

ai
n 

ra
ng

e 
w

ith
 c

en
tr

al
 b

ay
 b

re
ak

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d,

 a
dd

iti
on

 
to

 r
ig

ht
 a

nd
 c

ro
ss

 w
in

gs
 t

o 
re

ar
.  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
5 

ba
ys

 
w

ith
 s

in
gl

e-
st

or
ey

 2
-b

ay
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
ri

gh
t. 

 S
to

ne
 

pl
in

th
. 

 C
en

tr
al

 c
an

te
d 

ba
y 

be
ne

at
h 

w
id

e 
ea

ve
s 

fla
nk

ed
 

by
 

sa
sh

es
 

w
ith

 
gl

az
in

g 
ba

rs
 

be
ne

at
h 

ca
m

be
re

d 
br

ic
k 

ar
ch

es
. 

 R
ig

ht
 e

xt
en

sio
n:

 2
-p

an
el

 
do

or
 w

ith
 o

ve
rl

ig
ht

 b
en

ea
th

 s
eg

m
en

ta
l 

ar
ch

, 
w

ith
 

sa
sh

 w
ith

 g
la

zi
ng

 b
ar

s 
be

ne
at

h 
se

gm
en

ta
l 

ar
ch

 t
o 

le
ft.

  
Fi

rs
t 

flo
or

: c
on

tin
uo

us
 s

to
ne

 b
an

d 
at

 s
ill

 le
ve

l. 
 

Pa
ir

 o
f 

ro
un

d-
ar

ch
ed

 p
la

te
 g

la
ss

 s
as

he
s 

fla
nk

ed
 b

y 
sa

sh
es

 w
ith

 g
la

zi
ng

 b
ar

s 
be

ne
at

h 
ca

m
be

re
d 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

, 
w

ith
 

w
in

do
w

 
op

en
in

g 
to

 
ex

tr
em

e 
le

ft 
bl

oc
ke

d.
 

 
En

d 
an

d 
ri

dg
e 

st
ac

ks
. 

 
Th

e 
Yo

rk
 

to
 

Sc
ar

bo
ro

ug
h 

lin
e 

w
as

 o
pe

ne
d 

in
 1

84
5.

 

St
re

ns
al

l R
ai

lw
ay

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



T
O

W
T

H
O

R
P

E
  
C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

  
 A

R
E

A
  
 A

P
P

R
A

IS
A

L
  
 

  

In
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 S

tr
en

sa
ll 

w
ith

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 

Pa
ri

sh
 C

ou
nc

il 

Page 117



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 
 

 1 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  2
 

 
 2 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

C
on

te
xt

  
 

 
 

 
 

  3
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

3 
 T

op
og

ra
ph

y 
an

d 
Se

tt
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

  4
 

 
   

 4 
 H

ist
or

ic
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 

 
 

 
 

  5
 

   
 5 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

Bo
un

da
ry

 
 

 
 

 
  6

 
 

 
6 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  7
 

 
  

 
 

   
7 

Fu
tu

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Su

gg
es

tio
ns

 
   

 
 

 
  9

 
  

   
 

  
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 - 

Li
st

ed
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 
 

   To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
1 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

Th
is 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
by

 W
oo

dh
al

l P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

on
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
he

 fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 

co
nt

en
t 

w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
es

ig
n,

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Se

ct
io

n 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 …
…

…
...

. 
    Th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 a
m

en
de

d 
fro

m
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 V
illa

ge
 to

 th
e 

To
w

th
or

pe
 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Ar
ea

. 

Page 118



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
2 

1
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

1.
01

 A
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (L

ist
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

) A
ct

 1
99

0 
as

 a
n 

ar
ea

 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 

in
te

re
st

, (
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

or
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 
w

hi
ch

) i
s 

de
sir

ab
le

 t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 o
r 

en
ha

nc
e.

  S
ec

tio
n 

69
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
Lo

ca
l P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
ri

tie
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
de

sig
na

te
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

ir
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

an
d 

to
 

fo
rm

ul
at

e,
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
, 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

(s
ec

tio
n 

71
 a

nd
 7

2 
of

 t
he

 
A

ct
). 

 T
he

 A
ct

 p
la

ce
s 

a 
du

ty
 u

po
n 

Lo
ca

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

ut
ho

ri
tie

s 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s. 

1.
02

 A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

is 
na

m
ed

 a
s 

“T
ow

th
or

pe
 V

ill
ag

e”
, 

To
w

th
or

pe
 is

 a
ct

ua
lly

 a
 s

m
al

l a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
ha

m
le

t, 
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 t
he

 n
or

th
 o

f Y
or

k 
(s

ee
 

M
ap

 1
). 

Th
e 

To
w

th
or

pe
 V

ill
ag

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
w

as
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
in

 
20

01
, w

ith
 t

he
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
as

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 

M
ap

 2
 w

ith
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

.  
Th

e 
w

ho
le

 
ar

ea
 is

 le
ss

 t
ha

n 
9 

he
ct

ar
es

. 

1.
03

 T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

se
ts

 o
ut

 t
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 o
f a

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l o
f t

he
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 
Vi

lla
ge

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

an
d 

ca
n 

be
 

re
ga

rd
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
in

 fo
ur

 p
ar

ts
. T

he
 fi

rs
t 

pa
rt

 (C
ha

pt
er

s 
1-

4)
 s

et
s 

th
e 

sc
en

e 
by

 
an

al
ys

in
g 

th
e 

hi
st

or
y 

an
d 

ba
se

lin
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

of
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

. T
he

 
se

co
nd

 p
ar

t (
C

ha
pt

er
 5

) r
ev

ie
w

s 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
as

 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

an
d 

ex
pl

ai
ns

 t
he

 
re

as
on

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 r

ev
isi

on
 o

f i
ts

 
bo

un
da

ri
es

. T
he

 t
hi

rd
 p

ar
t, 

(C
ha

pt
er

 6
) 

de
sc

ri
be

s 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f t
he

 
ar

ea
 a

s 
re

vi
se

d.
 T

he
 fi

na
l p

ar
t 

(C
ha

pt
er

 
7)

 c
on

ta
in

s 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

1.
04

 T
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is 
ba

se
d 

on
 fi

el
d 

w
or

k 
in

 A
ug

us
t 

an
d 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 is

 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 v

isi
bl

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 d
om

ai
n.

   

1.
05

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 V

ill
ag

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

as
 a

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

t 
to

 t
he

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k'

s 
dr

af
t 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
(in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 s

et
 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
) b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
of

 C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
  t

o 
be

 
in

se
rt

ed
. T

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

pp
ra

isa
l w

ill
 a

lso
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 
th

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

     

M
ap

 1
 

Page 119



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
3 

2
 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 

 2
.0

1 
Th

e 
To

w
th

or
pe

 V
ill

ag
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

lie
s 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
5 

ki
lo

m
et

re
s 

no
rt

h 
of

 
Yo

rk
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e.
  T

ow
th

or
pe

  s
its

 t
o 

th
e 

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
an

d 
is 

po
sit

io
ne

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
H

ax
by

, a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

1 
ki

lo
m

et
re

 t
o 

th
e 

w
es

t, 
an

d 
St

re
ns

al
l w

hi
ch

 
is 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
1.

5 
ki

lo
m

et
re

s 
to

 t
he

 
no

rt
h 

ea
st

 (s
ee

 M
ap

 1
). 

2.
02

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 s
its

 o
n 

bo
th

 s
id

es
 o

f 
To

w
th

or
pe

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
is 

fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ou

nd
 a

 
sm

al
l a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l h

am
le

t 
of

 lo
ng

 s
ta

nd
in

g
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 1
). 

 T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
ro

un
d 

 
an

d 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
la

nd
 fo

rm
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

G
re

en
 B

el
t, 

an
d 

is 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 
in

 t
he

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

as
 a

n 
ar

ea
 p

re
ve

nt
in

g 
co

al
es

ce
nc

e 
(P

ol
ic

y 
G

1)
.  

 2.
03

 I
t 

is 
es

tim
at

ed
 t

ha
t 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
15

 
pe

op
le

 li
ve

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

   
 

  

Pl
at

e 
1 

 A
er

ia
l v

ie
w

  

Page 120



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
4 

3
 

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

 A
N

D
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
E

T
T

IN
G

 

3.
01

 T
ow

th
or

pe
 o

cc
up

ie
s 

pa
rt

 o
f a

n 
op

en
 a

re
a 

to
 t

he
 e

as
t 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s. 
 T

he
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
pp

ea
r 

to
 b

e 
se

t 
on

 a
 s

lig
ht

 r
ise

 
in

 t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
w

he
n 

vi
ew

ed
 fr

om
 t

he
 

w
es

t. 
 T

hi
s 

to
po

gr
ap

hy
 h

as
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

ed
 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

/s
ou

th
 a

lig
nm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t 

an
d 

ca
us

ed
 t

he
 s

ha
rp

 b
en

ds
 o

f 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 r

oa
ds

.  
Th

e 
ha

m
le

t 
its

el
f i

s 
su

rr
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

fie
ld

s. 
Th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 o
pe

n 
gr

ou
nd

 e
na

bl
e 

lo
ng

 d
ist

an
ce

 v
ie

w
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 n
or

th
, s

ou
th

 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

  
 3.

02
 T

he
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
et

tin
g 

of
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 is

 d
om

in
at

ed
 b

y 
op

en
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

la
nd

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 2

). 
 T

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
e 

of
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d 

th
er

e 
is 

an
 u

nu
su

al
 

m
ou

nd
ed

 fi
el

d 
w

hi
ch

 a
pp

ea
rs

 t
o 

be
 m

an
 

m
ad

e.
  T

o 
th

e 
ea

st
, a

lo
ng

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e 

of
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 R
oa

d,
 t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
od

er
n 

re
sid

en
tia

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
  T

o 
th

e 
ea

st
 o

f T
ow

th
or

pe
 v

ill
ag

e 
is 

St
re

ns
al

l 
A

rm
y 

C
am

p.
  T

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h-

ea
st

 c
or

ne
r 

is 
 

a 
he

av
ily

 w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

 b
ey

on
d 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
.  

 
          

 
   

 

Pl
at

e 
2 

 V
ie

w
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

 
A

re
a 

 lo
ok

in
g 

no
rt

h 
al

on
g 

To
w

th
or

pe
 

 
Ro

ad
 

 

Page 121



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
5 

4
 

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 

 
 

4.
01

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

ea
rl

y 
hi

st
or

y 
of

 
To

w
th

or
pe

 is
 li

m
ite

d.
  I

t 
w

as
 a

 w
el

l-
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 s
et

tle
m

en
t 

by
 t

he
 e

le
ve

nt
h 

ce
nt

ur
y 

bu
t 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
m

uc
h 

ea
rl

ie
r 

or
ig

in
s 

as
 t

he
re

 is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

fo
r 

pr
e-

hi
st

or
ic

 a
nd

 
Ro

m
an

 a
ct

iv
ity

 in
 t

he
 w

id
er

 a
re

a.
 

 4.
02

 
Th

e 
to

w
ns

hi
p 

of
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 w
as

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nt

 o
f M

or
ta

in
 in

 1
08

6 
an

d 
at

 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 fo

ur
te

en
th

 c
en

tu
ry

 
w

as
 h

el
d 

by
 t

he
 d

e 
M

au
le

ys
.  

Th
e 

m
oa

t 
on

 
th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 e

dg
e 

of
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

pr
ob

ab
ly

 t
he

 s
ite

 o
f t

he
 e

ar
ly

 
m

an
or

 h
ou

se
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 F
os

s 
fo

r 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n.

  T
he

re
 is

 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f r
id

ge
 a

nd
 fu

rr
ow

 (i
nd

ic
at

io
ns

 
of

 m
ed

ie
va

l p
lo

ug
hi

ng
) t

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h-

w
es

t 
of

 t
he

 h
am

le
t. 

 T
he

re
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 la
nd

 t
en

ur
e 

by
 t

he
 e

ar
ly

 
fif

te
en

th
 c

en
tu

ry
, w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 in
di

ca
te

 a
 

sig
ni

fic
an

t 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 t

he
 s

iz
e 

of
 t

he
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t. 

  
 4.

03
 

Th
e 

siz
e 

of
 t

he
 h

am
le

t 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

un
al

te
re

d 
sin

ce
 t

hi
s 

la
te

 m
ed

ie
va

l 
pe

ri
od

, a
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

re
 w

as
 a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l 

pe
ri

od
 o

f r
eb

ui
ld

in
g 

in
 t

he
 e

ig
ht

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y,
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

lin
ke

d 
to

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.  

M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 fa
rm

 h
ou

se
s 

ap
pe

ar
 t

o 
da

te
 fr

om
 th

is 
pe

ri
od

, a
lth

ou
gh

 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 
la

te
r.

   

Pl
at

e 
3 

Vi
ew

 t
ow

ar
ds

 G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

 

Pl
at

e 
4 

Fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

t 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

Pl
at

e 
5 

M
an

or
 fa

rm
ho

us
e 

4.
04

 
Th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

, a
w

ay
 fr

om
 

th
e 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
th

er
 fa

rm
s 

m
ay

 s
ug

ge
st

 
th

at
 it

 h
ad

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t 

fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 s

ta
tu

s 
(s

ee
 P

la
te

 3
). 

 T
he

 1
85

4 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 

M
ap

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
 it

 w
as

 a
 fo

ca
l p

oi
nt

 a
t 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 h
am

le
t. 

  
 4.

05
 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

fe
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 
To

w
th

or
pe

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

tw
en

tie
th

 c
en

tu
ry

.  
Th

e 
fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

or
th

 o
f M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

) a
pp

ea
rs

 t
o 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ab

so
rb

ed
 b

y 
on

e 
of

 t
he

 o
th

er
 fa

rm
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 c
en

tu
ry

 a
s 

by
 

19
11

 it
s 

ho
us

e 
ha

d 
be

en
 s

ub
-d

iv
id

ed
 in

to
 

th
re

e 
co

tt
ag

es
.  

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

la
tt

er
 h

al
f o

f 
th

e 
tw

en
tie

th
 c

en
tu

ry
 t

he
 c

ot
ta

ge
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 a

lte
re

d 
to

 s
to

ra
ge

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

  
O

ne
 b

un
ga

lo
w

 (B
ei

th
 A

cr
e 

- n
ow

 m
as

siv
el

y 
ex

te
nd

ed
) w

as
 e

re
ct

ed
 in

 t
he

 1
92

0s
 t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 L

ow
 F

ar
m

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

im
ila

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
er

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
to

 t
he

 e
as

t 
of

 
G

ra
ng

e 
Fa

rm
 (o

ut
sid

e 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

). 
 4.

06
 

Th
e 

fa
rm

st
ea

ds
 c

at
er

ed
 fo

r 
a 

m
ix

ed
 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l e

co
no

m
y.

  I
n 

th
e 

la
st

 fe
w

 
de

ca
de

s 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
ra

l a
ct

iv
ity

 h
as

 r
ed

uc
ed

 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 h
am

le
t 

an
d 

m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

ha
ve

 b
ec

om
e 

de
re

lic
t. 

 H
ow

ev
er

, w
ith

in
 

th
e 

pa
st

 t
w

o 
ye

ar
s, 

th
e 

fa
rm

ho
us

es
 a

t 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 a

nd
 L

ow
 F

ar
m

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

re
st

or
ed

. (
se

e 
Pl

at
e 

5)
.  

 
 

Page 122



18
52

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

Page 123



19
30

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 M
ap

 
Th

is 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 M

ap
pi

ng
 w

ith
 p

er
m

iss
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
SO

, ©
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

.  
 

U
na

ut
ho

ri
se

d 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

cr
ow

n 
co

py
rig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 t

o 
pr

os
ec

ut
io

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s 

Page 124



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
6 

5 
C

O
N

SE
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 

5.
01

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l i
s 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

fo
r 

th
er

e 
to

 b
e 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s. 

 T
he

re
fo

re
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
of

 t
he

 
ex

ist
in

g 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

an
d 

ar
ea

s 
ar

ou
nd

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

st
ud

ie
d 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 
w

he
th

er
 a

ny
 n

ew
 a

re
as

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

or
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
ex

cl
ud

ed
.  

 
  

E
xi

st
in

g 
bo

un
da

ry
 

5.
02

 
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
bo

un
da

ry
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 is
 il

lu
st

ra
te

d 
on

 M
ap

 2
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

.  
 

Th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

is 
fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
fiv

e 
fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
es

 m
os

t 
of

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 in
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l u

se
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

 6
). 

 
G

ra
ng

e 
Fa

rm
 s

ta
nd

s 
in

 a
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
iso

la
te

d 
lo

ca
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
 o

f a
 b

en
d 

in
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 7

) b
ut

 t
he

 
ot

he
r 

fo
ur

 fo
rm

er
 fa

rm
 c

om
pl

ex
es

, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 o

ne
 o

th
er

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 fo

rm
 a

 
gr

ou
p 

on
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 t
he

 r
oa

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
no

rt
h.

  T
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
lso

 in
cl

ud
es

 
op

en
 la

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
w

es
t 

sid
e 

of
 t

he
 r

oa
d.

   
   

  
P

os
si

bl
e 

al
te

ra
ti

on
s 

an
d 

ad
di

ti
on

s 
5.

03
 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 a
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
el

y 
an

d 
no

 
fu

rt
he

r 
ad

di
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 a

re
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 

 

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s 

5.
04

 
In

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
ll 

th
e 

ab
ov

e,
 it

 is
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 
th

at
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
an

d 
no

 a
lte

ra
tio

ns
 a

re
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

Pl
at

e 
7 

Vi
ew

 t
ow

ar
ds

 G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

 

Pl
at

e 
6 

Vi
ew

 t
ow

ar
ds

 M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 

Page 125



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 2
 -

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

   
bo

un
da

ry

north

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 126



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
7 

6 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 C
H

A
R

A
C

T
E

R
 

6.
01

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 o

f t
he

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

  
U

se
 

6.
02

 T
he

 p
re

do
m

in
an

t 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

ar
e 

re
sid

en
tia

l a
nd

 
ag

ri
cu

ltu
ra

l (
se

e 
M

ap
 3

). 
 T

he
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

us
es

 h
av

e 
de

cl
in

ed
 a

nd
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 fa

rm
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
re

 v
ac

an
t 

an
d 

de
re

lic
t. 

 T
he

 
sm

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
le

ve
l o

f a
ct

iv
ity

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

an
 e

ss
en

tia
l a

sp
ec

t 
of

 it
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r.
  

  
Q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
6.

03
 T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 t
en

d 
to

 b
e 

la
rg

e 
in

 s
ca

le
 a

nd
 

gr
ou

pe
d 

to
 fo

rm
 e

nc
lo

se
d 

ya
rd

s. 
 T

he
se

 
cl

us
te

rs
 a

re
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 b
y 

ge
ne

ro
us

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 t

he
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l u

se
.  

  
A

 n
um

be
r 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 r
et

ai
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 
of

 h
ei

gh
t 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
r 

su
b-

di
vi

sio
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 a
da

pt
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
ve

r 
a 

pe
ri

od
 o

f t
im

e.
 

 6.
04

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
th

er
e 

is 
on

ly
 o

ne
 li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 4

 a
nd

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
). 

 T
hi

s 
is 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
ho

us
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 m

id
 e

ig
ht

ee
nt

h 
ce

nt
ur

y 
fa

rm
ho

us
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

of
 r

ed
 c

la
m

p 
br

ic
k 

un
de

r 
a 

pi
tc

he
d 

pa
nt

ile
 r

oo
f w

ith
 it

s 

Pl
at

e 
8 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
ho

us
e 

Pl
at

e 
9 

Ba
rn

 a
t 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

 
 Pl

at
e 

10
 B

ar
ns

 a
t 

Lo
w

 F
ar

m
 

 

pr
in

ci
pa

l e
le

va
tio

n 
fa

ci
ng

 s
ou

th
.  

Th
is 

is 
a 

ty
pi

ca
l f

ar
m

ho
us

e 
of

 it
s 

pe
ri

od
, 

w
ith

 a
 s

im
pl

e 
fo

rm
, s

m
al

l h
or

iz
on

ta
l 

sli
di

ng
 s

as
h 

w
in

do
w

s, 
st

ep
pe

d 
ea

ve
s 

co
ur

se
s 

an
d 

ra
ise

d 
ga

bl
es

 (s
ee

 P
la

te
 

8)
.  

Th
e 

ot
he

r 
fa

rm
ho

us
es

 d
isp

la
y 

sim
ila

r 
fo

rm
 a

nd
 d

et
ai

lin
g,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 
w

in
do

w
 t

yp
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 t

o 
ve

rt
ic

al
 s

lid
in

g 
sa

sh
es

. T
he

 fa
rm

ho
us

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 a

pp
ea

rs
 t

o 
ea

rl
ie

r 
an

d 
m

ay
 w

el
l b

e 
of

 s
pe

ci
al

 
in

te
re

st
, a

lth
ou

gh
 it

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
al

te
re

d 
an

d 
is 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
er

el
ic

t. 
  

 6.
05

 T
he

 fa
rm

ho
us

es
 h

av
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 t

he
 r

oa
d.

  A
t 

Lo
w

 
Fa

rm
 a

nd
 W

ill
ow

 F
ar

m
 t

he
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
at

 r
ig

ht
 a

ng
le

s 
to

 t
he

 r
oa

d.
  M

an
or

 
Fa

rm
 h

as
 a

 h
ou

se
 t

ha
t 

fa
ce

s 
ea

st
 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 r

oa
d,

 w
hi

le
 G

ra
ng

e 
fa

rm
 is

 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

el
l a

w
ay

 fr
om

 t
he

 r
oa

d 
an

d 
is 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 b
y 

a 
lo

ng
 d

ri
ve

. 
 6.

06
 A

ll 
of

 t
he

 fa
rm

s 
ha

d 
ra

ng
es

 o
f 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 t
o 

ei
th

er
 h

ou
se

 
liv

es
to

ck
 o

r 
to

 s
to

re
 m

at
er

ia
ls,

 s
uc

h 
as

 h
ay

.  
So

m
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

e-
us

ed
 a

s 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

.  
Th

e 
ea

rl
ie

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

re
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 w

ith
 b

ri
ck

 
un

de
r 

a 
pi

tc
he

d 
ro

of
 w

hi
lst

 t
he

 la
te

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

re
 p

or
ta

l f
ra

m
ed

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

co
ve

re
d 

w
ith

 m
et

al
 (s

ee
 P

la
te

s 
4,

 9
 

Page 127



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
8 

Pl
at

e 
12

 T
re

es
 a

nd
 h

ed
ge

s 
in

 t
he

  
 

 
st

re
et

sc
en

e 
 

la
yo

ut
 t

he
 a

re
a,

 m
an

y 
vi

ew
s 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
.  

  
So

ft
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 

6.
10

 T
he

 s
tr

ee
ts

ce
ne

 a
lo

ng
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 
Ro

ad
 is

 s
of

te
ne

d 
by

 m
an

y 
tr

ee
s 

an
d 

he
dg

es
  (

se
e 

Pl
at

e 
12

 a
nd

 M
ap

 5
). 

 A
s 

no
te

d 
ab

ov
e,

 g
ra

ss
 v

er
ge

s 
ex

ist
 o

n 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f t

he
 n

or
th

er
n 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d.

   
  

N
eu

tr
al

 a
nd

 N
eg

at
iv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
  

6.
11

 W
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 t

he
re

 a
re

 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 n

eu
tr

al
 fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
(s

ee
 M

ap
 4

). 
 B

ei
th

 
A

cr
e 

ha
s 

is 
an

 u
nt

yp
ic

al
 b

un
ga

lo
w

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 m

ad
e 

m
or

e 
ob

vi
ou

s 
by

 t
he

 
co

nt
ra

st
in

g 
m

as
s 

of
 th

e 
re

ar
 

ex
te

ns
io

n.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 t

he
 lo

ss
 o

f a
 

th
e 

fr
on

t 
bo

un
da

ry
 e

nc
lo

su
re

 a
lso

 
cr

ea
te

s 
a 

ga
p 

in
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
ce

ne
. A

lso
, 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 m
od

er
n 

fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

ar
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 

th
ei

r 
sc

al
e 

an
d 

no
n-

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 

m
at

er
ia

ls.
 

 6.
12

 T
he

 r
ec

en
t 

bo
un

da
ry

 w
al

ls 
er

ec
te

d 
at

 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 a

nd
 L

ow
 F

ar
m

 (s
ee

 
Pl

at
es

 5
 a

nd
 1

3)
 a

re
 in

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

to
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 t

he
ir

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

de
ta

ili
ng

.  
Th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

su
ch

 s
m

al
l-s

ca
le

 c
ha

ng
es

 c
an

 q
ui

ck
ly

 
un

de
rm

in
e 

th
e 

sp
ec

ia
l q

ua
lit

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

   
  

&
10

). 
 M

os
t 

of
 t

he
 t

ra
di

tio
na

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
m

ak
e 

a 
po

sit
iv

e 
co

nt
ri

bu
tio

n 
to

 it
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

.  
D

ue
 t

o 
th

ei
r 

fo
rm

er
 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l u

se
 m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
re

 
su

rr
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

op
en

 y
ar

ds
 w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
ts

 in
 

a 
lo

w
 d

en
sit

y 
of

 b
ui

lt 
fo

rm
. 

 6.
07

 B
ei

th
 A

cr
e 

w
as

 o
ri

gi
na

lly
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

s 
a 

m
od

es
t, 

hi
pp

ed
 r

oo
f b

un
ga

lo
w

 b
ut

 a
 v

er
y 

la
rg

e 
tw

o-
st

or
ey

 e
xt

en
sio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

ad
de

d,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

es
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ap
pe

ar
 

in
co

ng
ru

ou
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 1

1)
.  

 
   

Sp
ac

es
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
6.

08
 W

ith
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 t
he

 d
ef

in
ed

 
sp

ac
es

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 
cu

rt
ila

ge
s 

of
 t

he
 fa

rm
ho

us
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

dw
el

lin
gs

.  
Th

es
e 

sp
ac

es
 a

re
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 
ga

rd
en

 a
re

as
 o

r 
ya

rd
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 

fo
rm

er
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l u

se
s 

(s
ee

 P
la

te
 4

). 
 

A
lo

ng
 t

he
 s

ou
th

er
n 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 
Ro

ad
 t

he
re

 a
re

 s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f m

od
er

n 
ta

rm
ac

 
pa

ve
m

en
ts

, b
ut

 e
lse

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 a
re

 ju
st

 
gr

as
s 

ve
rg

es
. 

 6.
09

 V
ie

w
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

re
 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 a
lo

ng
 T

ow
th

or
pe

 R
oa

d 
to

 
ei

th
er

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
(s

ee
 

M
ap

 5
 a

nd
 P

la
te

 1
2)

.  
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 v
ie

w
s 

in
to

 
th

e 
de

sig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

 a
re

 p
os

sib
le

 fr
om

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 o
pe

n 
ar

ea
s 

to
 t

he
 n

or
th

, s
ou

th
 

an
d 

w
es

t. 
 A

lso
, a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 t
he

 lo
w

 
de

ns
ity

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
lt 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
pe

n 

Pl
at

e 
11

 B
ei

th
 A

cr
e 

 Pl
at

e 
13

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 
w

al
l a

t L
ow

 fa
rm

ho
us

e 
 

Page 128



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 3
 -

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

es

R
es

id
en

tia
l

north

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 129



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 4
 -

  B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

north

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ga

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
a

ne
ut

ra
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 130



451

17
.4

m

C
ro

ss
w

in
ds

CF

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

18
.9

m

Be
ith

 A
cr

e

Drain

45
3

D
ai

ry
 C

ot
ta

ge

CH

17
.1

m

Th
e 

G
ra

ng
e

St
on

e
LB

Def

CF

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

Ri
ve

r 
Fo

ss

M
oa

t

D
ra

in

G
ra

ng
e 

H
ou

se

1.
52

m
 R

H

D
ra

in

Def

CR

D
ef

TOWTHORPE ROAD

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

Fa
rm

St
on

e

Und

CH

17
.1

m

Th
or

ng
ar

th

Track

Drain

To
w

th
or

pe

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
P

Th
e 

N
es

se
s

W
ill

ow
 F

ar
mLo

w
Und

M
ap

 5
 -

  S
pa

tia
l a

na
ly

si
s

La
nd

m
ar

ks

Lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
vi

ew
s

north

T
re

es

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a

bo
un

da
ry

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

M
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

M
S

O
, ©

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
.  

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

  C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

Li
ce

nc
e 

N
um

be
r 

10
00

-2
08

18

Page 131



To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
9 

7 
  F

U
T

U
R

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 S

U
G

G
E

ST
IO

N
S 

7.
01

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

iss
ue

s 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
rm

 t
he

 b
as

is 
fo

r 
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

To
w

th
or

pe
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  H
ow

ev
er

, a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 a
pp

ra
isa

l 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

or
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
iss

io
ns

 w
ith

in
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 

 7.
02

 
Th

e 
m

aj
or

 is
su

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
To

w
th

or
pe

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
is 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 
de

re
lic

t 
bu

ild
in

gs
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 t

he
 m

an
y 

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 fa

rm
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.  
Th

is 
w

ou
ld

 le
ad

 
to

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 o
f t

he
se

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 t

o 
be

 s
ec

ur
ed

 b
y 

re
sid

en
tia

l u
se

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

is 
lik

el
y 

to
 le

ad
 t

o 
a 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 h
am

le
t, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 
de

st
ro

y 
its

 e
ss

en
tia

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
.  

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

us
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 c
lo

se
 

pr
ox

im
ity

 o
f t

he
 Y

or
k 

ri
ng

 r
oa

d.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 

th
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

iso
la

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 h

am
le

t 
m

ay
 

m
iti

ga
te

 t
he

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
iss

ue
s 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

  O
th

er
w

ise
 s

uc
h 

us
es

 
m

ay
 le

ad
 t

o 
an

 u
na

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
tr

af
fic

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 h

am
le

t. 
 O

ne
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
is 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 a
 fe

w
 

ve
ry

 la
rg

e 
re

sid
en

tia
l u

ni
ts

 t
ha

t 
ca

n 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 fa

rm
ho

us
es

 a
nd

 

th
ei

r 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 fa
rm

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
. 

 7.
03

 
It 

is 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

su
gg

es
t 

to
 E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

fa
rm

ho
us

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 M

an
or

 F
ar

m
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
on

 
th

e 
Li

st
 o

f B
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

f S
pe

ci
al

 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 o
r 

H
ist

or
ic

 In
te

re
st

. 
  7.

04
 

C
on

sid
er

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 
in

tr
od

uc
in

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 (2
) d

ir
ec

tio
ns

 t
o 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
to

 
un

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

be
 u

se
d,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 t
o 

re
sis

t 
th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
of

 t
im

be
r 

do
or

s 
an

d 
w

in
do

w
s 

in
 u

ns
ui

ta
bl

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls/

st
yl

es
.  

It 
w

ou
ld

 a
lso

 a
llo

w
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

f t
he

 
de

sig
n 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
us

ed
 fo

r 
ne

w
 

bo
un

da
ry

 w
al

ls.
 

 7.
05

 
Re

gu
la

r 
tr

ee
 a

nd
 h

ed
ge

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 is
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
an

d 
th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
em

en
t 

fo
r 

re
in

fo
rc

in
g 

th
e 

he
dg

es
 t

ha
t 

m
ak

e 
a 

ke
y 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 it
 

is 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
-

su
rv

ey
 t

he
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 it

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
et

tin
g 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

if 
an

y 
fu

rt
he

r 
Tr

ee
 P

re
se

rv
at

io
n 

O
rd

er
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e.
   

 

     

Page 132



L
IS

T
E

D
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
S 

                         To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
Page 133



T
ow

th
or

pe
 R

oa
d 

 
 

 
 

(e
as

t 
si

de
) 

 L
ow

 F
ar

m
ho

us
e 

 G
ra

de
 I

I 
 H

ou
se

.  
M

id
 C

18
.  

Br
ic

k 
w

ith
 p

an
til

e 
ro

of
.  

D
ir

ec
t 

en
tr

y,
 3

-c
el

l p
la

n.
  

2 
st

or
ey

s, 
3 

fir
st

-fl
oo

r 
w

in
do

w
s. 

 
2-

lig
ht

 
ca

se
m

en
t 

be
ne

at
h 

fla
t 

br
ic

k 
ar

ch
es

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

. 
 C

20
 h

al
f-g

la
ze

d 
do

or
 t

o 
le

ft;
 w

in
do

w
 

in
 

bl
oc

ke
d 

do
or

w
ay

 
to

 
ri

gh
t. 

 
St

ep
pe

d 
ea

ve
s 

co
ur

se
. 

 R
ai

se
d 

ga
bl

e 
en

ds
. 

 E
nd

 a
nd

 r
id

ge
 s

ta
ck

s, 
th

at
 t

o 
le

ft 
re

bu
ilt

. 
 I

nt
er

io
r 

co
nt

ai
ns

 c
ha

m
fe

re
d 

sp
in

e 
be

am
s, 

C
18

 p
an

el
s 

do
or

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

, a
n 

C
18

 
sp

la
t 

ba
lu

st
er

 s
ta

ir
ca

se
 a

nd
 a

 C
19

 r
an

ge
 i

n 
th

e 
ki

tc
he

n.
 

To
w

th
or

pe
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
pp

ra
isa

l, 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
10

 

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 

Page 134



29
00

T
an

ne
rs

M
ea

d

Ta
nn

er
y

R
iv

er
Fo

ss

1

6

65

86

Bon
e Dike

B
on

e 
D

ik
e

H
al

l
C

ha
rle

s
C

ou
rt

NETHERWOODS

12

6

Rive
r F

os
s

RIVERSIDE WALK

MIDDLECROFT DRIVE

LOW CROFT

FOSSLAND
VIE

W

WILKINSON WAY

M
O

O
R

LA
N

D
G

A
R

T
H

W
EST

END

LE
YF

IE
LD

CLO
SE

1

3

5

11

15

16

14

8

6

2

54
49

P
on

ds

Rive
rF

os
s59
00

77
00

61
70

50
71

65
66

W
or

ks

C
ob

b'
s 

C
ot

ta
ge

Dra
in

P
on

d

Th
e 

R
ob

er
t W

ilk
in

so
n

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

C
al

di
e

T
el

ep
ho

ne

E
xc

ha
ng

e

Forest
Court

1 to
4

14 to
17

5 to
8

18 to
21

26
9 to

12

22 to
25

33

23

15
11

1

18

12

10

7

28

12

2

1

16

7

1 3

1

11 15

14

2

1

5

7

11

15

19

21

29

33

35

45

60
56

44

42

40

30

1

1

5

9

20

17

54

42

18
16

14

12

C
H

U
R

C
H

L A
N

E

17

23

S
t M

ar
y'

s

C
hu

rc
h

92
78

28

15 2018
19

SHELLEYDRIVE

4
2

1

3

5

WESTPITLANE

2

9

11

17

10

3

7

18

16

14

C
R

E
A S

E
R

C
LO

S
E

12

62

1

1

21
19

49

43

41
3537

39

47

45

17

7
11

25

20

Bramble Hedge House

Y
ou

th
 C

en
tre

16
a

W
ES

T
E

N
D

C
L

WEST END

Church Farm

10

1

4

8

2

YO
RK

RO
AD

18

8

2

1

3

5

11

1

7

ST MARY'S CL

W
or

ks

TheVicarage

Garage

C
re

st
Th

e

2

6

1

11

21

29

T
he

 P
op

la
rs

2

H
el

m
sd

al
e

T
he

 O
ld

 V
ic

ar
ag

e

2

6

8

Ta
nn

er
y

Fo
ss

R
iv

er

Drain

Th
e 

S
hi

p 
In

n

(P
H

) 23

11

15

5

3
H

al
fM

oo
n

(P
H

)

El Sub Sta

06
89

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

TheGables

S
t M

ar
y'

s

C
hu

rc
h

18

6

Li
by

S
ta

S
ubE
l

P
O

Ing
s Farm

25
29

41
45

43
47

51

53
57

59

Bo
ne

Di
ke

Bone Dike

67

69

71

TH
E

V
IL

LA
G

E

93

10
1

6772

NORTHFIELDS

NORTHFIELDS

66a

1 10

1 00

92

82

Drain

Is
su

es

Drain

P
on

d

P
on

d

Drain

Drain

B
lu

e 
Fi

rs

Three Acres

Drain

B
ra

ns
da

le

Bo
ne

Di
ke

62

58

G
ar

th

T
he

F
ar

m
Y

ew
 T

re
e

5 6
44

49

51

W
ill

m
ar

M
id

ga
rt

h

B
la

nd
s

Fa
rm

3 8
36

32

20

12

Church

Surgery

35

33

S
O

U
T

H
FI

E
LD

S
R

O
AD

28

2

14

H
ea

lth
C

en
tre

1

11

21

ORCHARD
W

AY

PRINCESS ROAD

13

10

1

57

22

8

2

19

29
31

39

30

20

1

11
15

M
ID

D
LE

C
R

O
F

T
D

R

MIDDLECROFT GROVE

G
LE

B
E

C
LO

S
E

04
52

2

5

11

5

1

10

P
on

d

54
52

58
57

68
50

15 17 23

14

42

21

31

31
a

40

80

61

H
al

l

N
ur

si
ng

H
om

e

C
H

U
R

C
H

LA
N

E

1
3

7

2
8

10
t o

16

49

S
T

A
TI

O
N

SQUARE

41
47

9

23

11 15

9

26

12

2 a

4
4a

6
6a

8
8a

10
10a

As
h

Tr
ee

H
ou

se

53

Pl
um

Tr
ee

Ho
us

e

3

55

1a
1

2

N
E

TH
E

R
W

O
O

D
S

5 S
ou

th
fie

ld
s

H
ou

se

1
1a

8

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

K
lo

st
er

s

Garden Cottage

Br
ac

ke
n

Lo
dg

e

A
pp

le
tre

e
Ho

us
e

Th
e

Br
am

bl
es

H
ea

th
er

C
ot

ta
ge

64

H
A

R
V

E
S

T
C

LO
S

E

72

S
yc

am
or

e

F
ar

m

T
he

W
ill

ow
s

1

2

4

19
a

&
b

T
he

C
oa

ch
H

ou
se

HAWTHORNEMEWS

1

23

S
B

D
AT

E

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

o.

c 
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

. U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fri

ng
es

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

Pr
od

uc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

19
93

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 1
:1

25
0 

m
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ffi
ce

O
rig

in
at

in
g 

G
ro

up
:

SC
AL

E:
D

R
AW

N
 B

Y:

9,
St

.L
eo

na
rd

s 
Pl

ac
e,

Yo
rk

,Y
O

1 
2E

T

Pr
oj

ec
t

C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

 L
A 

10
00

 2
08

18

Te
le

ph
on

e:
 0

19
04

 5
51

55
0

PS
L

1:
45

00
29

/1
0/

20
10

C
A2

3P
E

N S

E
W

C

A

B

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
B

ou
nd

ar
y

P
ro

po
se

d 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

B
ou

nd
ar

y

A
nn

ex
 B

1

S
TR

E
N

S
A

LL
 - 

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

TI
O

N
 A

R
E

A
 2

3 
- P

ro
po

se
d 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

N
B

. R
em

ov
al

 o
f A

re
a 

A
 w

as
 a

ss
es

se
d 

bu
t i

t i
s

pr
op

os
ed

 to
 re

ta
in

 it
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 b

ou
nd

ar
y.

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



B
ow

lin
g

G
re

en

M
P

 .5

Track

FB

S
to

ne

SP

St
on

e

LC

Brickyard

House

2

1

B
ow

lin
g

G
re

en

55
57

65

73

80

BR
EC

KS
H

al
l

2

3

P
av

ili
on

C
ha

rle
s

C
ou

rt
LA

NE

7

B
ric

ky
ar

d
C

ot
ta

ge
s

R
ed

m
ay

ne
Lo

dg
e

Th
e 

La
ur

el
s

12

1

1

3

P
la

yg
ro

un
d

2

18

LIT
TL

ETH
ORPE

CLOSE

93

10
1

67
72

17
.2

m

NORTHFIELDS

66a 10
3

11
3

125

13
3

17
.6

m

18
.0

m

E
l

130

128a128
120

110

100

92

82

M
P

 .5

Track

Drain

Is
su

es

FB

S
to

ne

LB

SB

C
op

pe
rfi

el
d

K
ar

el
ia

R
id

ge
Li

ttl
e

B
un

ga
lo

w
Th

e

Th
e 

H
aw

th
or

ns

M
oo

rfi
el

d Ca
er

G
lo

w

As
hd

al
e

G
re

en
sl

ee
ve

s

H
ea

th
fie

ld

G
re

ys
to

ne
s

Th
e 

Fi
rs

Drain

00
88

Tr
ac

k

BR
EC

KS

The Sidings

H
al

l

The

Paddock

1

S
ub S
ta

PARK GATE

LA
NE

1

D
A

TE

D
ra

w
in

g 
N

o.

c 
C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

. U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
fri

ng
es

 C
ro

w
n 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 p
ro

se
cu

tio
n 

or
 c

iv
il 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s.

Pr
od

uc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

19
93

 O
rd

na
nc

e 
Su

rv
ey

 1
:1

25
0 

m
ap

pi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tro
lle

r o
f H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 O

ffi
ce

O
rig

in
at

in
g 

G
ro

up
:

S
C

A
LE

:
D

R
A

W
N

 B
Y

:

9,
St

.L
eo

na
rd

s 
Pl

ac
e,

Yo
rk

,Y
O

1 
2E

T

P
ro

je
ct

C
ity

 o
f Y

or
k 

C
ou

nc
il 

 L
A 

10
00

 2
08

18

Te
le

ph
on

e:
 0

19
04

 5
51

55
0

P
S

L
1:

17
00

29
/1

0/
20

10

C
A3

1P
E

N S

E
W

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
B

ou
nd

ar
y

P
ro

po
se

d 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a 

B
ou

nd
ar

y

A
nn

ex
 B

2

S
TR

E
N

S
A

LL
 R

A
IL

W
A

Y
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
S

 - 
C

O
N

S
E

R
V

A
TI

O
N

 A
R

E
A

 3
1 

- 
P

ro
po

se
d 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

A

B

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



1600 4400

5300

2883

1600 4400

17.1m

D
rain

5300

Low

Beith Acre

BM 17.93m

Willow Farm

2883

Manor FarmD
ra

in

Drain

Moat

TO
W

TH
O

R
P

E
R

O
A

D

Towthorpe
17.1m

Thorngarth

Grange Farm

The Grange

Track

Drain

Farm

Dairy Cottage

Grange House

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY

City of York Council  LA 1000 20818

Telephone: 01904 551550

1:2000 29/10/2010PSL

N

S

EWTOWTHORPE - CONSERVATION AREA 32

CA32

Existing Conservation Area
(No Amendments Proposed)

Annex B3
Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX C – Consultee List for Strensall, Strensall Railway Buildings and Towthorpe 
Conservation Area Character Appraisals, November 2010 
 
NAME POSITION ORGANISATION 

Cllr M Kirk Strensall Ward Councillor City of York Council 
Cllr S Wiseman Strensall Ward Councillor City of York Council 
TBC Owner Former Station Yard (Strensall 

Railway Buildings proposed extension) 
Network Rail 
 

Susan Nunn Clerk Strensall & Towthorpe Parish Council 
Val Jesse Secretary  Strensall Local History Group 
June Card Secretary  River Foss Society 
Alison Sinclair Chair York Open Planning Forum 
Verlie Riley Coordinator Conservation Area Advisory Panel 
Dr G Woolley Chair CPRE (York and Selby District) 
Alison Fisher   English Heritage 
Steve Roskams   York Archaeological Forum 
Peter Brown Director York Civic Trust 
David Brinklow Chairman Yorkshire Architectural & Archaeological 

Society 
Barry Potter Chair York Natural Environment Panel 
Lynne Walker   Council for British Archaeology 
Judy Jones Heritage Advisor British Waterways 
Mr J Cornell  Railway Heritage Trust 
Sir Coordinator Network Rail/ East Coast Mainline 
Sir Coordinator Victorian Society 
Sir Coordinator Twentieth Century Society 
Michael Slater Assistant Director  CYC City Strategy 
Martin Grainger Principle Forward Planning Officer CYC City Development  
Derek Gauld Principle Development Officer CYC City Development  
Esther Priestley Landscape Architect CYC DCSD  
Bob Missin Countryside Officer CYC DCSD 
John Oxley City Archaeologist CYC DCSD 
Verlie Riley Common Land Officer CYC DCSD 
Bob Sydes Renaissance Team CYC DCSD 
Jonathan Carr Head of Development Management CYC Development Management 
Simon Glazier Team Leader Major & Commercial  CYC Development Management 
Gareth Arnold Team Leader Householders & Small 

Scale 
CYC Development Management 

Ian Stokes Principle Transport Planner - Strategy CYC Transport Planning Unit 
Howard Watson Area Engineer CYC Highway Development 
Karen Streeton Support Services Manager CYC Development Management 
Pete Audin Head of Local Land Charges CYC Local Land Charges 
Andrew Docherty Assistant Director of Legal 

Governance and IT 
CYC Legal Services 

James Nicholson Neighbourhood Management Officer CYC Neighbourhood Management Unit 
 
 
 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	Site Visit 24 November

	2 Minutes
	4a Nuffield Hospital York, Haxby Road, York YO31 8TA (10/01677/FULM)
	10-01677-FULM
	UPDATE FOR NUFFIELD HOSPITAL

	4b Proposed University Campus Lying Between Field Lane and Low Lane A64 Trunk road and Hull Road, York (10/02140/REM)
	D-002-uoy1
	University (S+C Building) revised conditions circulated at meeting
	Cumulative Developed Footprint & Indicative Plan Scan

	5 Three Conservation Area Appraisals for Strensall, Strensall Railway Buildings and Towthorpe Village Conservation Areas: Consultation Drafts
	Annex A1 Strensall CA Appraisal 3rd DRAFT 15 11 10
	Annex A2 Strensall Railway Buildings CA Appraisal 3rd DRAFT 15 11 10
	Annex A3 Towthorpe CA Appraisal 3rd DRAFT 15 11 10
	Annex B1 CA23
	Annex B2 CA31
	Annex B3 CA32
	Annex C Consultee List Nov'10
	Annex D   Delivery Area


